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Unless the context otherwise requires, the termse&dnWorks Animation,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” andour” refer to DreamWork
Animation SKG, Inc., its consolidated subsidiarig®decessors in interest and the subsidiariesassetts and liabilities contributed to it by
entity then known as DreamWorks L.L.CQtd DreamWorks Studios ") on October 27, 2004 (the Separation Date”) in connection with ot
separation from Old DreamWorks Studios (“ Separation ”).



PART |

ltem 1. Business
Overview

DreamWorks Animation creates family entertainmertluding animated feature films, television specend series, live entertainment
properties, an online virtual world and relatedsianer products, meant for audiences around thedlwahk have released a total of 21
animated feature films of whicBhrek the Third, ShrekéahdMadagascamere the highest-grossing animated films in the eltin box office
in their respective years of release, &tdek 2remains the fifth-highest grossing film of all tinrethe domestic box office.

Historically, our business plan has generally heerelease two animated feature films per yea20®9, we announced that, beginning in
2010, we expect to release a total of five moviesetwo years. In 2010, we released three animfdtad, How to Train Your Dragon Shrek
Forever AfterandMegamindWe are currently producing five additional featfih@s, of which we expect to release two in 2014 #mee in
2012. In addition, we have a substantial numbgrojects in creative and story development and yetidn that are expected to fill the release
schedule in 2013 and beyond. In 2007, we annoutiadll of our films, beginning with the releadavionsters vs. Aliens 2009, would be
released in stereoscopic 3D.

Our feature films are currently the source of assaitial portion of our revenue. We derive revefiam our distributors’ worldwide
exploitation of our feature films in theaters andancillary markets such as home entertainmenpagdnd free broadcast television. In
addition, we earn revenue from the licensing andchrendising of our films and characters in marketaind the world. Effective January 31,
2006, our results reflect our distribution, semgand other arrangements with Paramount PictuoggdCation and its affiliates and related
entities, including Old DreamWorks Studios (colieely “ Paramount”). Beginning with the fourth quarter of 2004 arshtinuing through
January 31, 2006, our results reflect the effettsuo distribution, servicing and other arrangersemith Old DreamWorks Studios as also
discussed. For a discussion of our distributioarmgements prior to January 31, 2006, see our Arikepbdrt on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007. For a discussion of the Companysiness segment and of geographic informationtahe Company’s revenues, please
see the Company’s consolidated financial statemardaotes thereto included in this Annual ReporEorm 10-K.

Company History

Prior to the Separation on October 27, 2004, weewadnusiness division of Old DreamWorks Studios,diversified entertainment
company formed in October 1994 by Steven Spielhkefirey Katzenberg and David Geffen. As a divisabi®ld DreamWorks Studios, we
conducted our business primarily through Old Dreasmi® Studios’ animation division. On October 28020our Class A common stock
began trading on the New York Stock Exchange imeation with our initial public offering.

In connection with the Separation, we entered énseparation agreement (th&éparation Agreement’) and a number of other
agreements with Old DreamWorks Studios to accommplie



Separation and establish the terms of our varielagionships with Old DreamWorks Studios. We congaldhe Separation in connection with
our initial public offering in October 2004 by td@ect transfer to us of certain of the assetslatilities that comprise our business. Old
DreamWorks Studios also transferred certain ofutssidiaries to us.

We conduct our business primarily in two studidge-Glendale, California, where we are headquarteaad in Redwood City, Californi
Our Glendale animation campus, where the majofityuo animators and production staff are based,auasom built in 1997.

We generally retain the exclusive copyright andeothtellectual property rights to all of our profe and characters, other than (i) co-
ownership of the copyright and other intellectuaperty rights (including characters) in and~tashed Away which was co-produced with
Aardman Animations, Ltd. (“Aardman”), (iiWWallace & Gromit: The Curse of the Were-Rahkitfilm owned by Aardman for which we
generally have worldwide distribution rights in petuity, excluding certain United Kingdom televisioghts and certain ancillary markets, {
co-ownership of the copyright and other intelletpraperty rights (including characters) in andoicken Rumwith Aardman Chicken Run
Limited and Pathé Image and (iv) the animated isiew seriesThe Penguins of MadagascandKung Fu Panda: Legends of Awesomeness,
for which the copyright is owned by Nickelodeon.

Films in Production and Development

We are currently producing five animated featulragifor release in 2011 and 2012. In addition, &eeha substantial number of proje
in development and production that are expectdill tur release schedule in 2013 and beyond. Bhéetbelow lists all of our films that are
expected to be released through the end of 2012.

Title Expected Release Date*
Kung Fu Panda : June 3, 201.
Puss in Boot November 4, 201
The Crood:s First Quarter 201
Madagascar { Second Quarter 201
Rise of the Guardiar Fourth Quarter 201

* Release dates are tentative. Due to the uncégaimvolved in the development and productioamifnated feature films, the date of
completion can be significantly delayze

Non-Feature Film Businesses

Over the last few years, the Company has commeacesinber of initiatives aimed at further capitalgzion its franchise film properties,
such asshrek, MadagascaandKung Fu Panda These business initiatives seek to diversifyGoenpany’s revenue streams by exploiting the
film properties in other areas of family entertaemty including the following:

Television Specials and Series

Since 2007 (with our Christmas specfirek the Halls) the Company has been producing half-hour telenispecials based on its
films, Shrek, Kung Fu Pandg MadagascamndMonsters vs. AliensThe Company has additional television speciaig/sén development
based on its films



(includingHow to Train Your Dragon for initial broadcast in 2011 and beyond. In cection with these specials/series, the Company&te
into various network television distribution agrests. The Company retains all other distributigits (such as DVD, other home
entertainment and consumer product distributiohtsigwith respect to its television specials/series

The animated television serid$)e Penguins of Madagascatlebuted on the Nickelodeon network in March 200&der the Company’s
agreement with Paramount, an affiliate of Nickelmaéwhich is discussed in greater length in “Dimition and Servicing Arrangementstew
We Distribute, Promote and Market Our Films—Niclkigdon Television Development”), the Company is galheentitled to receive one-half
of the revenues, as well as certain service fesscated with home entertainment and consumenuptsdales related to the television series.
The Company and Nickelodeon are currently produaim@nimated television series basedang Fu Panda which the Company expects
will debut on the Nickelodeon network in late 2011.

The Company is also producing an animated telavisaries based d#ow to Train Your Dragon for broadcast on the Cartoon
Network.

Live Performances

From December 2008 until January 2010, the CompBity'ek The Musicabn on Broadway. The play is based on the Compaod
theatrical releas&hrek.In July 2010, the Company launched a national bgupiroduction of the play. The Company currentlpeots that a
separate production of the play will begin pubkefprmances in London in May 2011. In January 2@lliye show based on the film
Madagascaidebuted in the United States. The Company is aseldping live shows based on its theatrical priggeKung Fu Pandand
How to Train Your Dragol.

Online Virtual World

The Company'’s online virtual world based on themfidlung Fu Panddecame available to the public in March 2010. Tineial world is
aimed at children ages seven through 12. The Coynpamently realizes revenue from the virtual watidough user subscription fees and
advertising.

Distribution and Servicing Arrangements

On January 31, 2006, Viacom Inc. and certain ddffitiates (collectively” Viacom”) (including Paramount) acquired Old DreamWc¢
Studios. In connection with this transaction, weni@ated our prior distribution agreement with @ceamWorks Studios (the “Old
DreamWorks Studios Distribution AgreementEffective January 31, 2006, the worldwide theatréoal television distribution and home vic
fulfillment services for our films released aftandiary 31, 2006 have been provided by Paramoudétéiled discussion of our distribution &
fulfilment services agreements with Paramountr@vjaged immediately below. For the period beginnigtober 1, 2004 to January 31, 2006,
our films were distributed in the domestic theatriand worldwide television market directly by @deamWorks Studios and in international
theatrical and worldwide home entertainment markgtsniversal Studios, Inc. Universal Studios”), as an approved subdistributor and
fulfilment services provider of Old DreamWorks 8tos, in each case
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pursuant to the terms of the Old DreamWorks StuBissribution Agreement. For a detailed discussibthese prior distribution and servicing
arrangements, please see our Annual Report on Edskhfor the year ended December 31, 2007.

How We Distribute, Promote and Market our Films
Overview

On January 31, 2006, we entered into a distribudigreement with Paramount and its affiliates (tRafamount Distribution
Agreement”), and our wholly owned subsidiary, DreamWorks #ation Home Entertainment, L.L.C. PreamWorks Animation Home
Entertainment "), entered into a fulfillment services agreemehe(* Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement’ and, with the Paramount
Distribution Agreement, the Paramount Agreements”) with an affiliate of Paramount.

Under the Paramount Distribution Agreement, sulffgciertain exceptions, Paramount advertises, gabl, promotes, distributes and
exploits our animated feature films in each teryitand in each media designated by us. Under thenfiRaunt Fulfillment Services Agreement,
we have engaged Paramount to render worldwide hidee fulfillment services and video-on-demand &ms in each territory designated by
us for all films previously released for home etatierment exhibition and video-on-demand exhibitiynus, and for every animated film
licensed to Paramount pursuant to the ParamoultrilRison Agreement with respect to which we owrcontrol the requisite rights.

Paramount Distribution Agreement

The following is a summary of the Paramount Disttibn Agreement, which is filed as an exhibit testRorm 1(-K. This summary i
qualified in all respects by such reference. Inmessin our common stock are encouraged to reaBan@mount Distribution Agreement.

Term of Agreement Subject to certain exceptions, the Paramousttibution Agreement grants Paramount the worlewright to
distribute all of our animated films, including preusly released films, completed and availablerébdease through the later of (i) our delivery
to Paramount of 13 new animated feature films, @h@®ecember 31, 2012, unless, in either caseatreement is terminated earlier in
accordance with its terms. To date, we have dedivertotal of 10 animated feature films under gre@ment. If we or Paramount terminate the
Paramount Distribution Agreement, our existing &rtdre films will generally be subject to the terofsany sub-distribution, servicing and
licensing agreements entered into by Paramounttbdtave pre-approved. The distribution rights tgdrio Paramount generally include
(i) domestic and international theatrical exhibitidii) domestic and international television lisérg, including pay-per-view, pay television,
network, basic cable and syndication, (iii) nonattnigal exhibition, such as on airlines, in schanisl in armed forces institutions, and
(iv) Internet, radio (for promotional purposes Qriynd new media rights, to the extent that we grafrour affiliates own or control the rights
to the foregoing at the time of delivery. We retaihother rights to exploit our films, includinguhestic and international home entertainment
exhibition and video-on-demand exhibition rightedave have engaged Paramount under the Paramalfifitfemnt Services
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Agreement to render services in connection withexyaloitation of these rights on a worldwide basis)d the right to make prequels and
sequels, commercial tie-in and promotional righithwespect to each film, as well as merchandidingme park, interactive, literary
publishing, music publishing and soundtrack rigliace Paramount has acquired the license to digtritne of our animated feature films,
Paramount generally will have the right to exptbi film in the manner described above for 16 y&ars such film’s initial general theatrical
release.

Distribution Services Paramount is responsible for the worldwidéritiation in the media mentioned above of all of animated
feature films, but may engage one or more subibligtrs and service providers in those territodrd media in which Paramount
subdistributes all or substantially all of its nuoatipictures, subject to our prior written approvailir grant of distribution rights to Paramount is
expressly subject to certain existing subdistritrutind license agreements previously entered int®lth DreamWorks Studios. Pursuant to the
Paramount Distribution Agreement, we are requicedantinue to license directly to Old DreamWorkadsos those distribution rights in anc
our existing and future animated films, to the ektgecessary for Old DreamWorks Studios to compti such existing subdistribution and
license agreements. Upon expiration of Old Dreani/&tudiosexisting agreements, all distribution rights thia subject to such agreeme
shall be automatically granted to Paramount for#imeainder of each film’s respective license tendar the Paramount Distribution
Agreement.

Distribution Approvals and Control. Paramount is required to consult with and saiboniis a detailed plan and budget regarding the
theatrical marketing, release and distributionaxfteof our films. We have certain approval righterathese plans and are entitled to determine
the initial domestic theatrical release dates foofeour films and to approve the initial theatligelease dates in the majority of the internati
territories, subject to certain limitations in themmer and holiday release periods. Generally nRaurat is not permitted to theatrically release
any film owned or controlled by Paramount with aRAMA rating of “PG” or “G” or less within the peridoeginning one week prior to, and
ending one week following, the initial domestic anttrnational territories theatrical release datesne of our films. Paramount has further
agreed that all matters regarding the designatiohnaovement of theatrical release dates for onrsfiind the related release and marketing
obligations under the Paramount Distribution Agreatrshall be, at all times, subject to the term@nditions of our worldwide promotional
agreement with McDonald’s.

Expenses and Fees The Paramount Distribution Agreement provitheg we will be solely responsible for all of thests of developing
and producing our animated feature films, includingtingent compensation and residual costs. Pamanvall be responsible for all of the
out-of-pocket costs, charges and expenses incine distribution, advertising, marketing and lieibing of each film (collectively, the “
Distribution Expenses”).

The Paramount Distribution Agreement provides tiataind Paramount will mutually agree on the amofilltistribution Expenses to be
incurred with respect to the initial theatricale&$e of each film in the domestic territory anthim majority of the international territories,
including all print and advertising costs and maaliachases (e.g., expenses paid for print adveglisHowever, in the event of a disagreem
Paramount’s decisions, based on its géaith business judgment, will prevail. Unless wel &aramount otherwise agree, the aggregate ar
of Distribution Expenses to be incurred with reggeany event film that is rated “PG 13" (or adeasstrictive
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rating) and is released in the domestic territanyableast 2,000 screens will be equal to or greats 90% of the average amount of
Distribution Expenses incurred to release our thmest recent event films, as measured on a roflasgis, subject to certain adjustments.
However, if we determine in good faith that a fingross receipts will be materially enhanced byetkgenditure of additional Distribution
Expenses, we may cause Paramount to increase gpehditures, provided that we will be solely resgible for advancing to or reimbursing
Paramount for those additional expenditures witivia business days of receiving an invoice fromaRasunt.

Under the Paramount Distribution Agreement, Pararhizuentitled to (i) retain a fee of 8.0% of reuen(without deduction for, among
other things, distribution and marketing costsdiparty distribution fees and sales agent fees),(&) recoup all of its distribution and
marketing costs with respect to our films on a#ltly-title basis prior to our recognizing any rewenFor each film licensed to Paramount,
revenues, fees and expenses for such film unddtahemount Distribution Agreement are combined wWithrevenues, fees and expenses for
such film under the Paramount Fulfillment Serviéegeement and we are provided with a single morglelyounting statement and, if
applicable, payment for each film. For further disgion, see “—Expenses and Fees under the ParaDistritbution Agreement and
Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement” below.

Creative Control. We retain the exclusive right to make all dreatlecisions and initiate any action with respgedhe development,
production and acquisition of each of our filmsslirding the right to abandon the development odpetion of a film, and the right to exercise
final cut.

Reimbursement Amounts Paramount has agreed to pay us an annualaigiursement amount (currently $7.0 million pearyeluring
the period that we are delivering new films to Paoant pursuant to the Paramount Distribution Agreein

Nickelodeon Television DevelopmentAs part of the Paramount Distribution Agreetmere agreed to license, subject to certain
conditions and third party rights and restrictiaiosParamount (on behalf of Nickelodeon) the exghisights to develop animated television
properties based on our films and the charactetebments contained in those films. The licendeakamount is expressly conditioned on
Nickelodeon continuing to develop and commence gertdn on television programs based on our filmperties. Generally, if Nickelodec
does not determine whether to commence productisuoh programs based on a film property withipecgied time, the animated television
rights in such film property revert to us. We atstain the right to co-produce any television papgs and maintain all customary creative
approvals over any production using our film praigst including the selection of the film elemettde used as the basis for any television
productions. The animated television seridse Penguins of Madagascawhich is based on obdadagascafilms, debuted on the
Nickelodeon network in March 2009. The Company Bigkelodeon are currently producing an animateelislon series based Kung Fu
Panda, which the Company expects will debut on the Nic#eon network in late 2011.

Additional Services Under the terms of the Paramount Distribudgmeement, Paramount has agreed to provide usrénaili cost
certain production-related services, including it limited to film music licensing, archiving dfrh materials, credits, participations, travel
and residual accounting.



Termination. Upon the occurrence of certain events of dgfatdnich include the failure of either party to kesa payment and the
continuance thereof for five business days, mdtarieured breach of the agreement and certain batdy-related events, the non-breaching
party may terminate the agreement. If we fail thveée to Paramount three qualifying theatrical fper five-year period, if applicable, of the
Paramount Distribution Agreement (e.g., three filmithin the first five years, six films within thfegst 10 years), then Paramount has the right
to terminate the agreement. In addition, if Parambdglin breach or default under any sub-distritnutor third-party service agreements that
have been pre-approved by us, and such breacHarltleas or will have a material adverse effecPamamount’s ability to exploit the
distribution rights in accordance with the termsha Paramount Distribution Agreement, then we teayinate the agreement. If we terminate
the agreement, we generally can require Paramougtbp distributing our films in the various teories and markets in which Paramount
directly distributes our films, or we can termin#tte remaining term of the Paramount Distributiagréement, but require Paramount to
continue distributing our films that are currertlging distributed or are ready for release purstaatite Paramount Distribution Agreement,
subject, in each case, to the terms of any ougnetesments (such as any agreements that we maywtidvany television networks) or other
agreements to which the films are then subjectigeal that Paramount continues to pay us all ansotggiuired to be paid to us and to perfi
its other obligations pursuant to the ParamountriDigtion Agreement). Unless otherwise agreed, ieation of the Paramount Distribution
Agreement will not affect the rights that any sustdbutor or service provider has with respecotw films pursuant to sub-distribution,
servicing and licensing agreements that we haveoapd. Moreover, we can elect to terminate the fatmt Distribution Agreement and, in
our sole discretion, the Paramount Fulfillment 8y Agreement, after January 1, 2011, if we expee a change in control (as defined
therein) and pay a one-time termination fee. Thewrhof the termination fee is specified as $15Mioni if we terminated the Paramount
Distribution Agreement on January 1, 2011, ancatineunt of the termination fee reduces ratably to gering the period from January 2,
2011 to December 31, 2012. Upon termination byeeigarty of the Paramount Distribution Agreementher Paramount Fulfillment Services
Agreement, we have the corresponding right to teatei the other agreement at our sole election.

Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement

The following is a summary of the Paramount Futféint Services Agreement, which is filed as an eéktolthis Form 1-K. This
summary is qualified in all respects by such refeee Investors in our common stock are encourageeitd the Paramount Fulfillment Servi
Agreement.

Term of Agreement and Exclusivity Under the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreat, we have engaged Paramount to render
worldwide home video fulfillment services and videwo-demand services for all films previously rekh$or home entertainment exhibition
and video-on-demand exhibition by us, and for exrynated film licensed to Paramount pursuantéoRtGramount Distribution Agreement
with respect to which we own or control the regeisights at the time of delivery. Once Paramow# been engaged to render fulfillment
services for one of our animated feature filmsaRaunt generally has the right to render such sesvin the manner described herein for 16
years from such fili's initial general theatrical release.

Fulfillment Services Paramount is responsible for preparing mangetind home entertainment distribution plans wégpect to our
home entertainment releases, as well as arranging



necessary third-party services, preparing artwmidking media purchases for product marketing, raaiirtg secure physical inventory sites
and arranging shipping of the home entertainmeits.un

Approvals and Controls Paramount is required to render fulfillmensees on a film-by-film, territory-by-territory Isés as requested
and directed by us, and Paramount cannot geneedilge to provide fulfillment services with respezbur home entertainment releases in any
territory. We have certain approval rights over tierketing and home entertainment distribution glarentioned above and are entitled to
determine the initial home entertainment releasesdfar all of our films in the domestic territoapd to approve home entertainment release
dates in the majority of the international terrigst

Expenses and Fees. The Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreemequies Paramount to pay all expenses relating toeho
entertainment distribution, including marketing,maéacturing, development and shipping costs angeailices fees paid to subcontractors,
excluding contingent compensation and residuakoastilectively, “Home Video Fulfillment Expenses’). The Paramount Fulfillment
Services Agreement provides that we and Paramoillmhatually agree on the amount of Home Video Hiffent Expenses to be incurred.
However, in the event of a disagreement, Paramsuettision, based on its good-faith business judgméll prevail. Unless we and
Paramount otherwise agree, the aggregate amottdroé Video Fulfilment Expenses to be incurred wihlpect to any event film that is ra
“PG 13" (or a less-restrictive rating) and is reked in the domestic territory on at least 2,00@ests will be equal to or greater than 90% of the
average amount of Home Video Fulfillment Expensesiired to release our three most recent evens fite measured on a rolling basis,
subject to certain adjustments. However, if we mitee in good faith that a filns’gross receipts will be materially enhanced byetkgenditure
of additional Home Video Fulfillment Expenses, wayttause Paramount to increase such expendituoesded that we will be solely
responsible for advancing to or reimbursing Pararhéor those additional expenditures within fivesmess days of receiving an invoice from
Paramount.

In return for the provision of fulfillment servicés us, Paramount is entitled to (i) retain a sufee of 8% of home entertainment
revenues (without deduction for any manufacturdigtribution and marketing costs and third partyiee fees) and (ii) recoup all of its Home
Video Fulfillment Expenses with respect to our flion a title-by-title basis. For each film with pest to which Paramount is rendering
fulfilment services, revenues, fees and expensesuch film under the Paramount Fulfillment Seegie\greement are combined with the
revenues, fees and expenses for such film unddtahemount Distribution Agreement and we are pridith a single monthly accounting
statement and, if applicable, payment for each.fitor further discussion see “—Expenses and Fegsrithe Paramount Distribution
Agreement and Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreatibelow.

Termination. The termination and remedy provisions underRaramount Fulfillment Services Agreement arelaintd those under tl
Paramount Distribution Agreement.
Expenses and Fees under the Paramount Distribitgneement and Paramount Fulfillment Services Agezgm

Each of our films is accounted for under the Param®istribution Agreement and the Paramount Haifiint Services Agreement or
combined basis for each film. In such regard, all



revenues, expenses and fees under the Paramowgemgnts for a given film are fully cross- collateed. If a theatrical feature film does not
generate revenue in all media, net of the 8.0%illigion and servicing fee, sufficient for Parambtmrecoup its expenses under the
Paramount Agreements, Paramount will not be edttberecoup those costs from proceeds of our dhieatrical feature films, and we will not
be required to repay Paramount for such amounts.

Licensing

We have entered into a variety of strategic licegsirrangements with a number of consumer produetgpanies and other retaile
Pursuant to our typical arrangements, we gramglesipicture license to use our characters or élements in connection with a specified
merchandise item or category in exchange for agogage of net sales of the products and, in ceiriatances, minimum guaranteed payments.
We may also enter into other arrangements, suahudtspicture agreements or multi-category liceageeements, pursuant to which the
licensee receives exclusive merchandising or primmak rights in exchange for royalty payments oamgunteed payments.

Strategic Alliances and Promotions

The success of our projects greatly depends ngtamtheir quality, but also on the degree of comsuawareness that we are abl
generate for their theatrical and home entertainmeda@ases. In order to increase consumer awarenedsave developed key strategic allial
as well as numerous promotional partnerships wadewn general, these arrangements provide thdicerse our characters and storylines
for use in conjunction with our promotional partigeroducts or services. In exchange, we may receiomotional fees in addition to
substantial marketing benefits from cross-promaiapportunities, such as inclusion of our characé&d movie images in television
commercials, on-line, print media and on promotigreeckaging.

We currently have strategic alliances with McDorgléHewlett-Packard and Intel. We have also entarada strategic alliance with
Samsung related to 3D DVD versions of several offiitms. We believe these relationships are muyuadiluable. We benefit because of the
consumer awareness generated for our films, angartmers benefit because these arrangements prthad the opportunity to build their
brand awareness and associate with popular cuitweique ways.



How We Develop and Produce our Films
The Animated Filmmaking Process

The filmmaking process starts with an idea. Ingirafor a film comes from many sour—from our ir-house staff, from freelanc
writers or from existing literary or other workau&essful ideas are generally written up as artresat (or story description) and then procee
a screenplay, followed by the storyboarding proeeekthen finally into the production process. Erahg the script and early development
phase, the production process, from storyboardirfgnbing out the final image, for a full-lengthdture film can take approximately three to
four years.

We employ small collaborative teams that are resibbs for preparing storylines and ideas for thahstages of development. These
teams, through a system of creative developmeritaenare responsible for ensuring that idea®Wolihe best creative path within a desired
budget and schedule parameters. The complexitaaf project, the background environments, the chiersiand all of the elements in a
project create a very intricate and time-consunpragess that differs for each project. The tablewelepicts, in a very general manner, a
timeline for a full-length feature film, and dedms the four general and overlapping phases timstitate the process and their components:

Development Pre-Production Production Post-Production
Treatmeant
Screenplay
Storyboarding
Visual Davelopmant
Modeling

Character Rigging
Vaice Recording
Layaul
Anirmatlon
Lighting
Sound Effects
Music Score
Final Dallvory
Variable Year 1 -# Year 3-4

The development phase generally consists of stuiywasual development. The duration of the develepinphase can vary project by
project—from a matter of months to a number of gehr the pre-production phase, the script and/stoe further developed and refined prior
to the majority of the film crew commencing work the project. The production phase which follows [zt up to two years depending on the
length of the project (television specials/seridbgenerally be shorter) and involves the largasinber of staff. The Comparsyintroduction o
stereoscopic 3D for its films provides the filmmekeith additional variables to review and decigem during this production phase. Finally,
in the post-production phase, the core visualsdialdgue are in place and we add important elengnth as sound effects and the
music/score.
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Our Technology

Our technology plays an important role in the paigiuin of our projects. Our focus on user interfand tool development enables our
artists to use existing and emerging technologiswing us to leverage our artistic talent. In éidd, we have strategic relationships with
leading technology companies that allow us to kiefrein third-party advancements and technologthatearly stages of their introduction.

Competition

Our films and other projects compete on a broadllesth all forms of entertainment and even othemsumer leisure activities. O
primary competition for film audiences comes froatthanimated and live-action films that are tardetesimilar audiences and released into
the theatrical market at the same time as our filsishis level, in addition to competing for boffioe receipts, we compete with other film
studios over optimal release dates and the nunflraotion picture screens on which our movies at@hgted. In addition, with respect to the
home entertainment and television markets, we céenpigh other films as well as other forms of etdgmment. We also face intense
competition from other animation studios for thevgees of talented writers, directors, producersmetors and other employees and for the
acquisition of rights to pre-existing literary aother works.

Competition for Film Audiences. Our primary competition for film audiences caviom both animated and live-action films that are
targeted at similar audiences and released intthtredrical market at the same time as our films: @ature films compete with both live-
action and animated films for motion picture sceequarticularly during national and school holidaysen demand is at its peak. Due to the
competitive environment, the opening weekend ffilnais extremely important in establishing momemtéor its box-office performance.
Because we currently expect to release only twihree films per year, our objective is to producecalled “event” films, attracting the largest
and broadest audiences possible. As a resultctierlaling of optimal release dates is critical tio success. One of the most important factors
we consider when determining the release daterfpparticular film is the expected release datetbér films (especially 3D films) targeting
similar audiences. In this regard, we pay particatéention to the expected release dates of dithes produced by other animation studios,
although we also pay attention to the expectedselelates of live-action and other “event” filmattare vying for similar broad audience
appeal.

Disney/Pixar, Sony Entertainment, Fox EntertainriseBlue Sky Studios and Illumination Entertainmarg currently the animation
studios that we believe target similar audiencesreve comparable animated filmmaking capabilitiesddition, other companies and
production studios continue to release animatadsfilwhich can affect the market in which our filomsnpete.

Competition in Home Entertainment In the home entertainment market, our filmd eievision entertainment compete with not only
other theatrical titles or direct-to-video titlesdetelevision series titles, but also other forrheame entertainment, such as online, casual or
console games. As competition in the home ententaint market increases, consumers are given a greateer of choices for home
entertainment products. In addition, once our films released in the home entertainment marketrttagyalso compete with other films that
are in their initial theatrical
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release or in their subsequent theatrical re-relegsles. Historically, a significant portion ofraevenues has been derived from consumer
purchases of our home entertainment titles. Inrérgsrd, we compete with video-rental or video-emdnd services that offer consumers the
ability to view home entertainment titles one orrentimes for a rental fee that is typically sigoéftly less than the purchase of the title. Over
the last couple of years, a number of companies bagun offering Internet-based services that alomsumers to stream home entertainment
titles to their televisions, computers or mobileides for a one-time or monthly subscription feedAionally, some existing subscription cable
television channels are developing or have develdpternet-based services that offer subscribersbility to also view content on computers
or mobile devices. Our home entertainment titlee @bmpete with these services. Finally, over tst peveral years, there has been an
increase in competition for shelf space given hgilers for any specific title and for DVDs in geak

Competition for Talent. Currently, we compete with other animated fdrmd visual effect studios for artists, animatoneaors and
producers. In addition, we compete for the servifaomputer programmers and other technical pridolustaff with other animation studios
and production companies and, increasingly, witlewigame producers. In order to recruit and rétdémted creative and technical personnel,
we have established relationships with the top ation schools and industry trade groups. We has@ edtablished in-house digital training
and artistic development training programs.

Potential Competition Barriers to entry into the animation field badecreased as technology has advanced. While weedeaeloped
proprietary software to create animated films, oft studios may not be required to do so, abetogical advances have made it possib
purchase third-party software capable of produdiigh-quality images. Although we have developedgedary technology, experience and
know-how in the animation field (especially withspct to stereoscopic 3D) that we believe provalwith significant advantages over new
entrants in the animated film market, there arsufzstantial technological barriers to entry thavpnt other film studios from entering the
field. Furthermore, advances in technology may sutiglly decrease the time that it takes to predarc animated feature film, which could
result in a significant number of new animated §ilor products. The entrance of additional animatimmpanies into the animated feature film
market could adversely impact us by eroding ourketashare, increasing the competition for animéitedaudiences and increasing the
competition for, and cost of, hiring and retaintatented employees, particularly animators andrtiect staff.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we employed approxima&gl@0 people, many of whom were covered by employragreements, which
generally include non-disclosure agreements. Qftttal, approximately two-thirds were directly dioyed in the production of our films as
animators, modelers, story artists, visual devekepnartists, layout artists, editors, technicagdiors, lighters and visual effects artists and
production staff, approximately 300 were primaglygaged in supporting and developing our animagohnology, and approximately 410
worked on general corporate and administrative engtincluding our licensing and merchandising afyiens. We also hire additional
employees on a picture-by-picture basis. The ssaf these additional employees, as well as pwriid the salaries of certain full-time
employees who provide direct production
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services, are typically allocated to the capitalizests of the related feature film. In additioppeoximately 840 of our employees (and some of
the employees or independent contractors that veedni a project-by-project basis) were represeatettr three industry-wide collective
bargaining agreements to which we are a party, hyaaggeements with Locals 700 and 839 of the Irggomal Alliance of Theatrical Stage
Employees (“IATSE”), which generally cover certairembers of our production staff, and an agreeméhttive Screen Actors Guild (“SAG”
which generally covers artists such as actors anggess. We believe that our employee and labotiozia are good.

Where You Can Find More Information

We are required to file annual, quarterly and autrreports, proxy statements and other informatidh the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”)These filings are not deemed to be incorporatexefarence into this report. You may read and copydocuments file
by us at the Public Reference Room of the SEC FL8@&eet, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may ebitsfiormation on the operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-88G-8®330. Our filings with the SEC are also avagatol the public through the SEC’s
website ahttp://www.sec.gov

Our common stock is currently listed on the Nasalader the symbol “DWA.” We maintain an Interneesit
http://www.DreamworksAnimation.conwe make available free of charge, on or throughvweebsite, our annual, quarterly and current respor
as well as any amendments to these reports, asasa@asonably practicable after electronicallpdithese reports with, or furnishing them to,
the SEC. We have adopted a code of ethics appdicatiur principal executive, financial and accinmbfficers. We make available free of
charge, on or through our website’s investor refegipage, our code of ethics. Our website andnfleenhation posted on it or connected to it
shall not be deemed to be incorporated by refergmoehis or any other report we file with, or figh to, the SEC.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

This report and other documents we file with th€ $Bntain forward-looking statements that are basedurrent expectations,
estimates, forecasts and projections about usfuture performance, our business or others actingor behalf, our beliefs and our
management’s assumptions. These statements agaia@ntees of future performance and involve cartaks, uncertainties and assumptions
that are difficult to predict. You should carefutlgnsider the risks and uncertainties facing ousibass. The risks described below are not the
only ones facing us. Our business is also subjetitd risks that affect many other companies, ssofjeneral economic conditions and
geopolitical events. Further, additional risks matrrently known to us or that we currently beli@re immaterial could have a mater;
adverse effect on our business, financial conditipnperating results.

Our success is primarily dependent on audience aq@@ance of our films, which is extremely difficult o predict and, therefore, inherently
risky.

We cannot predict the economic success of any iofmmtion pictures because the revenue derived frendistribution of a motio
picture (which does not necessarily directly catehwith
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the production or distribution costs incurred) deggeprimarily upon its acceptance by the publiciclwitannot be accurately predicted. The
economic success of a motion picture also depepas the public’s acceptance of competing films,atailability of alternative forms of
entertainment and leisure-time activities, genecainomic conditions and other tangible and intded#ixtors, all of which can change and
cannot be predicted with certainty. Furthermoret pathe appeal of CG (“computer-generated”) angddilms such as ours may be due to
their relatively recent introduction to the markéte cannot assure you that the introduction of agsimnated filmmaking techniques, an
increase in the number of CG animated films orréseirgence in popularity of older animated filmnmaktechniques will not adversely affect
the popularity of CG animated films.

In general, the economic success of a motion mdsidependent on its theatrical performance, wisiehkey factor in predicting revenue
from other distribution channels and is largelyedetined by our ability to produce content and depeitories and characters that appeal to a
broad audience and by the effective marketing eftiotion picture. If we are unable to accuratetigiiaudience acceptance of our film
content or to have the film effectively marketdte tommercial success of the film will be in dowtdtjch could result in costs not being
recouped or anticipated profits not being realiaddreover, we cannot assure you that any partidekture film will generate enough revenue
to offset its distribution, fulfillment services @marketing costs, in which case we would not reeany net revenues for such film from
Paramount. In the past, some of our films haveewivered their production costs, after recouproémarketing, fulfilment services and
distribution costs, in an acceptable timeframetalla

Our business is currently substantially dependent pon the success of a limited number of film releaseeach year and the unexpected
delay or commercial failure of any one of them coul have a material adverse effect on our financialesults.

Historically our business plan has been to reléaseanimated feature films per year. In 2009, wecamced that, beginning in 2010, we
expect to release five animated feature films etwnyyears. The unexpected delay in release or cangial failure of just one of these films
could have a significant adverse impact on ourltesd operations in both the year of release anthé future. Historically, feature films that
are successful in the domestic theatrical markeganerally also successful in the internationattical, home entertainment and television
markets, although each film is different and theneo way to guarantee such results. If our filaistb achieve domestic box office success,
their international box office and home entertaintr®iccess and our business, results of operatimthéinancial condition could be adversely
affected. Further, we can make no assurancestthdistorical correlation between domestic boxceffiesults and international box office and
home entertainment results will continue in theufat In fact, over the last several years doméiséatrical results and foreign theatrical results
have become less directly correlated than in tis¢ Mdhile we have generally seen growth in ourifpréheatrical results, it has come in
countries where the home entertainment markettigsioobust as in the United States or Westerng&uro
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Our home entertainment business is currently expeencing significant changes as a result of rapid thaological change and shifting
consumer preferences and behavior. We cannot predithe effect that these changes and shifting prefences will have on the revenue
from and profitability of our films.

During the last 10 years, a significant amountwfr@venues and profitability have resulted fronesaf DVDs in the home
entertainment market. Since 2005, there has beenaral decline in both the number of DVD unitsisatd the profitability of such units, and
such decline accelerated during 2010. We beliegttths decline is a result of various technolob@mvances and changes in consumer
preferences and behavior. Consumers (especialiyreh) are spending an increasing amount of timtherinternet and mobile devices, and
technology in these areas continues to evolve kagid addition, consumers are increasingly viewdmgptent on a time-delayed or on-demand
basis from the Internet, on their televisions andhandheld or portable devices. As a result, waabassure you that consumers will continue
to use the DVD format for their home entertainm®&é must adapt our businesses to changing consaehewrior and preferences and exploit
new distribution channels or find new and enhaneays to deliver our films in the home entertainmmiatrket. There can be no assurances
we will be able to do so or that we will be ableatthieve historical revenues or margin levels chdousiness. During 2010, three large
retailers, Walmart, Target and Best Buy, accoufdeadpproximately 53% of the Company’s domestic Ds¥dbes. If these and other retailers’
support of the DVD format decreases, the Compamgslts of operations could be materially adverséfgcted.

Our operating results fluctuate significantly.

We continue to expect significant fluctuations ur éuture quarterly and annual operating resultsabee of a variety of factors, including
the following:

» the potential varying levels of success of ourdeafilms and other entertainme
» the timing of the domestic and international thieatreleases and home entertainment release déature films;

» our distribution arrangements with Paramount, witizhse us to recognize significantly less revenum fa film in the period of a
film’s initial theatrical release than we would abskesé agreements; a

» the timing of development expenses and varyingl$eskesuccess of our new business ventt

We currently operate principally in one business,he production of animated family entertainment, andour lack of a diversified
business could adversely affect us.

Unlike most of the major studios, which are partaofe diversified corporate groups with a varietyther operations, we curren
depend primarily on the success of our featuresfigmd other properties. For example, unlike us,yneéithe major studios are part of corpol
groups that include television networks and cahkmnaoels that can provide stable sources of earsindsash flows that offset fluctuations in
the financial performance of their feature filmse\Wén the other hand, currently derive substagtéllof our revenue from a single source—
our animated family entertainmentrd our lack of a diversified business model caddersely affect us if our feature films or otheopgertie:
fail to perform to our expectations.
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The Company has recently developed and is currently the process of developing a number of projecthat are not feature films,
which will involve upfront and ongoing expenses anthay not ultimately be successful.

As part of the Compalr's plan of diversifying its revenue sources, the @any has recently produced and is currently devweipp
number of projects that are not feature films. Ehaojects include several live shows, animatesligion specials and series and an online
virtual world. Some of these new businesses areréttily riskier than the Company’s traditional aated feature film business. These projects
also require varying amounts of upfront and ong@rgenditures, some of which are or may be sigaificand may place a strain on the
Company’s management resources. While the Compamgraly believes that it has adequate sourceapital to fund these development and
operating expenditures, there can be no assurdmaesuch resources will be available to the CompBRarther, to the extent that the Company
needs to hire additional personnel to develop ersee these projects, the Company may be unableettalented individuals. Finally, we
cannot provide any assurances that all or anyesfetiprojects will ultimately be completed or, ifrq@eted, successful. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, ti&hrek The Musicaburing show and thKung Fu Pandaonline virtual world did not achieve the operatiegults that
had been expected. As a result, during the fouréhrtgr of 2010, the Company recorded an impairrokatge of $11.9 million related to the
online virtual world and $7.9 million related tcetkouring show.

Animated films are expensive to produce and the umetainties inherent in their production could resut in the expenditure of significant
amounts on films that are abandoned or significangl delayed.

Animated films are expensive to produce. The prdaoccompletion and distribution of animated featfilms is subject to a number of
uncertainties, including delays and increased edipgmes due to creative problems, technical diffies, talent availability, accidents, natural
disasters or other events beyond our control. Bexafithese uncertainties, the projected costa ehamated feature film at the time it is set
production may increase, the date of completion begubstantially delayed or the film may be abaedadue to the exigencies of production.
In extreme cases, a film in production may be abaad or significantly modified (including as a riésaf creative changes) after substantial
amounts have been spent, causing the write-ofkpérses incurred with respect to the film.

Animated films typically take longer to produce than live-action films, which increases the uncertainés inherent in their production
and distribution.

Animated feature films typically take three to fourars (or longer) to produce after the initial elepment stage, as opposed to an
average of 12 to 18 months for live-action film&eTadditional time that it takes to produce andasé an animated feature film increases the
risk that our films in production will fall out davor with target audiences and that competingdiimill be released in advance of or
concurrently with ours, either of which risks couttluce the demand for or popular appeal of oonsfil
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The production and marketing of animated feature fims and other properties is capital-intensive and ur capacity to generate cash
from our films may be insufficient to meet our anttipated cash requirements.

The costs to develop, produce and market a filnsabstantial. In 2010, for example, we spent apprately $323.1 million to fun
production costs (excluding overhead expense) @anabke contingent compensation and residual paynEat the year ending December 31,
2011, we expect our commitments to fund productiosts (excluding overhead expense) and to makéngemt compensation and residual
payments (on films released to date) will be appnately $397.0 million. Although we retain the righ exploit each of the films that we have
previously released, the size of our film libragyinsubstantial compared to the film librariesha major United States (“U.S.”) movie studios,
which typically have the ability to exploit hundeedf library titles. Library titles can provide tabBle source of earnings and cash flows that
offset fluctuations in the financial performancenefvly released films. Many of the major studios tigese cash flows, as well as cash flows
from their other businesses, to finance the pradnand marketing of new feature films. We areatdae to rely on such cash flows and are
required to fund our films in development and pretéhn and other commitments with cash retained foparations, the proceeds of films that
are generating revenue from theatrical, home exitenent and ancillary markets and borrowings under$125 million revolving credit
facility. If our films fail to perform, we may befced to seek substantial sources of outside fingn&uch financing may not be available in
sufficient amounts for us to continue to make satial investments in the production of new anirddeature films or may be available only
on terms that are disadvantageous to us, eithghizh could have a material adverse effect on eowth or our business.

The costs of producing and marketing our feature fms have steadily increased and may increase in tlfigture, which may make it more
difficult for a film to generate a profit or compete against other films.

The production and marketing of theatrical feafilnes require substantial capital and the costproflucing and marketing feature films
have generally increased in recent years. Thede nasy continue to increase in the future, whicly make it more difficult for our films to
generate a profit or compete against other filmstdfically, production costs and marketing costgehrisen at a rate faster than increases in
either domestic admission to movie theaters or asliomn ticket prices. A continuation of this trenduld leave us more dependent for revenue
from other media, such as home entertainment,igétey international markets and new media.

Our decision to produce all of our films in stereosopic 3D may lead to decreased profitability of oufilms.

We released our first 3D filnMonsters vs. Aliens 2009. We expect that all of our future films hélso be released in stereoscopic 3D.
The Company has implemented a number of changesgooduction processes in order to produce sseauc 3D films. These changes have
increased the costs of producing our films, whicymake it more difficult for a film to generatgufit. There are currently a limited number
of movie theaters that are capable of screeningsfih stereoscopic 3D. Additionally, other entemagént companies are planning to release
films in stereoscopic 3D, which has increased tirepetition for 3D screens. While the number of 3pable movie theaters has increased
significantly and we believe will continue to inese over time, the costs to theater
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owners of purchasing 3D screening equipment may 8i@ increase, especially if theater owners areerned about the availability of
sufficient 3D titles to justify the expense. Fiyalthere have been limited sales of televisions@¥@® players capable of displaying
stereoscopic 3D images. While we believe that coress find the 3D movie experience to be at leashgsyable as the two-dimensional
experience, there can be no assurances that eisnffnumber of consumers will be willing to paglmér prices for stereoscopic 3D films and
DVDs, which may make it more difficult for us tocver the higher production costs.

We compete for audiences based on a number of facsp many of which are beyond our control.

The number of animated and live-action featuredih@leased by competitors, particularly the maj@.Wnotion picture studios, may
create an oversupply of product in the market aagl make it more difficult for our films to succeéd.particular, we compete directly against
other animated films and family-oriented live-aatiiims. Oversupply of such products (especialihigfh-profile “event” films such as ours)
may become most pronounced during peak releass,teneh as school holidays, national holidays hadstimmer release season, when th
attendance has traditionally been highest. Althouglseek to release our films during peak releiasest we cannot guarantee that we will be
able to release all of our films during those tiraad, therefore, may miss potentially higher gituss-office receipts. In addition, a substantial
majority of the motion picture screens in the Wypically are committed at any one time to onlyté@5 films distributed nationally by major
studio distributors. If our competitors were toriegse the number of films available for distribnteond the number of exhibition screens
(especially screens capable of showing 3D filme)aimed unchanged, it could be more difficult fortaiselease our films during optimal
release periods.

Changes in the United States, global or regional enomic conditions could adversely affect the profibility of our business.

Beginning in 2008, the global economy began expeiig a significant contraction, with an almost regedented lack of availability of
business and consumer credit. This decrease anfilitamg decrease in economic activity in the UlSnwther regions of the world in which
we do business could significantly and adversdigcafour results of operations and financial cdodiin a number of ways. Any decline in
economic conditions may reduce the performancaipfteeatrical and home entertainment releases arahases of our licensed consumer
products, thereby reducing our revenues and eaniig may also experience increased returns bsethiders that purchase our home
entertainment releases. Further, bankruptcieswifesievents by retailers, theater chains, televigietworks, other participants in our
distribution chain or other sources of revenue gryse us to incur bad debt expense at levels higherhistorically experienced or otherwise
cause our revenues to decrease. In periods of ggnieccreasing prices, or of increased price Isvela particular sector such as the energy
sector, we may experience a shift in consumer ddraamy from the entertainment and consumer produetsffer, which could also advers
affect our revenues and, at the same time, incr@aseosts.
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The seasonality of our businesses could exacerbategative impacts on our operations.

Our business is normally subject to seasonal vanatased on the timing of theatrical motion pietand home entertainment releases.
Release dates are determined by several factatsding timing of vacation and holiday periods amnpetition in the market. Also, revenues
in our consumer products business are influencdablly seasonal consumer purchasing behavior artitiiivgy of animated theatrical releases
and generally peak in the fiscal quarter of a fiirtiieatrical release. Accordingly, if a shtetm negative impact on our business occurs dua
time of high seasonal demand (such as naturaltdisaisa terrorist attack during the time of oneof theatrical or home entertainment
releases), the effect could have a disproportioefiget on our results for the year.

Strong existing film studios competing in the CG aimated film market and the entrance of additional @mpeting film producers could
adversely affect our business in several ways.

CG animation has been successfully exploited bsowimg number of film studios since the first CAraated feature filmToy Story,
was released by Pixar in 1995. In the past seyesis, a number of studios have entered the CGadméhiilm market, thus increasing the
number of CG animated films released per year.d heg no substantial technological barriers toyehtit prevent other film producers from
entering the field. Furthermore, advances in tetdgyomay substantially decrease the time thakié¢eto produce a CG animated feature film,
which could result in a significant number of ne® @nimated films or products. The entrance of &t companies into the CG animated
feature film market could adversely impact us kydérg our market share, increasing the competfoorCG animated film audiences and
increasing the competition for, and cost of, hirargl retaining talented employees, particularlyd@@nators and technical staff.

Our success depends on certain key employees.

Our success greatly depends on our employeestrticydar, we are dependent upon the services dfejeKatzenberg, our othi
executive officers and certain creative employee @s directors and producers. We do not maiki&imperson life insurance for any of our
employees. We have entered into employment agresmaétih Mr. Katzenberg and with all of our top exéee officers and production
executives. However, although it is standard inrtfegion picture industry to rely on employment agnents as a method of retaining the
services of key employees, these agreements casgote us of the continued services of such emgdoyighe loss of the services of
Mr. Katzenberg or a substantial group of key empésycould have a material adverse effect on oundss operating results or financial
condition.

Our scheduled releases of animated feature films drother projects may place a significant strain orour resources.

We have established multiple creative and prododéams so that we can simultaneously produce aleareimated feature films. In tt
past, we have been required, and may continue tedagred, to expand our employee base, incregstataxpenditures and procure additio
resources and facilities in order to accomplishsitteeduled releases of our entertainment projébis.growth and expansion has placed, and
continues to place, a significant strain on ououeses.
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We cannot provide any assurances that any of @jeqs will be released as targeted or that tihé&rsbn resources will not have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditioresults of operations.

We are dependent on Paramount for the distributionand marketing of our feature films and related prodicts.

In January 2006, we entered into the Paramountekgeats, pursuant to which Paramount and certaits affiliates are responsible for
the worldwide distribution and servicing of all@iir films in substantially all audio-visual mediiParamount fails to perform under either of
the Paramount Agreements, it could have a matadiedrse effect on our business reputation, operagisults or financial condition. In
addition, our grant of distribution and servicinghts to Paramount is expressly subject to cegaisting subdistribution, servicing and licen
agreements previously entered into by Old Dream\W&tkidios. Pursuant to the Paramount Agreementsjilveontinue to license to Old
DreamWorks Studios those distribution and servicigbts in and to existing and future films, to #rdent necessary for Old DreamWorks
Studios to comply with such existing sub-distribatiservicing and license agreements, including#igting sub-distribution, servicing and
licensing agreements that Old DreamWorks Studisseiméered into with other thindarty distributors and service providers. Upon emn of
our existing agreements, all distribution and seng rights that are subject to such agreementdwihutomatically granted to Paramount for
the remainder of the term of the Paramount Agreg¢s&iie cannot assure you that, upon expiratioudh sgreements, Paramount will be ¢
to replace such sub-distribution, servicing andrige agreements on terms as favorable as Old Dredms\Studios’ existing sub-distribution,
servicing and license agreements. For a descripfitime terms of the Paramount Distribution Agreetrend the Paramount Fulfillment
Services Agreement, see “ltem 1—Business—Distrilougind Servicing Arrangements—How We Distribut@nfote and Market Our Films.”

Although the Paramount Agreements obligate Paramtoutistribute and service our films, Paramourathie to terminate the agreeme
upon the occurrence of certain events of defaudtuding a failure by us to deliver to Paramountinimum number of films over specified
time periods. We are also able to terminate theeagents upon the occurrence of certain eventsfafilielf Paramount fails to perform under
the Paramount Agreements or the agreements arstged, we may have difficulty finding a replacermdistributor and service provider, in
part because our films could continue to be sulifetiie terms of the existing sub-distributionyvéging and licensing agreements that Old
DreamWorks Studios, Paramount or both have entatedvith thirdparty distributors and service providers that weehapproved. We cann
assure you that, as a result of existing agreenuerits other reasons, we will be able to find plaeement distributor or service provider on
terms as favorable as those in the Paramount Agnesm

Furthermore, in the event that the Paramount Ages¢snwere terminated, depending on the arrangetinaimive negotiated with a
replacement distributor or fulfillment services pider, we could be required to directly incur distition, servicing and marketing expenses
related to our films, which under the Paramounte®gnents are incurred by Paramount. Because we wapkhse those costs as incurred,
significant fluctuations in our operating resultitd result.
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Paramount provides us with certain services, whichf terminated, may increase our costs in future peods.

Under the terms of the Paramount Distribution Agreet, Paramount and certain of its affiliates hageeed to provide us with a variety
of services, including music licensing, music cregtmusic business affairs, archiving of film mréés, casting, the calculation and
administration of residuals and contingent compgmsdor our motion pictures, and compiling, preépgrand checking credits to be accorded
on our films and working and complying with MPAAles and regulations (including obtaining the MPAatimg for all of our motion picture:
Paramount has the right to terminate a servicenRauat is providing under the Paramount Distributdgreement if we are in breach of a
material provision related to such service. If ahyhe services provided to us by Paramount isiteatad, we will be required to either enter
into a new agreement with Paramount or anotheiiceprovider or assume the responsibility for éhfesictions ourselves. If we were to enter
into a new agreement with Paramount regarding aoly terminated services, hire a new services pesvdd assume such services ourselves,
the economic terms of the new arrangement maydsefésvorable than our current arrangement withrRauat, which may adversely affect «
business, financial condition or results of operadi

We are dependent on Paramount for the timely and awrate reporting of financial information related to the distribution of our films.

The amount of our net revenue and associated grofisrecognized in any given quarter or quarfessn all of our films depends on the
timing, accuracy and amount of information we reedrom Paramount, our third party distributor aedvice provider. Although we obtain
from Paramount the most current information avédélab recognize our revenue and determine ourdiloss profits, Paramount may make
subsequent revisions to the information that itgravided, which could have a significant impactusnin later periods. In addition, if we fail
receive accurate information from Paramount orttaileceive it on a timely basis, it could have @enial adverse effect on our business,
operating results or financial condition.

We face risks relating to the international distribution of our films and related products.

In recent years, we have derived approximately 49%ur feature film revenue from the exploitatichoar films in territories outside ¢
the United States. Additionally, some of our newen-feature film businesses are being or are eggdotbe conducted, at least partially,
outside of the U.S. As a result, our business ligesti to risks inherent in international trade, snafiwhich are beyond our control. These risks
include:

» fluctuating foreign exchange rates. For a moreildetaiscussion of the potential effects of fluding foreign exchange rates, please
see”ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurdsofit Market Ris” herein;

» laws and policies affecting trade, investment ane$, including laws and policies relating to tepatriation of funds an
withholding taxes and changes in these l¢

» differing cultural tastes and attitudes, includiragied censorship laws;

» differing degrees of protection for intellectuabperty;
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» financial instability and increased market concatidin of buyers in foreign television markets;
» the instability of foreign economies and governrsgand

» war and acts of terrorism.

Piracy of motion pictures, including digital and Internet piracy, may decrease revenue received fronmé exploitation of our films.

Unauthorized copying and piracy are prevalent mouss parts of the world, including in countriesevd we may have difficulty enforci
our intellectual property rights. Motion pictureggy is made easier by technological advancestenddnversion of motion pictures into dig
formats, which facilitates the creation, transnuiasind sharing of high-quality unauthorized copiesotion pictures. The increased consumer
acceptance of entertainment content deliveredrelaically and consumer acquisition of the hardwad software for facilitating electronic
delivery may also lead to greater public acceptafiamauthorized content. The proliferation of uthewized copies and piracy of these
products has an adverse affect on our businessibetiaese products reduce the revenue we receivedur legitimate products. Under our
agreements with Paramount, Paramount is substigirgabonsible for enforcing our intellectual prageights with respect to all of our films
subject to the Paramount Agreements and is reqtorethintain security and argiracy measures consistent with the highest lavetsintains
for its own motion pictures in each territory irettvorld. Other than the remedies we have in tharRaunt Agreements, we have no way of
requiring Paramount to take any anti-piracy acti@amsl Paramount’s failure to take such actions maylt in our having to undertake such
measures ourselves, which could result in signitiexpenses and losses of indeterminate amounevefiue. Even if applied, there can be no
assurance that the highest levels of security atichaacy measures will prevent piracy.

While we believe we currently have adequate interdaontrol over financial reporting, we are required to assess our internal control
over financial reporting on an annual basis and anyuture adverse results from such assessment coulesult in a loss of investor
confidence in our financial reports and have an aderse effect on our stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (tidact04”) and the accompanying rules and regutatioromulgated by the SEC to
implement it require us to include in our Form 1@ annual report by our management regardingffeetiweness of our internal control over
financial reporting. The report includes, amongeotthings, an assessment of the effectivenessrahtarnal control over financial reporting as
of the end of our fiscal year. This assessment imakide disclosure of any material weaknessesirirgernal control over financial reporting
identified by management.

During this process, if our management identifies or more material weaknesses in our internalrabaver financial reporting that
cannot be remediated in a timely manner, we willbable to assert such internal control is effecti¥hile we currently believe our internal
control over financial reporting is effective, teffectiveness of our internal controls in futureipés is subject to the risk that our controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditindsas a result, the degree of compliance ofremal control over financial reporting
with the applicable
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policies or procedures may deteriorate. If we ar@ble to conclude that our internal control oveaficial reporting is effective as of
December 31, 2011 (or if our independent auditigagtee with our conclusion), we could lose investmfidence in the accuracy and
completeness of our financial reports, which wcwa@e an adverse effect on our stock price.

We could be adversely affected by strikes and othemion activity.

Along with the major U.S. film studios, we emploembers of IATSE on many of our productions. Weaneently subject to collectiv
bargaining agreements with IATSE, the Local 838AGfSE (the Animation Guild and Affiliated Opticall&ctronic and Graphic Arts), the
Local 700 of IATSE (the Motion Picture Editors Gl)iland SAG. In 2009, as a result of our developroéan online virtual world, we became
a signatory to a collective bargain agreement WHTRA. We may also become subject to additionadlextive bargaining agreements. A st
by one or more of the unions that provide persoesséntial to the production of our feature filrosld delay or halt our ongoing production
activities. Such a halt or delay, depending on¢hgth of time involved, could cause a delay ofrtlease date of our feature films and thereby
could adversely affect the revenue that the fil@segate. In addition, strikes by unions with whiad do not have a collective bargaining
agreement (such as the 2008 strike by the Writeikl®f America) can have adverse effects on thtertainment industry in general and, thus,
indirectly on us.

Business interruptions could adversely affect our perations.

Our operations are vulnerable to outages and igdans due to fire, floods, power loss, telecominations failures and similar events
beyond our control. In addition, our two studios brcated in California—one in Southern Califorared one in Northern California. These
areas in California have in the past and may irfuhere be subject to earthquakes as well as @atblackouts as a consequence of a shortage
of available electrical power. Although we have eleped certain plans to respond in the event aéaster, there can be no assurance that they
will be effective in the event of a specific disastn the event of a short-term power outage, asehnstalled UPS (uninterrupted power
source) equipment designed to protect our CG aimatndering equipment and other sensitive equipinfelong-term power outage,
however, could disrupt our operations. Prices fecteicity have in the past risen dramatically analy increase in the future. An increase in
prices would increase our operating costs, whiahdccm turn adversely affect our profitability. Albugh we currently carry business
interruption insurance for potential losses (inahgdearthquake-related losses), there can be mwaag=e that such insurance will be sufficient
to compensate us for losses that may occur ostiat insurance may continue to be available onddfde terms. Any losses or damages
incurred by us could have a material adverse effeaur business and results of operations.

Potential acquisitions could negatively affect oubperating results.

From time to time, we may enter into discussiomggrding acquisition opportunities, both in connativith our traditional animation
business or new types of businesses. To the ei@ihive consummate acquisitions, there can be swrasce that such acquisitions will be
successfully integrated by us or that such acdoistwill not adversely affect our results of ogernas, cash flows or financial condition.
Moreover, there can be no assurance that we waldbe to identify
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acquisition candidates available for sale at realslenprices or consummate any acquisition or thatdiscussions will result in an acquisition.
Any such acquisitions may require significant aiddial capital resources and there can be no assithat we will have access to adequate
capital resources to effect such future acquisition

A variety of uncontrollable events may reduce demashfor our entertainment products or otherwise advesely affect our business.

Demand for our products and services is highly ddpat on the general environment for entertainraadtother leisure activities. Tl
environment for these activities can be signifigantversely affected in the U.S. or worldwide agsult of variety of factors beyond our
control, including terrorist activities, militarycBions, adverse weather conditions or natural thss®r health concerns. Such events could have
a material adverse effect on our business andtsesubperations. Similarly, an outbreak of a mautr infectious disease could negatively
affect the public’s willingness to see our filmstireatres. Finally, the ongoing effects of glodahate change could adversely affect our
business. Various proposals have been discussled federal and state level to limit the carbonssioins of business enterprises, which if
enacted could result in an increase in our costpefations. The effects of climate change coldd Bhave unpredictable effects on consumer
movie attendance patterns.

To be successful, we must continue to attract anetain qualified personnel and our inability to do ® would adversely affect the quality
of our films.

Our success continues to depend to a significaenern our ability to identify, attract, hire, imeand retain qualified creative, technical
and managerial personnel. Competition for the ealdd talent required to make our films, particlydor our film directors, producers, writers,
animators, creative and technology personnel,asititinue to intensify as other studios, some witbssantially larger financial resources than
ours, build their in-house animation or speciakef§ capabilities. The entrance of additional Siimdios into the animated film industry or the
increased production capacity of existing film stgdwill increase the demand for the limited numbketalented CG animators and
programmers. There can be no assurance that wbendliccessful in identifying, attracting, hiritgining and retaining such qualified
personnel in the future. If we are unable to hird eetain qualified personnel in the future, paiticly film directors, producers, animators,
creative personnel and technical directors, thetgdcbe a material adverse effect on our busirggssating results or financial condition.

We depend on technology and computer systems foreghimely and successful development of our animatddature films and related
products.

Because we are dependent upon a large numbertafssefapplications and hardware for the developraadtproduction of our animat
feature films and other projects, an error or deffethe software, a failure in the hardware, éufai of our backup facilities or a delay in
delivery of products and services could resultigmi§icantly increased production costs for a pebjdoreover, if a software or hardware
problem is significant enough, it could result las in one or more productions, which in turnldaesult in potentially significant delays in
the release dates of our feature films or affectadnility to complete the production of a featuitenfor other project.
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Significant delays in production and significantayes in release dates, as well as the failure toptete a production, could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations. Iritead we must ensure that our production environhietegrates the latest animation tools and
techniques developed in the industry so that oojepts remain competitive. To accomplish this, &g either develop these capabilities by
upgrading our proprietary software, which can resusubstantial research and development costsearan seek to purchase third-party
licenses, which can also result in significant exgitires. In the event we seek to develop thesabilities internally, there is no guarantee that
we will be successful in doing so. In the eventssek to obtain third-party licenses, we cannotanuiae that they will be available or, once
obtained, will continue to be available on commaigireasonable terms, or at all.

Our revenue may be adversely affected if we fail tprotect certain of our proprietary technology or enhance or develop new technology.

We depend on certain of our proprietary technolmggevelop and produce our animated feature filntsather projects. We rely or
combination of patents, copyright and trade sqm@tection and non-disclosure agreements to estabfid protect our proprietary rights. From
time to time, we may have patent applications psgnéi the United States or other countries. We otprovide any assurances that patents
will issue from any of these pending applicationshat, if patents do issue, any claims allowed kél sufficiently broad to protect our
technology or that they will not be challenged aliwated or circumvented. In addition, to produce jprojects we also rely on third-party
software, which is readily available to others.Ii&@ of our patents, copyrights and trade secmaeption, non-disclosure agreements and other
measures to provide protection of our technologythe availability of third-party software may makeasier for our competitors to obtain
technology equivalent to or superior to our tecbgyl If our competitors develop or license techgglthat is superior to ours or that makes
technology obsolete, we may be required to inaymicant costs to enhance or acquire new techryodogthat our feature films and other
projects remain competitive. Such costs could feareaterial adverse affect on our business, finaoordition or results of operations.

In addition, we may be required to litigate in fo&ure to enforce our intellectual property rightsprotect our trade secrets, to determine
the validity and scope of the proprietary rightotfers or to defend against claims of infringen@rinvalidity. Any such litigation could resi
in substantial costs and diversion of resourcesldceffectively prevent us from using importanttteology and could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or fssof operations.

Third-party technology licenses may not continue tde available to us in the future.

In addition to our proprietary technology, we alsty on certain technology that we license fromdhgarties, including software that we
use with our proprietary software. We cannot prevagly assurances that these tipiagity technology licenses will continue to be aaalié to u:
on commercially reasonable terms or at all or thattechnology licenses will not result in intetleal property infringement claims by third
parties. The loss of or inability to maintain arfitttiese technology licenses could result in deiaywoject releases until equivalent technology
could be identified, licensed and integrated to plete a given project. Any such delays or failireproject releases could materially adver
affect our business, financial condition or resofteperations.
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Others may assert intellectual property infringemen claims against us.

One of the risks of the CG animated film productimrsiness is the possibility of claims that ourjeets and production techniques
misappropriate or infringe the intellectual progeights of third parties with respect to theiriaology, software, previously developed films,
stories, characters, copyrights, trademarks, ahtartainment or intellectual property. We havesiead, and are likely to receive in the future,
claims of infringement of other parties’ proprigtaights. There can be no assurance that infringémemisappropriation claims (or claims for
indemnification resulting from such claims) willtnoe asserted or prosecuted against us, or thaassgrtions or prosecutions will not
materially adversely affect our business, financ@ldition or results of operations. Regardlesthefvalidity or the successful assertion of s
claims, we could incur significant costs and dii@nf resources with respect to the defense tiigndach could have a material adverse ef
on our business, financial condition or resultepérations. If any claims or actions are asserg@ihat us, we may seek to obtain a license of a
third-party’s intellectual property rights. We cannot provigg assurances, however, that under such circuneganticense would be availa
on reasonable terms or at all.

We may incur significant write-offs if our feature films and other projects do not perform well enoughto recoup production, marketing
and distribution costs.

We are required to amortize capitalized productiosis over the expected revenue streams as wenigeaggvenue from the associa
films or other projects. The amount of productiasts that will be amortized each quarter dependso@nmuch future revenue we expect to
receive from each project. Unamortized productiosts are evaluated for impairment each reportimgpg@®n a project-by-project basis. If
estimated remaining revenue is not sufficient tover the unamortized production costs, the unamsattproduction costs will be written
down to fair value. In any given quarter, if we lwour previous forecast with respect to total@péted revenue from any individual feature
film or other project, we would be required to decate amortization of related costs. For instaicéhe quarter ended December 31, 2006, we
incurred a write-down of $108.6 million for a chanig the estimated fair value of unamortized filosts forFlushed Away Such accelerated
amortization would adversely impact our busineggrating results and financial condition.

Our online virtual world business and other onlineactivities are subject to a variety of laws and regjations relating to privacy and child
protection, which, if violated, could subject us tan increased risk of litigation and regulatory acions.

In March 2010, our online virtual worl&kung Fu Panda World became commercially available. This virtual woxdich is based on
our 2008 theatrical releageung Fu Panda is targeted primarily to children between thesagkeseven and 13. We also use social media and
other Internet websites to market our projects@mthect with consumers. A variety of laws and ragiohs have been adopted over the last
several years aimed at protecting children usiedriernet. These laws include the federal Childr@mline Privacy and Protection Act of
1998 (“COPPA"). COPPA sets forth, among other thjrgnumber of restrictions on what website opesatan present to children under the
age of 13 and what information can be collectechftbem.Kung Fu Panda Worlthas been developed and created in manner thatliggee
complies with COPPA and other laws and regulatepysicable to online virtual worlds. However, itth
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Company'’s virtual world or other online activitie®re to violate any applicable current or futunedaand regulations, the Company could be
subject to litigation and regulatory actions, irtihg fines and other penalties. Additionally, then@pany currently uses a subscription mod:
generate revenue from the virtual world, under Whisers pay for access through monthly or othéogiercharges to their credit cards. Any
unauthorized disclosure of our users’ credit cardtber personally identifiable information coulkult in claims and lawsuits against us, as
well as damage to our reputation as a family-frigrdntent provider.

If our stock price fluctuates, you could lose a sigficant part of your investment.

The market price of our Classéd@mmon stock may be influenced by many factors,esohwhich are beyond our control, including th
described above and the following:

» changes in financial estimates by analy

* announcements by us or our competitors of sigmificantracts, productions, acquisitions or cagitahmitments;
e variations in quarterly operating resul

» general economic conditions;

» terrorist acts;

» future sales of our common stock; &

» investor perception of us and the filmmaking indyst

Our stock price may also experience fluctuationa eesult of the limited number of outstanding skahat are able to be sold in an
unrestricted manner (often referred to as the ‘jputdat”). As a result of our limited public flogtarge transactions by institutional investors
may result in increased volatility in our stockageri In addition, the stock market in general haggedrnced extreme price and volume
fluctuations that have often been unrelated todisproportionate to the operating performance ofimetudios. These broad market and
industry factors may materially reduce the marketepof our Class A common stock, regardless ofaperating performance.

Future sales of our shares, including sales that ngabccur in connection with follow-on offerings that we have agreed to effect for ceatn
of our stockholders, may cause the market price ajur Class A common stock to drop significantly, eveif our business is doing well.

Each of Jeffrey Katzenberg, David Geffen or erditientrolled by them or their permitted transferigesble to sell shares in the public
market from time to time without registering thesaubject to certain limitations on the timing, amband method of those sales imposed by
Rule 144 under the Securities Act. In additionjtez® controlled by each of Jeffrey Katzenberg Bradid Geffen (and certain of their permit
transferees) have the right to cause us to regtstesale of shares of Class A common stock baabfiowned by them. If any of Jeffrey
Katzenberg, David Geffen or entities controlledtbym or their respective permitted transferees wesell a large number of their shares, the
market price of our Class A common stock could idecsignificantly. In addition, the perception hlretpublic markets that sales by them might
occur could also adversely affect the market pofceur Class A common stock.
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Also, in the future, we may issue our securitiesannection with investments and acquisitions. ameunt of our common stock issued
in connection with an investment or acquisitionldazonstitute a material portion of our then-outsiag common stock.

A few significant stockholders control the directio of our business. The concentrated ownership of o@ommon stock and certain
corporate governance arrangements will prevent yoand other stockholders from influencing significantcorporate decisions.

Jeffrey Katzenberg, David Geffen and entities calgd by them own 100% of our Class B common stoglresenting approximate
13% of our common equity and approximately 69%heftbtal voting power of our common stock. Accogiyn Jeffrey Katzenberg and David
Geffen or entities controlled by them generally daétve collective ability to control (without thensent of our other stockholders) all matters
requiring stockholder approval, including the noation and election of directors, the determinattbour corporate and management policies
and the determination of the outcome of any coredransaction or other matter submitted to oucldiolders for approval, including potential
mergers or acquisitions, asset sales and otheifisagrt corporate transactions. In addition, thepddportionate voting rights of the Class B
common stock relative to the Class A common stoalk make us a less attractive takeover target.

The interests of our controlling and significant sbckholders may conflict with the interests of our ther stockholders.

We cannot assure you that the interests of JeKetgenberg, David Geffen or entities controlledthym will coincide with the interests
of the holders of our Class A common stock. Fomeple, Jeffrey Katzenberg and David Geffen, or exgticontrolled by them, could cause us
to make acquisitions that increase the amount pfrmlebtedness or outstanding shares of commoR stogell revenue-generating assets.
Jeffrey Katzenberg and David Geffen may pursue iaitqpn opportunities that may be complementargio business, and as a result, those
acquisition opportunities may not be availableoQur restated certificate of incorporation pregdor the allocation of corporate
opportunities between us, on the one hand, andinest our founding stockholders, on the other havtiich could prevent us from taking
advantage of certain corporate opportunities. 8g ks Jeffrey Katzenberg, David Geffen or entiti@strolled by them continue to collectively
own shares of our Class B common stock with sigaift voting power, Jeffrey Katzenberg and Davidf&efor entities controlled by them,
will continue to collectively be able to stronghfluence or effectively control our decisions.

Additionally, in connection with the Separation emtered into a tax receivable agreement with dlicaéf of Paul Allen, who was
previously a director and significant stockhold&s.a result of certain transactions that entitistiolled by Paul Allen engaged in, the tax
basis of our assets was partially increased (fhax‘Basis Increas€) and the amount of tax we may pay in the futurexjseeted to be reduct
during the approximately 1$ear amortization period for such increased taxsbamder the tax receivable agreement, we ardnedjto pay tc
such affiliate 85% of the amount of any cash savingcertain taxes resulting from the Tax Basigdase and certain other related tax benefits,
subject to repayment if it is determined that theséngs should not have been available to us.ngutie years ended December 31, 2009 and
2010, we made payments (net of refunds) totalirgySillion and $26.9 million, respectively, to Mxllen's affiliate. As of December 31,
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2010, we have recorded a liability of $329.6 millim Mr. Allen’s affiliate. We expect that $27.5Ihain will become payable during the next
12 months (which is subject to the finalizatioroof 2010 tax returns) and the remainder will becpiagable over the next several years. The
significant increase in the liability due to Mr.1&h’s affiliate as of December 31, 2010 was attable to the reversal of a substantial portion of
our valuation allowance held against our defereedaissets during the year ended December 31, BDa@dition, this liability may increase in
the future to the extent that new deferred taxtagesult in realized tax benefits that are suljiethe tax receivable agreement. See Risk F
entitled “Changes in effective tax rates or advexsieomes resulting from examination of our incamereturns could adversely affect our
results.”

As a result of the tax receivable agreement, ttegésts of Paul Allen and entities controlled by lasind the holders of our Class A
common stock could differ. The actual amount amdrtg of any payments under the tax receivable ageaé will vary depending upon a
number of factors. The payments that may be ma#atb Allen’s affiliate pursuant to the tax recdilmagreement could be substantial. For a
further discussion of the tax receivable agreenssd,Note 9 to our audited consolidated finant&#ements and “Item 7—Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations—Ciritical Accounting Policgsl Estimates—Provision for Income
Taxes.”

Anti-takeover provisions of our charter and by-laws as well as Delaware law may reduce the likelihooaf any potential change of
control or unsolicited acquisition proposal that ya might consider favorable.

The ant-takeover provisions of Delaware law impose variousediments to the ability of a third party to argucontrol of us, even if
change in control would be beneficial to our exigtstockholders. Additionally, provisions of outacter and by-laws could deter, delay or
prevent a third-party from acquiring us, even ifrdpso would benefit our stockholders. These piowusinclude:

» the division of our capital stock into Class A coomstock, entitled to one vote per share, and Bassmmon stock, entitled to 15
votes per share, all of which Class B common stuidkinitially be owned or controlled by Jeffrey Kzenberg and David Geffe

» the authority of the board to issue preferred stoitk terms as the board may determine;
» the absence of cumulative voting in the electiodioéctors;

« following such time as the outstanding shares as€B common stock cease to represent a majoriheafombined voting power of
the voting stock, prohibition on stockholder actimnwritten consent

« limitations on who may call special meetings otcktwlders;
» advance notice requirements for stockholder prdppsa

» following such time as the outstanding shares as€B common stock cease to represent a majoribeafombined voting power
the voting stock, sup-majority voting requirements for stockholders toest the b-laws; anc

» stockholder super-majority voting requirementsrtead certain provisions of the charter.
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Changes in effective tax rates or adverse outcomessulting from examination of our income tax returns could adversely affect our
results.

Our future effective tax rates could be adverséflgcéed by changes in the valuation of our defeteedassets and liabilities, or
changes in tax laws, regulations, accounting ppiesior interpretations thereof. In addition, we swbject to the examination of our income
returns by the Internal Revenue Service and otheatithorities. The Internal Revenue Service isetuly auditing our tax returns for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2008. Our Califorata $ax returns for the period October 27, 200duph December 31, 2004 and for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 asntly under examination by the California FrasehTax Board. We regularly assess
likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from thesaminations to determine the adequacy of ourigiav for income taxes. While we
believe that we have adequately provided for oxtigdilities, including the outcome of these exaations, it is possible that the amount paid
upon resolution of issues raised may differ from d&mount provided. There can be no assurancehghattcomes from these examinations
not have an adverse effect on our financial coouitir results of operations. As of December 31020d concluded that it was more likely
than not that our deferred tax assets were reddizatd that substantially all of the related valragllowance previously established was no
longer needed. This conclusion was based uponx@aceation of sufficient future taxable income adlyf utilize these assets. However, as
indicated by the above Risk Factor entitled “Ouergping results fluctuate significantly,” therenis assurance that we will attain our future
expected levels of taxable income or that a vadmagilowance against new or existing deferred &pets will not be necessary in the future.

ltem 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments
The Company has received no written comments ragaits periodic or current reports from the staffthe Securities and Exchan
Commission that were issued 180 days or more pregeide end of its 2010 fiscal year and that remairesolved.

ltem 2. Properties
We conduct our business primarily in two stu—in Glendale, California, where we are headquarteaad in Redwood City, Californi

Glendale Animation Campus

Our Glendale animation campus houses a majoriuoEmployees. During 2010, we completed a longrewnstruction project that
expanded the size of our headquarters to approgiyna®0,000 square feet.

Redwood City Facilit

In 2002, we entered into a 10-year lease agreefoentir approximately 100,000 square feet of ofpace in Redwood City, California.
In September 2009, we entered into a three-yeae lagreement for an additional 15,000 square fesftioe space in Redwood City. In
anticipation of the expiration of our 2002 and 20€&ses, in November 2010 we entered into a neyehflease agreement with respect to
approximately 193,000 square feet of office spadeedwood City, California. We currently anticip#itat we will occupy this new office
space during the second half of 2011.
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ltem 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time we are involved in legal procegdi arising in the ordinary course of our businggscally intellectual property
litigation and infringement claims related to oeafure films, which could cause us to incur sigaifit expenses or prevent us from releasing a
film. We also have been the subject of patent apyight claims relating to technology and ideaat the may use or feature in connection
with the production, marketing or exploitation afrdeature films, which may affect our ability torginue to do so. While the resolution of
these matters cannot be predicted with certaingydanot believe, based on current knowledge ahwptexisting legal proceedings or claims

are likely to have a material adverse effect onfmancial position, results of operations or céstws.

ltem 4. Removed and Reserve:
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Executive Officers of the Registrant
The following table sets forth information as ta executive officers, together with their positiarsd ages.

Name Age Position

Jeffrey Katzenber 60 Chief Executive Officer and Directi

Lewis Colemar 69 President, Chief Financial Officer and Direc

Ann Daly 54 Chief Operating Office

Andrew Chanc 45 General Counsel and Corporate Secre

Anne Globe 48 Head of Worldwide Marketing and Consumer Prod:
John Batte 47 Cc-President of Productic

Rich Sullivan 38 Head of Corporate Finan

Daniel Satterthwait 42 Head of Human Resourc

Heather ¢ Connor 40 Chief Accounting Office

Our executive officers are appointed by, and satwhe discretion of, the Board of Directors. Eagbcutive officer is an employee of
DreamWorks Animation. There is no family relatioigshetween any executive officer or director of @r@Norks Animation. Set forth below
is a brief description of the business experierfdb@persons serving as our executive officers:

Jeffrey Katzenberg—Chief Executive Officer and @oe  Mr. Katzenberg has served as our Chief Exeeutifficer and member of
our Board of Directors since October 2004. Dreanmk&dnimation is the largest animation studio in Wald and has released a total of 21
animated feature films, which have enjoyed a nunoberitical and commercial theatrical successé®sE include the franchise properties
Shrek, Madagascar, Kung Fu PandandHow to Train Your Dragon Under Mr. Katzenberg's leadership, DreamWorksnAation became
the first studio to produce all of its feature fdrim 3D and in 2010 became the first Company teas three CG feature films in 3D in a single
year. Mr. Katzenberg founded and was a principal member of DreamWorksQ. (“Old DreamWorks Studios”) from its foundirirgy
October 1994 until its sale to Paramount in Jan@806. Prior to founding Old DreamWorks Studios, Matzenberg served as chairman of
The Walt Disney Studios from 1984 to 1994. As almain, he was responsible for the worldwide productinarketing and distribution of all
Disney filmed entertainment, including motion pigs, television, cable, syndication, home entemaint and interactive entertainment. Dut
his tenure, the studio produced a number of live@a@nd animated box office hits, includidého Framed Roger Rabbit, The Little Mermaid,
Beauty and the Beast, Alad@andThe Lion King. Prior to joining Disney, Mr. Katzenberg was pdesit of Paramount Studios. Mr. Katzent
is Chairman of the Board of The Motion Picture &éwsion Fund Foundation. He serves on the Boafdd@S Project Los Angeles,
American Museum of the Moving Image, Cedars-Sinatial Center, California Institute of the Arts,ftda Playhouse, Michael J. Fox
Foundation for Parkinson’s Research and The Sima@s&vithal Center. He is co-chairman of the Credigihts Committee of the Directors
Guild of America and the Committee on the Professi®Gtatus of Writers of the Writers Guild of Anti With over 30 years of experience in
the entertainment industry, Mr. Katzenberg bringsiaparalleled level of expertise and knowledgthefCompany’s core business to the
Board. Among the many accomplishments of his leng#reer, he has been responsible for the produofimany of the most successful
animated films of all time.
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Lewis Coleman— President, Chief Financial Officer and Director Mr. Coleman has served as our President shecember 2005, our
Chief Financial Officer since February 2007 andeaher of our Board of Directors since December 26fé6served as our Chief Accounting
Officer from May 2007 until September 2007. He giseviously served as a member of our Board ofdars from October 2004 until his
resignation from our Board of Directors in Decemp@@5 to assume his new role as President. Prdyjdweswas the president of the Gordon
and Betty Moore Foundation from its founding in awer 2000 to December 2004. Prior to that, Mre@ain was employed by Banc of
America Securities, formerly known as Montgomerg8gies, where he was a senior managing directon f1995 to 1998 and chairman from
1998 to 2000. Before he joined Montgomery Secwjtidr. Coleman spent 10 years at the Bank of Araeaitd Bank of America Corporation
where he was head of capital markets, head of trlanking group, and vice chairman of the baard chief financial officer. He spent the
previous 13 years at Wells Fargo Bank, where hgitipos included head of international banking e€lpiersonnel officer and chairman of the
credit policy committee. He serves as the Chairofahe Board of Northrop Grumman Corporation. Poegily, Mr. Coleman served on the
boards of directors of Regal Entertainment Grougti{lDecember 2005) and Chiron Corporation (uniirih2006).

Ann Daly—Chief Operating Officer. Ms. Daly has served as our Chief Operatingd@ffsince October 2004. Previously, Ms. Daly
served as head of feature animation at Old Dreark8V®tudios since July 1997, where she guided theegic, operational, administrative and
productioneriented concerns of the animation division, ad a®loverseeing the worldwide video operations lof @reamWorks Studios. Pri
to joining Old DreamWorks Studios, Ms. Daly senasdpresident of Buena Vista Home Video (“BVHV”), ifloAmerica, a division of The
Walt Disney Company, where she presided over wlaattiven the single largest home entertainment coynipahe world. Ms. Daly was
responsible for marketing, sales, distribution,rafiens, production and all other facets of the Ba@antertainment division. During her 14-year
tenure at The Walt Disney Company, she was a hortegtainment industry pioneer, orchestrating mampvations such as the directsigleo
business, where high-quality, family-oriented filmere produced exclusively for the home entertaimmearket. Under Ms. Daly’s direction,
BVHV won several vendor awards for marketing andeatising, as well as for its state-of-the-art disttion, shipping and inventory
replenishment systems. Ms. Daly received her BhAedonomics from The University of California, LAageles.

Andrew Chang—General Counsel and Corporate SegretaMr. Chang has served as our General CounseCangbrate Secretary
since January 2010. Mr. Chang joined Old DreamWorkX002 as Head of Litigation and Head of Legal Business Affairs for DreamWorks
Distribution. He served as our Head of Litigatiordal echnology Law from 2004 until 2010. Prior tinjag Old DreamWorks, Mr. Chang was
Vice President of Legal with Metro-Goldwyn-Mayew8ios Inc. Prior to joining MGM, Mr. Chang was assaciate with Gibson, Dunn &
Crutcher LLP. Mr. Chang received a J.D. from Getog®a University Law Center and an A.B. in Polititem Princeton University.

Anne Globe—Head of Worldwide Marketing and ConsuPneducts. Ms. Globe has served as our Head of Worldwldeketing and
Consumer Products since January 2007. Previougdy@ibbe served as the Company’s Head of World@iolesumer Products and
Promotions since January 2005. Ms. Globe joinedM&hmWorks Studios in 1996, where she was invoined
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aspects of its merchandising and promotional a@#zi She held a variety of positions with Old Dn¥slorks Studios, including serving as hu
of marketing and head of promotions. Prior to jognOld DreamWorks Studios, Ms. Globe was Vice Plessi of Promotions at
MCA/Universal, where she was responsible for naigmomotion strategies for a number of the compmfiyns. Ms. Globe received a B.S. in
Marketing and a B.S. in Communications from Syradusiversity.

John Batter— Co-President of Production.Mr. Batter has served in his current positimtes October 2007. Mr. Batter joined the
Company in January 2006 as Head of Production @pasa From January 2000 until January 2006, Mttddavas with Electronic Arts Inc.,
and served in a variety of capacities including@r&tudio General Manager and General Manager dfigBile. From 1995 until 2000,

Mr. Batter worked in a variety of positions withddDreamWorks Studios, including serving as ChiefaRcial Officer of DreamWorks
Interactive (a joint venture between DreamWorks Biicrosoft Corporation) and as Chief Financial ©éfi of the Company’s
PDI/DreamWorks unit.

Rich Sullivan—Head of Corporate Finance Mr. Sullivan has served as our Head of CorgoFammance since October 2008. He
previously held the position of Head of Investoid®ens since joining the Company in 2005. Duritigterm at the Company, Mr. Sullivan t
been directly involved with treasury, corporate commications, corporate development and strategicrphg. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Sullivan served as Vice President of Investetaions for AT&T Corp. from 2002 until 2005, duginvhich time he was also a member of
AT&T's Financial Leadership Team. Prior to his rateinvestor Relations, Mr. Sullivan played a role AT&T'’s mergers and acquisitions
team, as well as in AT&T’s Business Services anldtims organization. Prior to joining AT&T, Mr. 8ivan worked for Deutsche Bank
Securities as a member of its mergers and acauisithvestment banking group, focusing on telecomioations. Mr. Sullivan holds a
bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Hamilton Callegd an MBA from Columbia University.

Daniel Satterthwaite—Head of Human Resourceddr. Satterthwaite has served as our Head of &uResources since joining the
Company in September 2007. Prior to joining the @any, Mr. Satterthwaite was with Blockbuster Irronfi 1993. At Blockbuster,
Mr. Satterthwaite served in a variety of positiafisncreasing responsibility, most recently as SeNfice President of Worldwide Human
Resources.

Heather O’Connor—Chief Accounting Officer.Ms. O’Connor has served as our Chief Accoun@iicer since February
2010. From January 2006 until February 2010, MEdnor served as our Head of SEC Reporting and ktaw Technical Research. Prior
to DreamWorks Animation, Ms O’Connor filled a vdyi@f roles with increasing levels of responsilgiltithin the Accounting and Financial
Planning and Analysis areas at Old DreamWorks h&sAtssistant Controller of Old DreamWorks, Ms. Offdor was heavily involved in the
sale of that company to Paramount and the Separ&itor to joining Old DreamWorks, Ms. O’Connor fkked as an audit senior at Arthur
Andersen LLP. In addition, Ms. O’Connor currentrges as the Treasurer for the non-profit theaierpany Needtheater Ms. O’Connor
received a Bachelor of Science in Accountancy ftbenUniversity of lllinois, Urban&hampaign, and is a certified public accountarddiive’
in California.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

Market Price of Our Class A Common Stock

Our Class A common stock is currently listed ontasdaq Global Select Market (‘“NASDAQ”) under tlyendol “DWA”. Prior to
February 26, 2009, our Class A common stock wasdien the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”). Thédaing table sets forth for the
periods indicated the high and low sale pricesuwsf@ass A common stock on the NASDAQ (for date®oafter February 26, 2009) and the
NYSE (for dates prior to February 26, 20C

Year Ended December 31, 200 High Low

First Quartel $26.1¢ $17.62
Second Quarte $29.5¢ $18.37
Third Quartel $36.8: $26.1¢€
Fourth Quarte $40.5: $31.9(C
Year Ended December 31, 2010 High Low

First Quarte! $44.0( $38.7:
Second Quarte $43.0¢ $27.0¢
Third Quartel $34.8¢ $28.31
Fourth Quarte $37.0C $29.01

On February 18, 2011, the last quoted price paresbiaour Class A common stock on the NASDAQ waB.86&. As of February 18,
2011, there were approximately 16,024 stockholdérscord of our Class A common stock. Because nodioyr shares of Class A common
stock are held by brokers and other institutiondelnalf of stockholders, we are unable to estirtreeotal number of stockholders represented
by these record holders. As of February 18, 2didretwere five stockholders of record of our CRgommon stock.

Dividend Policy

We continuously evaluate ways in which we can gtexa meaningful return to our stockholders. We hrexesr declared or paid ca
dividends on shares of our common stock. Any futlr@nge in our dividend policy will be made at tligcretion of our board of directors and
will depend on contractual restrictions containeour credit facility or other agreements, our Hssof operations, earnings, capital
requirements and other factors considered reldwaour board of directors. See Note 8 to the additmnsolidated financial statements
contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K for a disimmssf restrictions on our ability to pay dividendsntained in our credit facility and other
agreements.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table shows Company repurchasessofdimmon stock for each calendar month for theethtrenths ended December 31,
2010.

Maximum Number

Total Number of (or Approximate

Shares Purchase! Dollar Value)

of Shares That May
Total Number of Average as Part of Publicly

Price Paid Yet Be Purchased
Shares Announced Plan Under the Plan or

Purchased®) per Share or Program (@) Program
October -October 31, 201 — $ — — $ 150,000,00
November -November 30, 201 — $ — — $ 150,000,00
December -December 31, 201 — $ — — $ 150,000,00

Total — $ — —

(3]

o Does not include shares forfeited to the Comparonupe expiration or cancellation of unvested ret&td stock award:

In April 2009, the Companyg’Board of Directors approved a stock repurchasgram pursuant to which the Company may repurchg

to an aggregate of $150 million of its outstandstack. In July 2010, the Company’s Board of Direstierminated the April 2009 stock
repurchase program and authorized a new stockalepse program pursuant to which the Company mayebpse up to an aggregate of
$150 million of its outstanding stoc

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table sets forth certain informatias of December 31, 2010 with respect to sharesro€tass A common stock that m
be issued under our 2004 Omnibus Incentive Compiens@lan (the “2004 Plan”) and 2008 Omnibus IncenCompensation Plan (the “2008
Plan™):

Number of securities
Weighted-average

to be issued upon exercise price of Number of securities remaining
exercise of outstanding options
outstanding available for future issuance
options, warrants warrants and rights (excluding securities
and rights reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (&) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by securityholde 7,812,52. $ 29.21 285,24
Equity compensation plans r
approved by securityholde — — —
Total 7,812,52. $ 29.2] 285,24

The 2008 Plan was approved by the Company’s stdd&roand became effective in May 2008, after whicle no new equity awards
may be made under the 2004 Plan. The 2008 Plan
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provides that any shares with respect to awarderuhé 2004 Plan that are forfeited or cancell¢er diiie effective date of the 2008 Plan will
thereafter become eligible for issuance under @@82Plan.

Stock Performance Graph

The stock price performance graph below, which m&sua $100 investment on December 31, 2005 andestiment of any dividends,
compares DreamWorks Animation’s total stockholdgum against the NASDAQ Composite Index and tla&ird & Poor’'s Movies and
Entertainment Index for the period beginning Decengi, 2005 through December 31, 2010. No casleiids have been declared on
DreamWorks Animation’s Class A Common Stock sifm[PO.

The comparisons shown in the graph below are basétstorical data and the Company cautions thastbck price performance shown
in the graph below is not indicative of, and is imbénded to forecast, the potential future perfamoe of our common stock. Information used
in the graph was obtained from a source believdzktreliable, but the Company is not responsibi@fty errors or omissions in such
information.
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The following graph and related information is bgiiurnished solely to accompany this Form 10-K parg to Item 201(e) of Regulation
S-K. It shall not be deemed “soliciting materialst' to be “filed” with the Securities and Exchanger@mission (other than as provided in
Item 201), nor shall such information be incorp@a@ty reference into any future filing under theities Act of 1933 or the Secuiriti
Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent thapaeifically incorporate it by reference into suiimg.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

The following table sets forth our selected finahaiformation derived from the audited consolidbfieancial statements as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, &2D2006.

The historical selected financial information presel below may not be indicative of our future perfance. The historical selected
financial information should be read in conjunctigith “ltem 7—Managemens$’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults ¢
Operations,” the audited consolidated financialesteents and the notes to our audited consolidataddial statements included elsewhere in
this Form 10-K.

(In thousands, except per share date
Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Statements of Income
Revenue: $ 784,79 $ 725,17¢ $ 650,05: $ 767,17¢ $ 394,84.
Operating income (los 166,84 193,29¢ 171,82 291,31 (2,119
Net income 170,63¢ 151,03 142,49¢ 218,36 15,12¢
Basic net income per she® $ 2.0C $ 1.7¢F $ 1.5¢ $ 2.1¢ $ 0.1t
Diluted net income per sha®® $ 1.9¢ $ 1.7¢ $ 1.57 $ 2.17 $ 0.1t
Balance Sheet:
Total cash and cash equivale $ 163,81¢ $ 231,24! $ 262,64 $ 292,48¢ $ 506,30:
Total asset® 1,755,86 1,394,59 1,306,05! 1,327,78: 1,280,46!
Total borrowings® — — 70,05¢ 70,05¢ 119,95(
Total stockholder equity 1,258,87. 1,152,59! 1,017,35: 1,018,57! 1,033,26!

@ The basic per share amounts for each year arela@dwsing the weighted average number of shdresnomon stock outstanding f
each year

(z) The diluted per share amounts include dilutive camrstock equivalents, using the treasury stock otk

® " The following table sets forth (in thousands) thegited average number of options to purchase slofi@mmon stock, stoc
appreciation rights, restricted stock awards andtg@wards subject to performance or market camstwhich were not included in the
calculation of diluted per share amounts becauseffects would be ari-dilutive.

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Options to purchase shares of common stock andatest stock
awards 25C 1,64 1,87¢ 1,26¢ 1,68
Stock appreciation righ 1,49¢ 3,48 2,68( 1,48¢ 422
Total 1,74¢ 5,12¢ 4,55¢ 2,74¢ 2,10¢
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®)

In addition, the following table sets forth (in treands) the number of shares of contingently idsteduity awards that were not incluc
in the calculation of diluted shares as the regumarket and/or performance conditions had not lpeetras of the end of the respective

fiscal year.

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Options to purchase shares of common stock andctest stock award 70¢€ 1,48¢ 58E 1,79¢ 1,79¢
Stock appreciation righ 80C 1,60( — 55 55
Total 1,50¢ 3,08¢ 58E 1,84¢ 1,84¢

In addition, as a result of the acquisition of GilkamWorks Studios by Viacom, on January 31, 2@p@roximately 300,000 unvested
shares of restricted stock and 597,000 unvestednspto purchase shares of the Company’s Classwam stock, which represented
the unvested portions of equity awards grantecttam employees of Old DreamWorks Studios unde2004 Plan as of such date, v
forfeited and cancelled, respectively. In additiapproximately 531,000 vested options to purchhaees of the Company’s Class A
common stock held by certain employees of Old Di¥amks Studios were also cancelled in connectioh wits acquisition.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2010, thepaagnreleased substantially all of the valuatidovednce previously taken against
its deferred tax assets. £*ltem 7—Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior”

Total borrowings include obligations under capliéalses, bank borrowings and other debt, Universeali® advance and debt allocated
by Old DreamWorks Studios. As of December 31, 2816 2009, all of these items had been repaid iardaoce with the respective
terms of the various agreemer
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ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

This section and other parts of this Form 10-K eimforward-looking statements that involve risk&laincertainties. Our actual results
may differ significantly from the results discusgethe forward-looking statements. You should rdedfollowing discussion and analysis in
conjunction with our audited consolidated financttements and related notes thereto and the “Ré&itors” section of this Form 10-K in
Part I, Item 1A, as well as other cautionary sta¢erts and risks described elsewhere in this For-K, before deciding to purchase, hold or
sell our common stock.

Our Business and Distribution and Servicing Arrangenents

Our business is primarily devoted to developing pratiucing animated feature films. Our films arstidbuted in the worldwide
theatrical, home entertainment and television ntarkg Paramount Pictures Corporation, a subsidiikjiacom Inc., and its affiliates
(collectively, “Paramount”) pursuant to a distribution agreement and alfoint services agreement (collectively, thedramount
Agreements”). We generally retain all other rights to exploiir films, including commercial tie-in and pronial rights with respect to each
film, as well as merchandising, interactive, litgraublishing, music publishing and soundtrack tigtrlease see “Part I—Item 1—Business—
Distribution and Servicing Arrangements—How We Bisite, Promote and Market our Films” of this FotfK for a discussion of our
distribution and servicing arrangements with Panamboln addition, we continue to build upon theueabf our intellectual property by seeking
opportunities beyond our core animated feature filminess and creating higjoality entertainment through the development andyction o
non-theatrical special content such as televispatisls and seriedive performances and an online virtual world gdmased on our films.

Our Revenues and Costs
Revenues - Feature Films

Our feature films are currently the source of aigant percentage of our revenues. We deriverregdrom our distributor’'s worldwide
exploitation of our feature films in theaters andnarkets such as home entertainment, pay andfoaelcast television and other ancillary
markets. Pursuant to the Paramount Agreements, tprieporting any revenue for one of our featilras to us, Paramount is entitled to
(i) retain a fee of 8.0% of gross revenue (withdedluction for distribution and marketing costs #ncd-party distribution fees and sales agent
fees), and (ii) recoup all of its permissible dmttion and marketing costs with respect to thdatation of our films on a film-by-film basis.
As such, under the Paramount Agreements, eaclsfiiotal expenses and fees are offset againstikiméd fevenues on a worldwide basis
across all markets, and Paramount reports no revientine Company until the first period in whichiadividual film’s cumulative worldwide
gross revenues exceed its cumulative worldwidesydéstribution fee and costs, which may be sewgratters after a film’s initial theatrical
release. Additionally, as the cumulative revenues@mulative costs for each individual film arercoingled between all markets and
geographical territories and Paramount only repaxdttfitional revenue to the Company for a film ingé reporting periods in which that film'’s
cumulative worldwide gross revenues continue teegdts
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cumulative worldwide gross costs, the Company’sriga revenues in any period are often a resujtads revenues generated in one or
several territories being offset by the gross cobtsoth related and unrelated territories.

Our films are distributed in foreign countries aimdrecent years, we have derived approximately 49%ur feature film revenue from
foreign countries. A significant amount of our tsantions in foreign countries are conducted inldbal currencies and, as a result, fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates can affect ogiress, results of operations and cash flow. Fmtailed discussion of our foreign currency
risk, please see “Item 7A. Quantitative and QuiNieaDisclosures About Market Risk—Market and Exoha Rate Risk—Foreign Currency
Risk” of this Form 10-K.

Theatrical and Home Entertainment Markets

The percentage of box office receipts (the totabam collected by theatrical exhibitors for exhitmit of films) remitted to our distributc
is dependent on the financial success of a givetiom@icture and the number of weeks that it platyghe box office. In general, our
distributor’s percentage of box office receiptsges from 49% to 56% domestically and from 39% t&4dternationally. Historically, there
has been a close correlation between the succesBliof in the domestic box office market and thm® success in the international theatrical
and worldwide home entertainment markets. In génfiiras that achieve domestic box office succedse éend to experience success in the
home entertainment and international theatricaketar While we continue to believe that domestix dbffice performance is a key indicator
a film’s potential performance in these subsequogarkets, we do not believe that it is the onlydadnfluencing the film’'s success in these
markets and recognize that a range of other markfilm-specific factors, such as whether the fignan original or sequel, can have a
significant impact on a film’s performance in tiéarnational theatrical market as well as in theldwide home entertainment and television
markets. In addition, our films have experiencedniegful growth in their international box officeaeipts over the past couple of years
generally due to the growth in developing theatnwarkets. However, our films’ performance in théernational post-theatrical markets
generally has a different correlation to box offieeeipts than in the domestic markets.

The initial release in the domestic and internatidome entertainment markets typically occursehoesix months following the film’s
theatrical release. Accordingly, a film theatrigaileased during the spring or summer is typicadlgased into the home entertainment market
during the holiday season of that same year, ditohdheatrically released in the fall or wintertigically released into the home entertainment
market in the winter or early spring of the follagiyear. The timing of international home entermant releases is handled on a market-by-
market basis, depending upon the timing of thettluad release in that country and other marketdiac Over the past couple of years, the
home entertainment market has contributed ledset@verall revenue for our more recent films thathe past due to changes in consumer
behavior, increased competition and lower priciggddailers. In order to increase the marketabditpur home entertainment products and
achieve higher price points, we often incur addgiccosts to provide premium or bonus content withhome entertainment releases.
However, we may not reach price points that coordwith the level of additional costs incurredabidition, we are currently experiencing
shifts in consumer preferences with respect to hentertainment formats as a result of new
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technological developments, which may lead to déffie levels of correlation between the theatricel home entertainment markets than we
have historically experienced. The rapid evolutiétechnology related to methods in which contemt be delivered is leading to an increasing
number of consumers viewing content on an on-derbas from the internet, on their televisions anchandheld or portable devices.

Television Market

Our films are distributed in the worldwide free graly television markets by our distributor. Ourtilmitor licenses our films pursuant
output agreements and individual and package fgnre@ments. These generally provide that the exdnipay a fee for each film exhibited
during the specified license period for that filwhich may vary according to the theatrical sucadghe film. Our distributor generally enters
into license and/or output agreements for bothgray/free television exhibition on a country-by-ctiyrbasis with respect to our films.

The majority of our revenue from television licergsis based on predetermined rates and schedalelsahe been established as part of
output agreements between our distributor and warielevision licensees. Typically the majoritytloé license fee for domestic pay television
is recognized by our distributor 10 to 12 monttierathe film has been released in the domestidriceamarket. The license fee for the
domestic network television market is typicallyognized by our distributor two and a half yeareafthe domestic theatrical release of the
film. Internationally, the majority of televisiomghts are governed by output agreements on a gebgtcountry basis. While every film is
different, we expect that under our distributortsrent international television agreements, thenge fees generated in the international pay
television market will typically begin to be recaged by our distributor approximately 12 to 14 menéafter the domestic theatrical release and
in the international free television markets apprately two and a half years after the domestiatitieal release of our films. In both the
international pay and free television markets, nenxeis typically recognized by our distributor ogereral quarters as our films become
available for airing in each country around the lb@nd the films are exploited during the interoaéil license terms.

Revenues - Licensing, Merchandising and Other

We generate royal-based revenues from the licensing of our charaatérfilm elements to consumer product and hometaintenent
companies worldwide. We have also entered intonassi activities beyond our core feature film bussnéncluding the development,
production and licensing of animated televisioncigs/series and live performances. Additionaltyldate March 2010, our online virtual world
game based on our fillkung Fu Pandavas made commercially available (initially on ampional basis). Revenue activities related to our
online virtual world, live performances and certtélevision specials/series are not typically sabje the Paramount Agreements and,
accordingly, we receive payment and record revedirestly from third parties.

For a detailed discussion of our critical accoupfilicies related to revenue recognition, please“s—Critical Accounting Policies and
Estimates—Revenue Recognition.”
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Costs of Revenues - Feature Films and Television Specials/Series

Our costs of revenues primarily include the amation of capitalized costs related to feature fibmsl television specials/series (which
consists of production, overhead and interest Lgsésticipation and residual costs for our feafiilres and television specials/series and write-
offs of amounts previously capitalized for titlest xpected to be released or released titlesxpatoted to recoup their capitalized costs.
Generally, given the structure of our distributeomangements, our costs of revenues do not inalisigbution and marketing costs or third-
party distribution and fulfillment services feesasiated with our feature films. Distribution an@nketing costs associated with the
exploitation of our feature films would only be inded in our costs of revenues to the extent tleataused Paramount to make additional
expenditures in excess of agreed amounts. Howeuetglevision specials/series are typically ndtjsct to the Paramount Agreements, and
accordingly, we may directly incur distribution amérketing costs, which are classified as costew#nues. See “ltem 1—Business—
Distribution and Servicing Arrangements—How We Bizite, Promote and Market our Films.” In additiansts of revenues also include
direct costs for sales commissions to outside théndies for the licensing and merchandising ofcharacters and marketing and promotion
costs.

Capitalized production costs represent the costeriad to develop and produce our animated filntstatevision specials/series, which
primarily consist of compensation (including saaribonuses, stock compensation and fringe benfglitanimators and voice talent (which,
the case of sequels, can be significant), equipm@estother direct operating costs relating to tloelpction. Capitalized production overhead
generally represents the compensation (includifayiea, bonuses and stock compensation) of indalidmployees or entire departments with
exclusive or significant responsibilities for theguction of our films or television specials/ssrielnamortized capitalized production costs are
evaluated for impairment each reporting period d¢itlexby-title basis. If estimated remaining reuvenis not sufficient to recover the
unamortized capitalized production costs for tfth, tthe unamortized capitalized production cegitsbe written down to fair value determin
using a net present value calculation. In additiorthe event a film or television special/sergsot set for production within three years from
the first time costs are capitalized or the filnteevision special/series is abandoned, all saglitalized production costs are generally
expensed.

We are responsible for certain contingent compénsabr participations, paid to creative particifgrsuch as writers, producers,
directors, voice talent, animators and other perswrcompanies associated with the productionfiineor television special/series. Generally,
these payments are dependent on the performarbe ifm and are based on factors such as domestioffice and/or total revenue
recognized by our distributor related to the filmsome cases, particularly with respect to seqpeldicipation costs can be significant. We
also responsible for residuals, which are paymieased on revenue generated by the home entertaimmeelevision markets, and generally
made to third parties pursuant to collective banigai, union or guild agreements or for providingtam services such as recording or
synchronization services.

Capitalized production costs and participations @sitlual costs are amortized and included in cafstsvenues in the proportion that the
revenue for each film or television special/seffe€urrent Revenue”) during the period bears to its respective estddaemaining total
revenue to be received from all sourceblifimate Revenue”) as of the beginning of the current fiscal peridtie amount of capitalized
production costs that are amortized each perioldtiérefore depend on
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the ratio of Current Revenue to Ultimate Revenueth film or television special/series for suehipd. Because the profitability for each t
varies depending upon its individual projectiorltfimate Revenues and its amount of capitalizedscogurred, total amortization may vary
from period to period due to several factors, idolg: (i) changes in the mix of titles earning newe, (ii) changes in any title’s Ultimate
Revenue and capitalized costs and (iii) write-dowaihsapitalized production costs due to changelkerestimated fair value of unamortized
capitalized production costs. Additionally, theeatchanges in the mix of our various film revesoarces (which generally have differing
levels of profitability) discussed above in “Revesd—Feature Films” indicate that the overall ultienptofitability for our future films may be
lower than that which we have historically achieved

For a detailed discussion of our critical accoupfilicies relating to film and television specalies amortization, please seeCkitical
Accounting Policies and Estimates—Film and Otheehiory Costs Amortization.”

Costs of Revenues - Other

Over the past few years, we have developed aligenases of our intellectual property beyond ouwedeature film business, such
developing and producing live performances andrdim® virtual world based on characters from oattiee films. Expense activities related to
our online virtual world and live performances ac¢ subject to the Paramount Agreements and, aogdydwe directly incur costs of
revenues such as operating costs and amortizatimmyccapitalized costs associated with these itiev The amortization periods for these
newer activities vary depending on performanceauiivity and are typically significantly shorteratt those of our feature films.

As of December 31, 2010, approximately $21.3 nrillieas capitalized in our consolidated balance stedated to live performances. We
evaluate the capitalized costs related to thesenautivities for impairment on an annual basissbenever indicators of impairment exist. If it
is determined that there are indicators of impairtnee determine the fair value of the respectagitalized asset and, if this capitalized value
exceeds the asset’s fair value, we record an inmgait as part of our cost of revenues. For the geded December 31, 2010, our costs of
revenues included impairment charges totaling $&8l&n related to ouShrek The Musicaburing show andKung Fu Pandanline virtual
world (see “—Year Ended December 31, 2010 Comptarétear Ended December 31, 2009—Costs of Reverfoeflirther discussion). Due
to the relative size of these activities in comgamito our core animated feature film businessdavaot expect these newer businesses to have
a material impact on operations during the immediature.

Product Devel opment Expenses

Product development costs primarily consist of aeste and development costs or costs incurred porsaaevelopment agreements w
third-party software developers.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Our selling, general and administrative expensesisbprimarily of employee compensation (includgadaries, bonuses, stc
compensation and employee benefits), rent, inserdaes for professional services and marketings@ssociated with our online virtual
world.
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Income Tax Benefit Payable to Former Stockholder and (Benefit) Provision for Income Taxes

As discussed below in “—Critical Accounting Poligiand Estimates—Provision for Income Taxes,” weantfor income taxes
pursuant to the asset and liability method, andomlingly, deferred tax assets and liabilitiesraa@gnized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the finandialesnent carrying amounts of existing assets afudilies and their respective tax basis and
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Weréa valuation allowance to reduce our deferredrme tax assets to the amount that we
estimate to be more likely than not to be realifibr to the quarter ended December 31, 2010,stabbshed a valuation allowance against a
large portion of our deferred tax assets as we weable to conclude that it was more likely thahthat some portion, or all, of our deferred
tax assets would ultimately be realized. Duringdgharter ended December 31, 2010, we determinééshaf December 31, 2010, we should
release substantially all of the valuation allonetaken against our deferred tax assets.

The evaluation of the realizability of deferred &ssets is inherently subjective. In evaluatingatility to recover our deferred income
tax assets, we considered all available eviderath, fiositive and negative and including our opatatesults and forecasts of future taxable
income, to determine whether, based on the weifgthad evidence, a valuation allowance was needelowing are some of the key items t
provided positive evidence to support the reledshevaluation allowance of $348.1 million agaiost deferred tax assets (which totalled
$427.0 million on our consolidated balance sheef &@ecember 31, 2010) in the fourth quarter of®01

» Taxable income for the year ended December 31, #t4tQif achieved at similar levels in future ygarould be sufficient to allow
us to realize our deferred tax ass

» The number of years remaining prior to the expiratf our existing net operating loss carryforwa

» Increased confidence in our longer-term forecattrdble income levels. We had significant reveneieegating activities that
occurred during our fourth quarter which, onceireal, allowed us to better measure the variahiityur future expected taxable
earnings to determine the likelihood of the futtealization of our deferred tax ass¢

In addition, as discussed below in “—Critical Acating Policies and Estimates—Provision for Inconaxds,” as a result of a partial
increase in the tax basis of our tangible and gitda assets attributable to transactions enteredhby affiliates controlled by a former
stockholder at the time of our separation from DidamWorks Studios (Tax Basis Increas€’), we may pay reduced tax amounts to the
extent we generate sufficient taxable income inftinére. We are obligated to remit to the affiliatiethe former stockholder 85% of any such
cash savings in U.S. Federal income tax and Calddranchise tax and certain other related taxebtn subject to repayment by the former
stockholder if it is determined that these savisigsuld not have been available to us. As a reétifti® obligation, 85% of the impact associe
with release of the valuation allowance againsedef] tax assets is passed along to our formektadtaer. Accordingly, the amount payable
former stockholder on our consolidated balancetsieef December 31, 2010 increased by $262.1amitlh $329.6 million, when comparec
the balance as of December 31, 2009. Of this balame are projecting that $27.5 million will becodhee to the former stockholder in the
upcoming 12 months as our deferred tax assetsrajected to be realized over many future years.

For a further discussion of income tax mattersagdesee Note 9 to the audited consolidated finbsteilements contained elsewhere in
this Form 10-K.
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Seasonality

The timing of revenue reporting and receipt of cashittances to us from our distributor fluctuagséd upon the timing of our films’
theatrical and home entertainment releases anetoeipment position of our distributor on a film-tiyn basis, which varies depending upc

film’s overall performance. Furthermore, revenusated to our television specials/series fluctiatsed upon the timing of their broadcast and

the licensing of our character and film elementsiafluenced by seasonal consumer purchasing bathand the timing of our animated feat
film theatrical releases and television speciakésaoroadcasts. As a result, our annual or qugrograting results for any period are not
necessarily indicative of results to be expecteduture periods.

Overview of Financial Results

The following table sets forth, for the periodsgeeted, certain data from our audited consolidsta@ments of income. This informati
should be read in conjunction with our audited atidated financial statements and the notes thénetaded elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Revenue:!

Costs of revenue

Product developmel

Selling, general and
administrative expenst

Operating incomi

Interest income, ne

Other income, ne

Increase in income tax bene
payable to former stockhold

(Loss) income before income
taxes

(Benefit) provision for income
taxes

Net income

Diluted net income per sha

Diluted shares used in computi
diluted net income per sha®

(l}l)M: Not Meaningful.

Increase/(Decrease
% Change $ Change
2010 2009 2008 2010 vs. 200 2009 vs. 200 2010 vs. 200 2009 vs. 200
(in millions, except percentages and diluted net stome per share data)

$784.¢ $725.2 $650.1 8.2% 11.€% $ 59.€ $ 75.1
506.4 433.2 365.t 16.8% 18.6% 73.C 67.¢
3.2 2.7 2.1 18.5% 28.6% 0.t 0.€
108.¢ 95.¢ 110.7 13.0% (13.5% 12.E (14.9)
166.¢ 193.% 171.¢ (13.9% 12.5% (26.4) 21.F
0.6 2.0 9.3 (70.0% (78.5% (1.4) (7.9)

8.1 7.2 5.2 12.5% 38.5% 0.6 2.C
(289.7) (41.6) (23.5) NM 77.% 247.% 18.¢
(113.5) 160.7 162.¢ NM (1.9% (274.2) (2.9
(284.1) 9.7 20.% NM (52.2)% (293.6) (10.6)
$ 170.€ $151.( $142.5 13.(% 6.C% $ 19.€ $ 8.5
$ 1.9¢ $1.7¢ $ 157 13.2% 10.2% $ 0.2: $ 0.1¢€

87. 87.% 91.C (0.1)% (4.1%

Class A common stock, respective
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During the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002608, we repurchased a total of 3.1 million, 2.8iam and 6.8 million shares of o



The following table sets forth, for the years preaed, our revenues by film. This information sholbédread in conjunction with our
audited consolidated financial statements and thesrthereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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@ For each period show" Current year theatrical rele” consists of revenues attributable to films releahaihg the current yea" Prior
year theatrical releas” consists of revenues attributable to films reézhduring the immediately prior year and “All otheonsists of
revenues attributable to films released duringadlious periods, including our library titles,vasll as revenues from any other sourt

@ For the year ended December 31, 2(“All other” includes revenue totaling $71.8 million IMadagascar: Escape 2 AfriandKung Fu
Panda,and $40.1 million associated with our televisiorapls/series an8hrek The Musicaburing show. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, the revenues associated witbrdume virtual world were not material. For theayended December 31, 2009, “All
other” includes revenue totaling $54.3 million ®inrek the Thirdnd $36.7 million foBee Movie and $93.1 million associated with our
television specials/series aBtirek The MusicalFor the year ended December 31, 2008, “All Otlirecludes revenue totaling $35.2
million for Over the Hedgeand $25.3 million foFlushed Away For the year ended December 31, 2008, the reseamsociated with our
television specials/series aShrek The Musicawere not materia
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Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenues For the year ended December 31, 2010, ountevevas $784.8 million, an increase of $59.6 millior 8.2%, as compared
to $725.2 million for the year ended December DR The change in revenue between the years waandy related to the number of films
released during 2010, during which we releasecetfeature films, and 2009, during which we releamdlgt one feature film. As a result of the
increase in the number of films released in 200h@, &s illustrated in the revenue chart above@vérview of Financial Results our “Current
year theatrical releas” category for the year ended December 31, 2010aseck$362.0 million, or 434.6%, when compared ¢éostime peric
of 2009. Similarly, due to decline between the gaarthe number of feature films comprising thei6Pyear theatrical releases” category (two
in 2009 and one in 2010), revenue contributed ky/aategory declined by $279.7 million, or 82.6%tvireen the years. The decrease in the
revenues of our “All other” category in 2010 waswarily related to a decrease of $53.0 millionéwenues derived from our television
specials/series and live performance business whepared to the prior year.

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 waprised of amounts earned by a variety of filmg. the year ended December 31,
2010,Shrek Forever Aftefreleased in the second quarter of 2010) contrib§f44.5 million primarily earned in the worldwitteeatrical and
home entertainment marketdow to Train Your Dragoifreleased in the first quarter of 2010) contribusdd4.2 million primarily earned in t
worldwide theatrical, home entertainment and aagil{such as merchandising and licensing) markeddveegamind(released in the fourth
quarter of 2010) contributed $26.6 million primgrdarned in the ancillary markets. As is typicalfmany of our new theatrical releases, our
distributor did not report any theatrical revenaai$ forMegamindduring 2010 as our distributor is entitled to remoits marketing and
distribution costs before it is required to regortis any revenue generated from the exploitatfahis film. We anticipate that our distributor
will begin reporting revenue to us during the figstarter of 2011 after our releaseMgamindinto the home entertainment market (currently
scheduled for February 25, 2011 in the United Sjakdegamind’sultimate profitability will be largely dependent @s performance in the
home entertainment market. Our prior year thedtrelaaseMonsters vs. Alienscontributed $58.8 million of revenue, which wasrarily
earned in the worldwide pay television marketstliyasur “All other” category, which is mainly comiped of our library titles, contributed
$280.7 million which was largely driven bfadagascar: Escape 2 Afric&kung Fu Panda Shrek the ThirdandBee Movie earned across
several markets. For the year ended December 30, 20ir “All other” category included $40.3 millimf revenues attributable to our non-
feature film initiatives.

For the year ended December 31, 20@8nsters vs. Alienghe year’s only theatrical release) contributed.$8nillion of revenue earned
primarily in the worldwide theatrical and domedtimme entertainment markets, and to a lesser etktermternational home entertainment and
worldwide ancillary markets (which includes merctiiasing and licensingMadagascar: Escape 2 Africaur 2008 fourth quarter release,
contributed $232.4 million of revenue during theryended December 31, 2009, earned primarily imibrédwide theatrical and home
entertainment markets, and to a lesser extentginvoridwide television market&ung Fu Pandaeported an additional $106.1 million earned
in the worldwide home entertainment, television andillary markets. Additionally, our revenue f@@ included $93.1 million associated
with our television specials/
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series andhrek The Musicdlwhich had its final performance on Broadway onuday 3, 2010) and revenue contributed3byek the Third,
Bee Movieand our film library earned across several markets.

Costs of Revenues Costs of revenues for the year ended DeceBhe2010 totaled $506.4 million, an increase of.@78illion,
compared to $433.4 million for the year ended Ddzem31, 2009.

Costs of revenues as a percentage of revenuesdnis®s Gor the year ended December 31, 2010 as caupars9.8% for the year ended
December 31, 2009. The primary component of outsaafsrevenues is film amortization. Film amortipatcosts as a percentage of revenues
for our feature films were higher in 2010 when camgal to 2009 as the combined amortization rat@®a0’s “Current year theatrical
releases” (the most significant source of reveru@010) is higher than that for 2009’s “Prior y&aatrical releases” (which contributed a
substantial portion of revenue in 2009). Film anzatton rates for 2009 were more favorable dukuag Fu PandandMadagascar: Escape
Africa’s lower amortization rates associated with their bigbrojections of Ultimate Revenues as a resuleif stronger performances.

In addition, costs of revenues for the year endedehber 31, 2010 were negatively impacted by impexit charges totaling $19.8
million (2.5% when calculated as a percentage wémaes) related to o@hrek The Musicdaburing show and&ung Fu Pandanline virtual
world. During the fourth quarter of 2010, these eewitiatives did not achieve expected results iacdrred operating losses. Accordingly, we
evaluated and subsequently lowered the associatedasted cash flows for these businesses. Thels¢agpforecasts of future net cash flows
indicated that such cash flows would not be sudfitito recover the remaining capitalized costseatdinber 31, 2010 during the remaining
useful lives of the respective assets. Accordingly recorded impairment charges to the extentapéalized costs for these activities excet
their fair value.

Product development Product development costs totaled $3.2 milliad $2.7 million for the years ended Decembe2810 and
2009, respectively. Product development costs pifyn@present research and development costsatlkdhcurred in connection with our
online virtual worlds or that are not related toirdividual film.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesTotal selling, general and administrative exges increased $12.5 million to $108.3
million (including $27.9 million of stock compengat expense) for the year ended December 31, 2010 $95.8 million (including $28.2
million of stock compensation expense) for the yarated December 31, 2009. This 13.0% aggregateaserwas attributable to $3.3 millior
marketing costs related to okiung Fu Pandanline virtual world, $3.1 million of higher salas and benefits expense attributable to new t
and $2.3 million related to consulting fees. Thma@ing increase between the years was attributaléher higher selling, general and
administrative expenses, none of which were indially material.

Operating Income Operating income for the year ended DecembgeP@10 was $166.9 million compared to $193.3 onillfor the yes
ended December 31, 2009. The decrease of $26iémiitl operating income for the year ended Decer8tte2010 was largely attributable to
lower contributions between the years from our feature film activities (including impairment chagtotaling $19.8 million related to our
Shrek The Musicaburing show and&ung Fu Pandanline
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virtual world). Our operating income also decreadee to the combined higher rate of film cost aiatton related to our feature films
released in 2010 as compared to the amortizatiétunfy Fu PandandMadagascar: Escape 2 Afriaduring 2009 and higher selling, general
and administrative expenses.

Interest Income, Net For the year ended December 31, 2010, totalést income was $0.6 million, a decrease of &iildon or 70.0%
from $2.0 million for the same period of 2009. Tdecrease in interest income was due to lower aedsatances of cash and cash equivalents
largely due to the stock repurchases made durid@ @#hen compared to the same period of the priar.ye

There was no interest capitalized to productiam filosts during the year ended December 31, 201@odihe payoff of outstanding debt
in 2009, which resulted in no interest expenserdytie current year. Interest expense capitaliagutdduction film costs was $1.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009.

Other Income, Net For the years ended December 31, 2010 and B@@Sther income was $8.1 million and $7.2 roillji respectively
Other income in both years consisted mainly of meaecognized in connection with preferred vendmrggements with certain of our
strategic alliance partners.

Increase in Income Tax Benefit Payable to Formeci8tolder. As a result of the Tax Basis Increase, weoatigated to remit to the
former stockholder’s affiliate 85% of any such caskings in U.S. Federal income tax and Califofrdachise tax and certain other related tax
benefits, subject to repayment by the former stolddr if it is determined that these savings shaulthave been available to us.

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2008cseded $340.1 million and $49.2 million, respesdiy, in net tax benefits
associated with the Tax Basis Increase as a rexiuictithe provision for income taxes and recordetharease in income tax benefit payable to
former stockholder of $289.1 million and $41.8 oifl, respectively, representing 85% of these reizaghbenefits. As discussed above @uft
Revenues and Costs—Income Tax Benefit PayablernoétoStockholder and (Benefit) Provision for Incolirexes,” the net tax benefits
associated with the Tax Basis Increase for the geded December 31, 2010, significantly increasedbse of the release of the valuation
allowance previously held against our deferredassets.

(Benefit) Provision for Income Taxes For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2@98:corded a (benefit) provision for income
taxes of $(284.1) million and $9.7 million, respeely, or an effective tax rate of (161.9)% and%,8espectively. However, when our
provision for income taxes is combined with the amts associated with the Increase in Income TaxeftgRayable to Former Stockholder
(see above), the combined effective tax rateshiyears ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 wereéh8%5.4%, respectively. Our effect
tax rate and our combined effective tax rate fak@@ere significantly lower than the 35% statutfageral rate primarily because we released
substantially all of our valuation allowance prawsty held against our deferred tax assets. For , 20@9effective tax rate and our combined
effective tax rate was lower than the 35% statutedgral rate primarily because of the decreaseiirvaluation allowance for deferred tax
assets largely resulting from the increase in #teax benefits recognized from the Tax Basis laseeas described above.
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Net Income Net income for the year ended December 310 2@ds $170.6 million, or $1.96 per diluted shasec@mpared to net
income of $151.0 million, or $1.73 net income piuted share, for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2008

Revenues For the year ended December 31, 2009, ountevevas $725.2 million, an increase of $75.1 millior 11.6%, as compared
to $650.1 million for the year ended December D& As illustrated in the revenue chart above @vérview of Financial Resultsthe
change in revenue between 2009 as compared tov2@9@rimarily related to the stronger performanicéhe “Prior year theatrical releases,”
particularly that oMadagascar: Escape 2 Africes compared tBee Movie Also contributing to the change in revenues betwgeriods was
the larger amount of revenue contributed by ouperties comprising the “All Other” category. Theostger performance of our “Prior year
theatrical releases” and the “All Other” categoniess offset by the lower revenues contributedimnsters vs. Alias during 2009 as compa
to Kung Fu Pandaluring 2008. Additionally, during the second quadg2009, we amended our primary video game tistidbn
agreement and, as a result, we recognized apprtedyr®24.0 million of deferred revenue related égexal previously released titles. The
video game distribution agreement was amended, gothrer things, to eliminate a provision that akircertain guaranteed payments for
previously released titles to be recouped by th&idutor from future royalties generated by subgedly released titles.

Monsters vs. Aliensour only theatrical release in 2009, contribu$88.3 million of revenue earned primarily in therldavide theatrical
and domestic home entertainment markets, anddsset extent the international home entertainmehireoridwide ancillary markets (which
includes merchandising and licensing), during tearyended December 31, 200adagascar: Escape 2 Africaur 2008 fourth quarter
release, contributed $232.4 million of revenue miythe year ended December 31, 2009, earned plynrathe worldwide theatrical and home
entertainment markets, and to a lesser extentgeinvoridwide television market&ung Fu Pandaeported an additional $106.1 million earned
in the worldwide home entertainment, television andillary markets. Additionally, our revenue f@®® included $93.1 million associated
with our television specials/series aBldrek The Musicdlwvhich had its final performance on Broadway onuzag 3, 2010) and revenue
contributed byShrek the Third, Bee Moviand our film library earned across several markets.

Several films contributed to our revenue for tharyended December 31, 206&8ing Fu Panda contributed $211.5 million of revenue
associated with its worldwide theatrical and hom&gainment releases and ancillary revenue soustasagascar: Escape 2 Africashich
performed strongly enough in the domestic thedtriarket to enable our distributor to report reveuring the quarter of its theatrical rele
contributed $24.0 million of revenue, which inclsdaerchandising and licensing revenShrek the Thirdone of 2008's “Prior year theatrical
releases,” contributed $120.0 million, earned Iprgethe worldwide home entertainment, televisamd ancillary markets arigee Movig the
other film comprising 2008’s “Prior year theatricaleases,” generated a total of $111.4 millioneeenues, primarily attributable to the
worldwide theatrical, home entertainment and doiogsty television markets. Our other propertiesicivtare principally our library titles and
Over the HedgandFlushed Away contributed revenues during 2008 totaling $188illon, earned primarily in the international teision
and worldwide home entertainment markets.
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Costs of Revenues Costs of revenues for the year ended DeceBhe2009 totaled $433.4 million, an increase of.$6illion,
compared to $365.5 million for the year ended Dduem31, 2008.

Costs of revenues, the primary component of whidhé amortization of film costs, as a percentdgewenues was 59.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2009 as compared to 56.2%dgretlr ended December 31, 2008. While the ovextdlaf amortization of film and
television special/series costs as a percentagevefues was fairly consistent between the perkddsg Fu Pandéad a lower rate of
amortization for the year ended December 31, 2688 that foMonsters vs. Alienduring the comparable period of 2009 du&tmg Fu
Pand¢'s stronger performance. This difference in amortaatiate for the “Current year theatrical releasstegory between 2009 and 2008
partially offset by the combined lower rate of atimation for the “Prior year theatrical releaseategory during the year ended December 31,
2009 as compared to the year ended December 38, 0§ely due to the stronger performancéafiagascar: Escape 2 Afrias compared
to Bee Movie FurthermoreMonsters vs. AlienandBee Moviehave such high rates of film amortization that they significantly less
profitable than the other films generating incorneiny these periods. In addition, costs of reveriaethe year ended December 31, 2009 was
impacted by the direct operating and marketingscassociated witBhrek The Musicaln Broadway and, to a lesser extent, certain of our
television specials/series.

Product development Product development costs totaled $2.7 milliad $2.1 million for the years ended Decembe2809 and
2008, respectively, and primarily represent redearal development costs that are incurred in cdimmewith our online virtual worlds or that
are not related to an individual film.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesTotal selling, general and administrative exges decreased $14.9 million to $95.8
million (including $28.2 million of stock compengat expense) for the year ended December 31, 2009 $110.7 million (including $36.4
million of stock compensation expense) for the yeraded December 31, 2008. This 13.5% aggregateasxispans across several selling,
general and administrative categories, includin&2 million decrease in stock compensation (prisndue to the absence of expense
associated with certain senior executive perforraaweards during the first quarter of 2009 and, lesaer extent, the impact of the revision to
the terms of certain equity grants during the tijuarter of 2008), $1.3 million of lower companydeiincentive compensation, approximately
$3.6 million of lower corporate travel expenses bvaer selling, general and administrative experss®ess several categories, none of which
were individually material.

Operating Income Operating income for the year ended Decembge2@09 was $193.3 million compared to $171.8 onillior the yes
ended December 31, 2008. The increase of $21.®mil operating income for the year ended Decer3the2009 was largely because of the
stronger performance during 2009Mé&dagascar: Escape 2 Africes compared to that 8ee Movieduring 2008 as mitigated by the impact of
the stronger performance Kfing Fu Pandaluring 2008 as compared to thatvdnsters vs. Alienduring 2009. Operating income for the year
ended December 31, 2009 was also positively affidoyethe recognition of deferred revenue relateskteeral previously released titles in
conjunction with the second quarter 2009 amendrizeotir video game distribution agreement and byelogelling, general and administrative
expenses period-over-period.
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Interest Income, Net For the year ended December 31, 2009, totalest income was $2.0 million, a decrease of 8#lion or 78.5%
from $9.3 million for the same period of 2008. Tdexrease in interest income was due to lower cdt@derest earned on investments during
2009 as compared to 2008 and, to a lesser extevey laverage balances of cash and cash equivédegedy due to the stock repurchases made
throughout 2008 and continuing in the first quade2009 and the repayment of the financing assediwith our headquarters in the fourth
quarter of 2009.

Interest expense capitalized to production filmtsegas $1.1 million and $3.0 million for the yearsded December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The $1.9 million decrease betweerp#reds was primarily due to the decrease in amolioverall interest expense eligible for
capitalization during 2009 because of lower interates in 2009 associated with our various finag@rrangements. See “—Financing
Arrangements” below for discussion of our variomsficing arrangements.

Other Income, Net For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2@@8other income was $7.2 million and $5.2 ol
respectively. Other income in both years consistathly of income recognized in connection with preéd vendor arrangements.

Increase in Income Tax Benefit Payable to Formeci8tolder. As a result of the Tax Basis Increase, weoatigated to remit to the
affiliate of the former stockholder 85% of any swash savings in U.S. Federal income tax and Galddranchise tax and certain other rel:
tax benefits, subject to repayment if it is deteradi that these savings should not have been alaitahs.

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 cseded $49.2 million and $27.6 million, respeelyy in net tax benefits associa
with the Tax Basis Increase as a reduction in tbgigion for income taxes and recorded an incr@agecome tax benefit payable to former
stockholder of $41.8 million and $23.5 million, pestively, representing 85% of these recognizecfisn

Provision for Income Taxes For the years ended December 31, 2009 and, 2808 corded a provision for income taxes of $8illion
and $20.3 million, respectively, or an effective tate of 4.8% and 10.9%, respectively. Howeveremvbur provision for income taxes is
combined with the amounts associated with the bs=én Income Tax Benefit Payable to Former Stoddrdsee above), the combined
effective percentages for the years ended DeceBihe2009 and 2008 were 25.4% and 23.5%, respecti@eir effective tax rate and our
combined effective tax rate for both periods wasdothan the 35% statutory federal rate primarédgduse of the decrease in our valuation
allowance for deferred tax assets largely resuftiom the increase in the net tax benefits recaghfzom the Tax Basis Increase as described
above.

Net Income Net income for the year ended December 319 208 $151.0 million, or $1.73 per diluted shasec@mpared to net
income of $142.5 million, or $1.57 net income pruted share, for the year ended December 31, 2008.
Financing Arrangements

Revolving Credit Facility. On June 24, 2008, we entered into a $125.0 miliémolving credit facility with a number of banks ioh
terminates in June 2013. There was no debt outsiguddiring the respective periods. We are requioguhy a commitment fee on undrawn
amounts at an annual
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rate of 0.375%. Interest on borrowed amounts isrd@hed by reference to i) either the lending babkse rate plus 0.50% per annum or ii)
LIBOR plus 1.50% per annum. Borrowings are seciedubstantially all our assets. Interest costarigd as a result of the commitment fee
was $0.5 million, $0.5 million, and $0.3 millionrfeach of the years ended December 31, 2010, 2802@08, respectively.

Animation Campus Financing. In accordance with the terms of the financingagement, the entire amount of the obligatior8.&7
million, was repaid upon maturity in October 2008e financing bore interest primarily at 30-day coencial paper rates and was fully
collateralized by the underlying real property. Dgrthe year ended December 31, 2010, we did motriany interest expense related to this
financing. During years ended December 31, 20092808, we incurred $1.1 million and $3.1 millioespectively, of related interest expense.

For a more detailed description of our varioustriting arrangements, see Note 8 to the audited tdatsd financial statements
contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

As of December 31, 2010, we were in compliance waitlapplicable financial debt covenants.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Current Financial Condition

Our primary operating capital needs are to fundotteeluction and development costs of our films aad-film initiatives, including
television specials/series, live performances arhe virtual worlds, make participation and resiipayments, and fund selling, general and
administrative costs and capital expenditures. @parating activities for the year ended Decembe®810 generated adequate cash to meet
our operating needs. For the next 12 months, weaxhat cash on hand, cash generated from opesatind our available revolving credit
facility will be sufficient to satisfy our anticiped cash needs for working capital and capital edjteres. For 2011, we expect our
commitments to fund production and developmentcestcluding capitalized interest and overhead es@g make contingent compensation
and residual payments (on films released to dair} capital expenditures and pay employee bonugelke approximately $435.8 million.

As of December 31, 2010, we had cash and cashalgote totaling $163.8 million. Our cash and caghialents consist of cash on
deposit and short-term money market investmeniscipally commercial paper and commercial paperuaufunds, that are rated AAA and
with maturities of three months or less when puselda Our cash and cash equivalents balance at Dec&t, 2010 decreased by $67.4 mil
from that of $231.2 million at December 31, 2008ntponents of this change in cash for the year ebdegmber 31, 2010, as well as for
change in cash for the years ended December 39,&002008, are provided below in more detalil.

Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities for teans ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 wakoaes (in thousands

2010 2009 2008
Net cash provided by operating activit $91,82: $173,51: $207,55(
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During the year ended December 31, 2010, our n@irce of cash from operating activities was attdble to the collection of revenue
from Paramount related 8hrek Forever After'andHow to Train Your Dragon’svorldwide theatrical releases and worldwide teliewisand
home entertainment revenues for a variety of filpasticularlyMonsters vs. AliensKkung Fu PandandMadagascar: Escape 2 AfricaAs we
did not have a theatrical release in the fourthrtgnaf 2009, our cash inflow from operating adtes was approximately 37% less for the year
ended December 31, 2010 than that for 2009 (whéctefited from the collection of revenue from ouf&@ourth quarter theatrical release). In
addition, at December 31, 2010, our accounts rab&vfrom Paramount increased by $71.3 million fthat at December 31, 2009 largely
because of worldwide home entertainment revenugedasn our 2010 releasesSfirek Forever AfteandHow to Train Your Dragon which
we anticipate collecting during the first half di?’L. Net cash used in operating activities fonhar ended December 31, 2010 was primarily
attributable to $23.5 million paid related to annnaentive compensation payments, $26.9 millioid aet of refunds) to an affiliate of a
former stockholder related to tax benefits realiged010 from the Tax Basis Increase, and spenfdinthe production of our feature films,
television specials/series, live performances arhe virtual worlds.

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2068 primarily attributable to the collection of eewe fromMadagascar: Escape 2
Africa’s worldwide theatrical and home entertainment releldseg Fu Panda’svorldwide home entertainment release, and, tosetesxtent,
the collection oMonsters vs. Aliensvorldwide theatrical revenues and worldwide homiegainment and television revenues for our other
films, includingShrek the Third, Bee Movie, MadagasaeadOver the Hedge In addition, at December 31, 2009, our non-Patarhtrade
accounts receivable increased significantly froat #t December 31, 2008 largely because of revpriomarily associated with merchandising
and promotion activities, which was largely colbztin early 2010. The operating cash provided byctilection of revenues during 2009 was
offset by $28.5 million paid (net of refunds) toafiliate of a former stockholder related to taenlefits realized in 2008 from the Tax Basis
Increase and $37.6 million paid related to annuegitive compensation payments. Additionally, i020e received income tax refunds
totaling $7.7 million. The operating cash providsdrevenues was also partially offset by film protion spending and participation and
residual payments.

Net cash provided by operating activities for 20G& primarily attributable to the collection of eewe associated wittung Fu Panda’s
andBee Movie’svorldwide theatrical releaseShrek the Third’svorldwide home entertainment release and internatitelevision revenues,
worldwide television revenue fddadagascaland, to a lesser extent, the collection of worldwtielevision and home entertainment revenues
for our other films, including@ver the HedgeShrek 2andShrek. The operating cash provided by the collectioreoEnues during 2008 was
offset by $37.6 million paid to an affiliate of arfer stockholder related to tax benefits realine2007 from the Tax Basis Increase, $37.3
million paid (net of refunds) for estimated fedemal state income taxes and $44.4 million paidedlto 2007 employee bonus plans. The
operating cash provided by revenues was also priifset by film production and development spemand participation and residual
payments.
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Investing Activitie:
Net cash used in investing activities for the yearded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was asvfo(in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Net cash used in investing activiti $(50,639) $(74,399) $(49,049

Net cash used in investing activities for the yearded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 primaxfifad to the investment in property
and equipment. The decrease in the investmenbioepty, plant and equipment when comparing 201200 was largely due to the
completion of the expansion of our headquarteesaiy 2010. The increase in the investment in pitgpplant and equipment when comparing
2009 to 2008 was largely related to the expansi@muoheadquarters and new strategic technologdiafivies and alliances.

Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities for the yearded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was asv&(in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Net cash used in financing activiti $(108,61¢) $(130,51¢) $(188,34¢)

Net cash used in financing activities for the yetaded December 31, 2010 was primarily compriseémirchases of our Class A
common stock. During the year ended December 310,20e repurchased approximately 35% more shasgswie did during the year ended
December 31, 2009. Net cash used in financingities\for the year ended December 31, 2009 prifigipecluded the $73.0 million
repayment of financing associated with our headgummade in October 2009 and repurchases of @as@ common stock. For the year
ended December 31, 2008, net cash used in fina@acitigties was primarily comprised of repurchasgsur Class A common stock.

Contractual Obligations

Contractual Obligations. As of December 31, 2010, we had contractualmaments to make the following payments (in thoutsaanc
on an undiscounted basis):

Payments Due by Year

Contractual Cash Obligations 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Total

Operating lease $ 9,881 $11,00¢ $5298 $517¢ $5,50¢ $ 8,457 $45,33(

Other 16,20¢ 5,85¢ 76€ 467 — — 23,29:
Total contractual cash obligatio $26,087 $16,86: $6,061 $5,646€ $550¢ $ 8,457 $68,62:

As of December 31, 2010, we had non-cancelablattaemmitments totaling approximately $25.3 millitnat are payable over the next
five years.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are outlinedNiate 2 to the audited consolidated financial stetiets contained elsewhere in this Fi
10-K. We prepare our consolidated financial stat@sa accordance with United States generally @teckaccounting principles GAAP 7).
In doing so, we have to make estimates and assongtiat affect our reported amounts of assetslitias, revenues and expenses, as well as
related disclosure of contingent assets and lt@slincluding estimates of ultimate revenues aygtcof film and television product, estimates
of product sales that will be returned, the potdrdutcome of future tax consequences of eventdtnge been recognized in our financial
statements and estimates used in the determinaititre fair value of stock options and other eqaityards for the determination of stolssec
compensation. In some cases, changes in the adup@stimates are reasonably likely to occur frariqa to period. Accordingly, actual
results could differ materially from our estimat&s.the extent that there are material differerizete/een these estimates and actual results, ou
financial condition or results of operations wil bffected. We base our estimates on past exper@rdt other assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances, and we evaheste estimates on an ongoing basis. We beli@tahth application of the following
accounting policies, which are important to ouafinial position and results of operations, requsigsificant judgments and estimates on the
part of management.

Revenue Recognition

The majority of our revenue is derived from ourectgature film business (95% in 2010). We recogrexenue from the distribution of
our animated feature films when earned and repaated by our distributor. Pursuant to our disttibo and servicing arrangements, we
recognize our feature film revenue net of resefgeseturns, rebates and other incentives afterd@tributor has (i) retained a distribution fee
of 8.0% of revenue (without deduction for any dizition and marketing costs or third-party disttibo and fulfillment services fees) and
(i) recovered all of its permissible distributiand marketing costs with respect to our films ditleby-title basis. Because a third party is the
principal distributor of our films, the amount @venue that we recognize from our films in any giperiod is dependent on the timing,
accuracy and sufficiency of the information we reedrom our distributor. As typical in the filmdustry, our distributor may make
adjustments in future periods to information pregiy provided to us that could have a material iohjpa our operating results in later periods.
Furthermore, management may, in its judgment, madkerial adjustments to the information reporteabydistributor in future periods to
ensure that revenues are accurately reflectedrifirancial statements. To date, our distributos hat made subsequent, nor has management
made, material adjustments to information providgaur distributor and used in the preparationwfhistorical financial statements.

Revenue from the theatrical exhibition of filmgésognized at the later of when a film is exhibitedheaters or when revenue is repo
by our distributor.

Revenue from the sale of our feature film home @idgits is recognized at the later of when prodsiatade available for retail sale
and when video sales to customers are reportesl by third parties, such as fulfillment servicevpders or distributors. Prior to April 1, 2010,
our distributor reported our international homeeetainment results on a 30-day lag. We eliminaltési30-day lag
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effective April 1, 2010 and, as a result our Decenf010 home entertainment releases in interndtieréories (which previously would ha
been recorded in January 2011) were included ir20w0 results. This change in reporting resulte$2in.1 million of additional revenue, or
$0.10 of diluted net income per share, during kiiee months ended December 31, 2010. For the 1thsiended December 31, 2010, this
change resulted in $28.6 million of additional newe, or $0.11 of diluted net income per sharedbfiteon, we and our distributor provide for
future returns of home video product and for cugpprograms and sales incentives. We and our lolistni calculate these estimates by
analyzing a combination of historical returns, eatreconomic trends, projections of consumer denf@malur product and point-of-sale data
available from certain retailers. Based on thisiinfation, a percentage of each sale is reservesto@ers are typically given varying rights of
return, from 15% up to 100%. However, although we aur distributor allow various rights of retuior our customers, we do not believe that
these rights are critical in establishing returtinestes, because other factors, such as our fdata@xperience with similar types of sales,
information we receive from retailers and our assesnt of the product’s appeal based on domestioffme success and other research, are
more important to the estimation process.

Revenue from both free and pay television licensigggements is recognized at the later of the titagoroduction is made available for
exhibition in those markets or it is reported tdoysour distributor.

Revenue from licensing and merchandising is reasghivhen the associated feature film or televisjpecial/series has been releasec
the criteria for revenue recognition have been ilneensing and merchandising related minimum guaesare generally recognized as
revenue upon the theatrical release of a film awgdlty-based revenues (revenues based upon a pegeeasf net sales of the products) are
generally recognized as revenue in periods whealtieg are reported by licensees or cash is redeive

Film and Other Inventory Costs Amortization

Capitalized film, television special/series anclperformance production costs, contingent comgiemsand residuals are amortized ¢
included in costs of revenues in the proportion ¢htitle’s revenue during the periodQurrent Revenue”) bears to its estimated remaining
total revenue to be received from all sourcedl{imate Revenue”) as of the beginning of the current fiscal perioter the individual-film-
forecast-computation method. The amount of capidliproduction costs that is amortized each peviidherefore depend on the ratio of
Current Revenue to Ultimate Revenue for each figlgvision special/series or live performance fmhsperiod. We make certain estimates
judgments of Ultimate Revenue to be received fehddm, television special/series or live perfomea based on information received fr
our distributor or operating partners, as well agwdedge of the industry. Ultimate Revenue inclugstimates of revenue that will be earned
over a period not to exceed 10 years from the ofaitgtial release. Our estimates of ultimate filavenue subsequent to their initial theatrical
release is sensitive to the extent of home ententaint revenues achieved. Home entertainment safgdased on a variety of factors includ
demand for our titles, the volume and quality ahpeting home entertainment products, marketingprathotional strategies, as well as
economic conditions. Historically, there has beetoae correlation between the success of a filthéndomestic box office market and the
film’s success in the international theatrical avatldwide home entertainment markets. In genetlatsfthat achieve
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domestic box office success also tend to experisaceess in the home entertainment and internatibeatrical markets. While we continue
believe that domestic box office performance i®g indicator of a film’s potential performance rese subsequent markets, we do not believe
that it is the only factor influencing the film’siscess in these markets and recognize that a tdrigher market and film-specific factors can
have a significant impact.

Estimates of Ultimate Revenue and anticipated @pétion and residual costs are reviewed perioljicald are revised if necessary. A
change in any given period to the Ultimate Revefiouan individual title will result in an increase decrease to the percentage of amortization
of capitalized production costs relative to a poegi period. An increase in estimate of Ultimate éxeies will lower the percentage rate of
amortization while, conversely, a decrease in stermate of Ultimate Revenue will raise the percgateate of amortization. In addition, we
evaluate capitalized production costs for impairtre&ch reporting period on a title-by-title basigstimated remaining revenue is not
sufficient to recover the unamortized capitalizedduiction costs for that title, the unamortizeditaized production costs will be written do
to fair value determined using a net present vesleulation. The cost of any such write downs aftected in costs of revenues.

Stock-Based Compensation

We record employee stock-based compensation byuriegshe cost of employee services received irharge for an award of equity
instruments based on the grant-date fair valubeftvard. As of December 31, 2010, the total corsgEm cost related to unvested equity
awards granted to employees (excluding equity asvaith performance objectives deemed not probahéelsievement) but not yet recogni
was approximately $98.6 million. This cost will Bmortized on a straight-line basis over a weiglteztage period of 1.8 years.

The fair value of stock option grants with eithensce-based or performance-based vesting critegatimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Some ofghienary input assumptions of the Black-Scholesasppricing model are volatility,
dividend yield, the weighted average expected optom and the risk-free interest rate. Given aaklof sufficient historical exercise data for
stock option grants, we apply the “simplified” methof calculating the weighted average expectad fer “plain vanilla” awards. The
simplified method defines the weighted average etqueterm as being the average of the weightedageenf the vesting period and contrac
term of each stock option granted. “Plain vanithgtions are defined as those granted at-the-mdraeyng service time vesting as a condition
to exercise, providing that non-vested optionsfareited upon termination and that there is atéditime to exercise the vested options after
termination of service, usually 90 days, and primgdhe options are non-transferable and hedgeable. Once sufficient information regarc
exercise behavior, such as historical exercise atagxercise information from relevant comparabiemal sources, becomes available, we
utilize another method to determine the weightestage expected term. For awards that are not “phanilla”, the Company determines the
expected term after considering all available fapiscific to the group of participants, which irdéubut are not limited) the following:
available exercise history, likelihood of exerdisesed on existing outstanding and exercisable ansard expected length of employment with
the Company. In addition, the estimated volatilitgorporates both historical volatility and the i volatility of publicly traded options.
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Additionally, management makes an estimate of ebgplforfeitures and is recognizing compensatioriscosly for those equity awards
expected to vest.

For equity awards that contain certain performadmgged measures, compensation costs are adjuseftbt the estimated probability of
vesting. For equity awards that contain a marksetaondition (such as vesting based upon stock-pgpreciation), we use a Monte-Carlo
simulation option-pricing model to determine theaasls grant-date fair value. The Monte-Carlo sintinlaoption-pricing model takes into
account the same input assumptions as the Blac&k&xmodel as outlined above, however, it alsd&rrincorporates into the fair-value
determination the possibility that the market ctindimay not be satisfied and impact of the possiliffering stock price paths. Compensation
costs related to awards with a market-based camditill be recognized regardless of whether theketacondition is satisfied, provided that
the requisite service has been provided.

Estimates of the fair value of equity awards areimended to predict actual future events or thleie ultimately realized by employees
who receive equity awards, and subsequent evemtsadiindicative of the reasonableness of the maigéstimates of fair value made by us.
Changes to the Company’s assessment of the prapaiiibchieving performance criteria or the saigfon of such criteria for performance-
based awards granted to employees could significaffect compensation expense to be recognizddtime periods.

Provision for Income Taxes

We account for income taxes pursuant to the asseligbility method, and, accordingly, deferred &ssets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable tiedihces between the financial statement carryimguats of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax basis and operating loss axdredit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets atullities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yeawsghith those temporary differences are expectdxbtecovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changexirates or a change in tax status is recognizéttbome in the period that includes the
enactment date. We record a valuation allowancedoce our deferred income tax assets to the antioaiits more likely than not to be
realized. In evaluating our ability to recover algferred income tax assets, management considengaéhble positive and negative evidence,
including our operating results, ongoing prudert #rasible tax-planning strategies and forecaststafe taxable income. In the fourth quarter
of 2010 we released $348.1 million of our valuatdiowance because we believe it is more likelyithat that we will be able to generate
sufficient levels of future profitability to reabzsubstantially all of our deferred tax assets.

At the time of our separation from Old DreamWorksdtos, affiliates controlled by a former stockhei@éntered into a series of
transactions that resulted in a partial increagbertax basis of the Company’s tangible and intdagssets (previously defined above as the
Tax Basis Increase). The Tax Basis increase wa&d $illlion, resulting in a potential tax benefitue of approximately $595.0 million that is
expected to be realized over 15 years if we geaeuafficient taxable income. The Tax Basis Increasxpected to reduce the amount of tax
that we may pay in the future to the extent we gateetaxable income in sufficient amounts in theife. We are obligated to remit to the
affiliate of our former stockholder 85% of any suzsh savings in U.S. Federal income tax and Galddranchise tax and certain other rel;
tax benefits, subject to repayment if it is deteradi that these savings should not have been alaitahs.
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Additionally, we use a single comprehensive modelddress uncertainty in tax positions and apphirdamum recognition threshold and
a measurement attribute for tax positions takeexpected to be taken in a tax return in order teebbegnized in the financial statements. We
continue to follow the practice of recognizing irtst and penalties related to income tax mattepaef the provision for income taxes.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncesnplgase see Note 2 to the audited consolidateddial statements contain
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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Iltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market and Exchange Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risl While we continue actively to monitor fluctuais in interest rates, we currently have minimaglosxire to interes
rate risk on our financing arrangements as we haveutstanding borrowings on our revolving creddility.

Foreign Currency Risk. We are subject to foreign currency rate fluctuatibecause a major portion of our business, inctudin
Paramount’s distribution of our films, is derivedrh foreign countries where a significant amounthef transactions are conducted in local
currencies. Historically, because our films haveeagelly been profitable internationally, we haveéfited from a weaker U.S. dollar and have
been adversely affected by a stronger U.S. datlative to any foreign currency. In addition, oilm&’ foreign currency transactions contain to
some degree a natural foreign currency hedge é&ipts because certain significant offsetting distion expenses are denominated in the
same local currency.

While the information provided to us by our distribr does not enable us to isolate or preciselytifyahe impact of any foreign
currencys rate fluctuation on our earnings, our distribwtoes provide sufficient information to enable agdentify those foreign currencies
which we are primarily exposed and to make a gémstanate of the impact of a percentage changleeise foreign currencies on our reported
earnings. During 2010, our most significant foreagmrency exposures were with respect to the Endatlae British pound. We estimate that a
hypothetical 10% change in the foreign currencyhexge rate between the U.S. Dollar and Euro antdt8eDollar and the British pound
would have impacted our 2010 earnings by approxip&i7.2 million and $3.3 million, respectively.

Additionally, from time to time we may enter intorfvard contracts to hedge future production cost®dinated in a foreign currency or
to minimize exposure to fluctuations of foreign reuncy rates related to outstanding receivablesmderaied in a foreign currency. The majo
of our exposure is related to the Australian Dadlad the British Pound. As of December 31, 2010hace no outstanding forward contracts,
and for the year ended December 31, 2010, redlaretyn currency gains and losses resulting froes¢hcontracts were immaterial. During
next 12 months, we expect to continue to use fatwantracts to hedge future production costs oflisarperformance production costs
denominated in the Australian Dollar.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat
The Index to Financial Statements and Supplem®#td is on page F-1 following the signature pages.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure

As previously disclosed in our Current Report onnr@-K dated October 21, 2010, we expect to changermlapendent registered pul
accounting firm on February 24, 2011 from Ernst &uYig LLP to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP following fiting of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Information regarding the change initidependent registered public accounting firm wiasldsed in such Current Report on
Form 8-K. There were no disagreements or any raplartevents requiring disclosure under Item 304l egulation S-K.
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Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedure

As of December 31, 2010, our management carriedetvaluation, under the supervision and withpmticipation of our chie
executive officer and chief financial officer, diet effectiveness of the design and operation o€thrapany’s disclosure controls and
procedures as such term is defined under ExchangBéle 13a-15(e). Based on this evaluation, thef@xecutive officer and the chief
financial officer have concluded that, as of Decentfil, 2010, such disclosure controls and proceduege effective to provide reasonable
assurance that we record, process, summarize pod the information we must disclose in report the file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, within the tierops specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financiglaing. Under the supervision and
with the participation of management, including théef executive officer and chief financial officenanagement assessed the effectiveness ¢
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2010 based on the framework in “Inte@witrol—Integrated Framework” issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission. Based on that assessmenggearent has concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was effee at December 31, 2010 to provide reasonablerasse regarding the reliability of our
financial reporting and the preparation of our ficial statements for external purposes in accoearnih United States generally accepted
accounting principles. Due to its inherent limibeu$, internal control over financial reporting nragt prevent or detect misstatements. In
addition, projections of any evaluation of effeetiess to future periods are subject to the riskatwatrols may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of caanpé with the policies or procedures may detegorat

Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered pubticounting firm, has audited our financial staeta included in this Form 10-K
and has issued its report on the effectivenesstefrial control over financial reporting as of Dexteer 31, 2010, which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirng

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting that occurred during the peramdered by this Annual Report that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdincial reporting.

Iltem 9B.  Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Iltem 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

The information required by this Item is incorp@by reference from our Proxy Statement for thE128nnual Meeting of Stockholde
except for the information required by Item 401¢bRegulation S-K which is included in Part | ofgt-orm 10-K under the captiofEkecutive
Officers of the Registrant.”

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatior

The information required by this Item is incorp@by reference from our Proxy Statement for thEl2A@nnual Meeting of
Stockholders.
Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

The information required by this Item is incorp@cby reference from our Proxy Statement for thE128nnual Meeting of
Stockholders.
ltem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information required by this Item is incorp@by reference from our Proxy Statement for thEl2@nnual Meeting of
Stockholders.
Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Service

The information required by this Item is incorp@by reference from our Proxy Statement for thEl2B@nnual Meeting o
Stockholders.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule
(a)(1) Financial Statement:
See index on Page F-1.

(2)(2) Financial Statement Schedules
See index on Page-1.
(@)(3) and (b) Exhibits

The Exhibits listed in the Index to Exhibits (extémr Exhibit 32.1, which is furnished with this Fro 10-K), which appears immediately
following the signature page and is incorporateetineby reference, are filed as part of this FofvKlL

66



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this repas been signed on behalf of the
registrant by the undersigned, thereunto duly ai#bd on this 24 day of February, 2011.

DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.

By: /sl LEwisW. C OLEMAN

Lewis W. Coleman
President and Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

That the undersigned officers and directors of Brééorks Animation SKG, Inc. do hereby constitute apgoint Jeffrey Katzenberg and
Andrew Chang, and each of them, the lawful attorrey agent or attorneys and agents with power atibgty to do any and all acts and
things and to execute any and all instruments whaiti attorneys and agents, or either of themyuhéte may be necessary or advisable or
required to enable DreamWorks Animation SKG, lnccamply with the Securities Exchange Act of 19%lamended, and any rules or
regulations or requirements of the Securities axchBnge Commission in connection with this annapbrt on Form 10-K. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing power and authotite powers granted include the power and authtwisign the names of the undersigned
officers and directors in the capacities indicdietbw to this annual report on Form KGr amendment or supplements thereto, and eattie
undersigned hereby ratifies and confirms all tladéd sittorneys and agent, or either of them, staabdcause to be done by virtue hereof. This
Power of Attorney may be signed in several coutatesp

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hasueel this Power of Attorney as of the date indidadpposite his or her name.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated:

Signature Title Date
/'s/ JEFFREYK ATZENBERG Chief Executive Officer and Director (Princij February 24, 201
Jeffrey Katzenberg Executive Officer
/sl LEewisW. COLEMAN President, Chief Financial Officer and Director February 24, 2011
Lewis W. Coleman (Principal Financial Officer
/s/  HEATHERQ’C ONNOR Chief Accounting Officer February 24, 2011
Heather O'Connor (Principal Accounting Officer
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Signature

/'s/ ROGERA. E NRICO

Roger A. Enrico

/'s/  HARRY B RITTENHAM

Harry Brittenham

/s/ THomASE. FRESTON

Thomas E. Freston

/s/ JubsonNC. GREEN

Judson C. Green

/s/  MELLODY H OBSON

Mellody Hobson

/sl MICHAEL J. M ONTGOMERY

Michael J. Montgomery

/sl NATHAN M YHRVOLD

Nathan Myhrvold

/s/ RICHARD SHERMAN

Richard Sherman

Title

Chairman of the Board of Directa

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

February 24, 201

February 24, 2011

February 24, 201

February 24, 2011

February 24, 201

February 24, 2011

February 24, 2011

February 24, 201



DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, IN C.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPP LEMENTAL DATA

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

Consolidated Financial Statemer

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&0dQ00¢

Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseimecember 31, 2010, 2009 and 2
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2010, 20@9200¢
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTE RED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Dreamid@dnimation SKG, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc. (therf(any”) as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related coiasedl statements of income, stockholdetglity, and cash flows for each of the three y
in the period ended December 31, 2010. These fiabstatements are the responsibility of the Corgtmmanagement. Our responsibility it
express an opinion on these financial statemerssdoan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamliogUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@love present fairly, in all material respedts,¢donsolidated financial position of
DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc. at December 31, 2840 2009, and the consolidated results of itsatjmers and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31,20 conformity with U.S. generally accepted againg principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), DreamWorks
Animation SKG, Inc.’s internal control over finaatireporting as of December 31, 2010, based oeri@iestablished in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiaha@ur report dated February 24,
2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s! Ernst & Young LLP
Los Angeles, California
February 24, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Dreamid@dnimation SKG, Inc.:

We have audited DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc.teiinal control over financial reporting as of Det®mn31, 2010, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiof the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc.’smagement is responsible for maintaining effectivterinal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecégsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporti@gir responsibility is to express an opinion o ¢bmpanys internal control over financi
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@d@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstanceddlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagi€ithin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc. mtaimed, in all material respects, effective intécantrol over financial reporting
of December 31, 2010, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of DreamWorks Anim&K6,
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Inc. as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and theetetnsolidated statements of income, stockhdldersty, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20d @ar report dated February 24, 2011 expressechgualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 24, 2011
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DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2010

2009

(in thousands,
except par value and
share amounts)

Assets
Cash and cash equivale $ 163,81¢ $ 231,24
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance fobtfaliaccounts 40,13¢ 42,17
Income taxes receivab 31C 9,01¢
Receivable from Paramount, net of allowance fortdih accounts 242,62 171,29:
Film and other inventory costs, r 772,66¢ 695,96
Prepaid expenst 21,79t 25,50¢
Other asset 9,88¢ 15,95¢
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulatgetiation and amortizatic 174,80 161,55¢
Deferred taxes, ni 295,60: 7,66¢
Goodwill 34,21¢ 34,21¢
Total asset $1,755,86 $1,394,59
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 3,561f $ 2,40C
Accrued liabilities 143,09¢ 111,28:
Payable to former stockhold 329,59( 67,45¢
Deferred revenue and other advan 20,79: 60,87(
Total liabilities 496,99¢ 242,000
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Class A common stock, par value $.01 per share088(M00 shares authorized, 97,436,947 and
95,967,515 shares issued, as of December 31, 20iPGH9, respectivel 97t 96C
Class B common stock, par value $.01 per sharep@B@®00 shares authorized, 10,838,731 and
11,419,461 shares issued and outstanding, as ehiiesr 31, 2010 and 2009, respecti 10¢ 114
Additional paic-in capital 979,17 922,68:
Retained earning 966,93! 796,29¢
Less: Class A Treasury common stock, at cost, 23083 and 20,430,031 shares, as of December 31,
2010 and 2009, respective (688,329 (567,46))
Total stockholder equity 1,258,87. 1,152,591
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $1,755,86 $1,394,59

See accompanying notes.
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DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008
(in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Revenue! $ 784,79: $725,17¢ $650,05:
Costs of revenue 506,42. 433,36 365,48!
Gross profil 278,36¢ 291,81 284,56°
Product developmel 3,18: 2,74¢ 2,05(
Selling, general and administrative exper 108,34 95,77: 110,69(
Operating incom 166,84« 193,29¢ 171,82°
Interest income, ne 59¢ 1,95: 9,30t
Other income, ne 8,107 7,19¢ 5,171
Increase in income tax benefit payable to formecldtolder (289,05)) (41,760 (23,465
(Loss) income before income tax (113,509 160,68! 162,83¢
(Benefit) provision for income taxe (284,14) 9,65( 20,34(
Net income $ 170,63¢ $151,03! $142,49¢
Basic net income per she $ 2.0C $ 1.7t $ 1.5¢
Diluted net income per sha $  1.9¢ $ 1.7¢ $ 157
Shares used in computing net income per s

Basic 85,227 86,38¢ 89,88(

Diluted 87,18: 87,30 90,97¢

See accompanying notes.
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DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
(In thousands, except share amounts)

Balance at December 31, 20C

Dividend to norcontrolling minority interes

Issuance of shares for stock option exercises and
vesting of restricted shar

Stock-based compensatic

Shortfall in tax benefits from employee equity asls

Purchase of treasury sha

Net income

Balance at December 31, 20C

Dividend to norcontrolling minority interes

Issuance of shares for stock option exercises and
vesting of restricted shar

Stoclk-based compensatic

Excess tax benefit from employee equity aw:

Purchase of treasury sha

Net income

Balance at December 31, 20C

Issuance of shares for stock option exercises and
vesting of restricted shar

Stoclk-based compensatic

Excess tax benefit from employee equity aw:

Purchase of treasury sha

Net income

Balance at December 31, 201

Class A
Additional Treasury Stockholders
Common Stock Paid-in Retained Common Stock

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Shares Amount Equity
106,531,78 $1,06t $831,11! $502,76: 10,445,27 $(316,36¢) $1,018,57
— — (17€) — — — (17€)
268,82: 3 1,47¢ — — — 1,482
— — 44,70 — — — 44,70
= = (474) = = = (474)
— — — — 6,987,451 (189,26()  (189,26()
— — — 142,49¢ — — 142,49¢
106,800,60 $1,06¢ $876,65. $645,26. 17,432,72 $(505,62¢) $1,017,35:
— — (81) — — — (81)
586,37: 6 4,67( — — — 4,67¢
— — 40,97( — — — 40,97(
— — 471 — — — 471
— — — —  2997,30. (61,837  (61,83)
— — — 151,03¢ — — 151,03!
107,386,97 $1,07¢ $922,68. $796,29¢ 20,430,03 $(567,46.) $1,152,59
888,70: 9 9,33( — — — 9,33¢
— — 45,03¢ — — — 45,03¢
— — 2,123 — — — 2,12;
— — — — 3,404,051 (120,86) (120,86Y)
— — — 170,63¢ — — 170,63¢
108,275,67 $1,08: $979,17° $966,93! 23,834,08 $(688,324 $1,258,87.

See accompanying notes.
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DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Amortization and writ-off of film and other inventory cos
Impairment charges related to online virtual watde
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Depreciation and amortizatic
Revenue earned against deferred revenue and athemnees
Deferred taxes, nt
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade accounts receivat
Receivable from Paramou
Film and other inventory cos
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Payable to former stockhold
Income taxes payable/receivable,
Deferred revenue and other advan
Net cash provided by operating activit
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipn
Net cash used in investing activiti
Financing Activities
Receipts from exercise of stock optic
Excess (shortfall in) tax benefits from employeaiggawards
Deferred debt issuance co
Purchase of treasury sto
Repayment of campus financi
Net cash used in financing activiti
Decrease in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid (refunded) during the year for incomesaxe

Cash paid during the year for interest, net of am®uapitalizec

See accompanying notes.
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Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
(in thousands)

$ 170,63¢ $ 151,03! $ 142,49¢
424,17¢ 349,27 324,69

11,95/ — —
31,26: 30,19: 37,60(
7,12( 3,132 3,461
(86,037 (73,199 (75,207
(287,93)) 19,38( 21,61t
2,03¢ (37,625 (1,080
(71,337 15,23( 86,12¢
(464,12) (380,33 (405,201
(9,360) (11,119 16,51¢
33,08( (8,617) 9,891
262,13 13,26¢ (14,179
7,92¢ (1,71¢) (38,949
60,28t 104,61. 99,76¢
91,82 173,51. 207,55(
(50,63) (74,394 (49,049
(50,637) (74,399 (49,049
9,33¢ 4,67¢ 1,47¢
2,90¢ (359) 357
— — (922)
(120,86)) (61,839 (189,26()

— (73,000 —
(108,616 (130,516 (188,344
(67,426 (31,399 (29,845
231,24¢ 262,64 292,48¢
$ 163,81¢ $ 231,24! $ 262,64«
$ (7,06 $ (7,659 $ 37,31
$ 52¢ $ 72€ $ 86¢




DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business

The businesses and activities of the DreamWorksnation SKG, Inc. (‘DreamWorks Animation ” or the “Company”) primarily
include the development, production and exploitatbanimated films and characters in the worldwitEatrical, home entertainment,
television, merchandising and licensing and otharkets. The Company’s films are distributed in theal, home entertainment and television
markets on a worldwide basis by Paramount PictGaporation, a subsidiary of Viacom Inc.\(facom "), and its affiliates (collectively, “
Paramount”) pursuant to a distribution agreement and alfaieént services agreement (collectively, thedramount Agreements’) (See
Note 3). The Company generally retains all othgits to exploit its films, including commercial-in and promotional rights with respect to
each film, as well as merchandising, interactiiterdry publishing, music publishing and soundtregkts. In addition, the Company continues
to build upon the value of its intellectual progenly seeking opportunities beyond its core animé&eatlire film business and creating high-
quality entertainment through the development anodyiction of non-theatrical special content sucketevision specials and series, live
performances and an online virtual world game basecharacters from its feature films.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Compaesent the financial position, results of operet and cash flows of DreamWorks
Animation and its wholly owned subsidiaries. In gidd, the Company reviews its relationships withey entities to identify whether they are
variable interest entities ¥IE ") as defined by the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB ), and to assess whether the Company is
the primary beneficiary of such entity. If the deténation is made that the Company is the primanydficiary, then the entity is consolidated.

All significant intercompany accounts and transatdihave been eliminated.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the prior period consolidateldiize sheets have been reclassified to conforimet@®10 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith United States generally accepted accountitaciples “ GAAP ") requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondféattae amounts reported in the financial statet:iand accompanying notes, including
estimates of ultimate revenues and ultimate cddibm television product and live performancestimates relating to the recoverability of the
online virtual world, estimates of product salestthill be returned and the amount of receivaliies tiltimately will be collected, the potential
outcome of
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DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

future tax consequences of events that have beegnized in the Companyfinancial statements, loss contingencies, arichasts used in tt
determination of the fair value of equity awardsgtock-based compensation or their probabilityesfting. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. To the extent that there are ialatiEfferences between these estimates and aasalts, the Companyfinancial condition ¢
results of operations will be affected. Estimatestzmsed on past experience and other assumptiansianagement believes are reasonable
under the circumstances, and management evalb&ss éstimates on an ongoing basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on dggumkshor-term money market investments, principally comnargaper an
commercial paper mutual funds, that are rated AA4 with maturities of three months or less wherchased.

Financial I nstruments and Concentration of Credit Risk

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, adsaeceivable, accounts payable, advances anddmndwings (if any) and other de
approximates carrying value due to the short-temtunity of such instruments and floating interedes.

Financial instruments that potentially subject@wmpany to concentrations of credit risk consighprily of cash and cash equivalents
and accounts receivable. The Company limits itoempe to credit loss by placing its cash and cgsiivalents in short-term money-market
investments, which are rated AAA, with several figil institutions. Such investments, which arduded in “Cash and cash equivalents” on
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets|emsfied as available-for-sale and reported atvalue, based on quoted prices in active
markets. There were no unrealized gains or losssscated with these investments at December 31). Fbr the years ended December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded intereste of $1.3 million, $1.0 million and $8.5 mdli, respectively, from these
investments.

Pursuant to the Comparsydistribution and servicing arrangements, sigaiftcaccounts receivable may be due from Paramoamttime
to time. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, $242lkomand $171.3 million, respectively, were duerh Paramount (see Note 3). Accounts
receivable resulting from revenues earned in atierkets are derived from sales to customers logaiadipally in North America, Europe a
Asia. The Company and its distributor perform omgogredit evaluations of their customers and gdlyeda not require collateral.

I nvestments

Investments associated with the Comf’'s 2007 no-qualified deferred compensation plan (see Noteat8Xxlassified as availal-for-
sale. Such investments are recorded at fair valmed on quoted prices in active markets, and limedagains and losses are included in other
comprehensive income/(loss) until realized. Fonythars ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, any ira@gains
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DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

and losses were not material. Investments areweden a regular basis to evaluate whether a detlifair value below cost is other than
temporary. There were no investment losses recdatatie years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the distributifdts animated feature films when earned andntep to it by its distributor an
fulfillment services provider. Pursuant to the Paoant Agreements, the Company recognizes revereraged from its feature films net of
reserves for returns, rebates and other incendiftes Paramount has (i) retained a distributionde®.0% of revenue (without deduction of any
distribution and marketing costs or third-partytdisition and fulfillment services fees) and (Bcovered all of its distribution and marketing
costs with respect to the Company’s films on & tiy title basis. Prior to April 1, 2010, Paramoregorted the Company’s international home
entertainment results on a 30-day lag. The Compéiminated this 30-day lag effective April 1, 20Hhd as such, the results from the
Company’s December 2010 international home entertant releases, which previously would have beeorded in January 2011 were
included in the Company’s results for the year @éndecember 31, 2010. This change in reporting teduh $27.1 million of additional
revenue, or $0.10 of diluted net income per stdugng the three months ended December 31, 20¥@hEd 2 months ended December 31,
2010, this change resulted in $28.6 million of &ddal revenue, or $0.11 of diluted net income gheare.

Additionally, because a third party, Paramounthésprincipal distributor of the Company’s flmeetamount of revenue that is
recognized from films in any given period is depemdon the timing, accuracy and sufficiency ofitifermation received from Paramount. As
is typical in the film industry, Paramount may maldustments in future periods to information poexgly provided to the Company that could
have a material impact on the Company’s operatsglts in later periods. Furthermore, managememt mats judgment, make material
adjustments to the information reported by Pararhtuansure that revenues are accurately refleotdte Company’s financial statements. To
date, Paramount has not made, nor has the Compaaby, material adjustments to information providgdParamount and used in the
preparation of the Company’s historical financialtements.

Revenue from the theatrical exhibition of flmgézognized at the later of when a film is exhibitedheaters or when revenue is repo
by Paramount.

Revenue from the sale of feature film home videitsue recognized at the later of when product é&lmavailable for retail sale and wl
video sales to customers are reported by thirdgsarsuch as fulfillment service providers or sudtributors. The Company and its fulfillment
services provider provide for future returns of leoemtertainment product and for customer programssales incentives. Management
calculates these estimates by analyzing a combimafihistorical returns, current economic tremmsjections of consumer demand for the
Company’s product and point-of-sale data avail&fole certain retailers. Based on this informatiamercentage of each sale is reserved.
Customers are typically given varying rights otret from 15%

F-11



DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

up to 100%. However, although the Company andiifglinent services provider allow various rightsreturn for customers, management
does not believe that these rights are criticalstablishing return estimates, because other fgatach as historical experience with similar
types of sales, information received from retaikand management’s assessment of the product’s lapgsed on domestic box office success
and other research, are more important to the estmprocess.

Revenue from both free and pay television licensigggements for the Company’s films is recognizetielater of the time the
production is made available for exhibition in thasarkets or it is reported by Paramount. Long-teom-interest-bearing receivables arising
from television licensing agreements are discoutdgutesent value in amounts due from the Compadigisibutor.

Revenue from licensing and merchandising arrangésrigmecognized when the associated feature filtelevision special/series has
been released and the criteria for revenue redogrtive been met. Licensing and merchandisinge@lainimum guarantees are generally
recognized as revenue upon the theatrical releeasdilm and royalty-based revenues (revenues baped a percentage of net sales of the
products) are generally recognized as revenueringgewhen royalties are reported by licenseessh ds received.

Costs of Revenues

Film and Other Inventory Costs. The production cost of the Company’s animagsdure films, television specials/series and live
performances, are stated at the lower of costdessmulated amortization, or fair value. Productioerhead, a component of film costs,
includes allocable costs of individuals or deparitaavith exclusive or significant responsibilityr filne production of films or television
product. Substantially all of the Company’s resesrare dedicated to the production of its filmsi€@dized production overhead does not
include selling, general and administrative expsnbgerest expense on funds invested in produdifi@my, is capitalized into film costs until
production is completed. In addition to the filmmglaelevision specials/series being produced, afgisoductions in development are
capitalized as development film costs and are tearesd to film production costs when a film or téon special/series is set for production
the event a film or television special/series iss&i for production within three years from thedithe first costs are capitalized or the film or
television special/series is abandoned, all susksare generally expensed. See Note 4 for disnussiated to impairment charges recorde
film and other inventory costs during the year ehBecember 31, 2010.

Film and Other Inventory Cost Amortization.Once a film, television special/series or lpgrformance is released, capitalized
productions costs are amortized and participatimtsresidual costs are accrued on an individuall#sis in the proportion that the revenue
during the period for each title Current Revenue”) bears to the estimated remaining total revenueetreceived from all sources for each
title (* Ultimate Revenue”) as of the beginning of the current fiscal peridtie amount of film and other inventory costs thamortized each
period will depend on the ratio of
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DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

Current Revenue to Ultimate Revenue for each filevision special/series or live performance fartsperiod. The Company makes certain
estimates and judgments of Ultimate Revenue teebeived for each title based on information readivem its distributor or its operating
partners, as well as its knowledge of the indudiifimate Revenue does not include estimates adfrreg that will be earned beyond 10 yea
a film’s initial theatrical release date.

Estimates of Ultimate Revenue and anticipated @petion and residual costs are reviewed periolji¢althe ordinary course of business
and are revised if necessary. A change in any giegiod to the Ultimate Revenue for an individuthé twill result in an increase or decrease to
the percentage of amortization of capitalized filmd other inventory costs and accrued participatimhresidual costs relative to a previous
period.

Unamortized film, television special/series ane& Iperformance production costs are evaluated fpaiiment each reporting period on a
title-by-title basis. If estimated remaining neskdlows are not sufficient to recover the unanzedi production costs for that title, the
unamortized film and other inventory costs willwstten down to fair value determined using a netspnt value calculation.

Other. Direct costs for sales commissions to third paffiieghe licensing and merchandising of film chaeas and marketing and
promotion costs and other product costs assocwitedShrek The Musicand certain of the Company’s television speciati&sere recorded
in costs of revenues and are expensed when incurred

Product Development Expense

The Company records product development costs,hagrienarily consist of research and developmentscoscosts incurred pursuant to
development agreements with thjpdrty software developers. Product developmensdostirred prior to reaching the application depeien
stage are expensed. Certain software developmettt itwurred after reaching the application develept stage or for development costs that
have alternative future uses are capitalized. Toragainy determined that the application developratage for its online virtual world product
based orKung Fu Pandavas reached as of the second quarter 2009 anddaugly, began to capitalize such costs at thagtiAny product
development costs incurred to date for other thi@ge been expensed as the application develostagd has not been reached.

Advertising and Marketing Expenses

The costs of prints, advertising and marketingteeldo the exploitation of feature films are in@ttby the Company’s film distributor
pursuant to a distribution and servicing arrangdni@se Note 3). Advertising and marketing expetisasare not under the distribution and
servicing arrangement, which are those primarigpamted with live performance and online virtuarld activities, are expensed as incurred
by the Company. During the years ended Decembe2@®1), 2009 and 2008, the Company incurred adirggtend marketing expenses
totaling $11.0 million, $10.5 million and $6.1 nilh, respectively.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company records employee stock-based compendatimeasuring the cost of employee servicesvedean exchange for an award
of equity instruments based on the grant-datevidire of the award (see Note 14).

Estimates of the fair value of stock-based comp@rsawards are not intended to predict actualrbuavents or the value ultimately
realized by employees who receive such awardssabsequent events are not indicative of the reédemass of the original estimates of fair
value made by the Company. Changes to the Compasg&ssment of the probability of achieving perforae criteria or the satisfaction of
such criteria for performance-based awards gratednployees could significantly affect compensatgpense to be recognized in future
periods.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at therl@fvcost or fair value. Depreciation of propegigant and equipment is calculai
using the straight-line method over estimated Udiees assigned to each major asset category@srshelow:

Asset Category Estimated Useful Life
Buildings 40 year
Building Improvement: 10 year
Furniture, Fixtures and Oth 5-10 year
Software and Computer Equipme®) 3-5 year

@ Effective in the fourth quarter of 2008, on a prastiive basis the useful life for selected typesaffware, such as financial system

software, was determined to be five ye.

Leasehold improvements are amortized using théhtrine method over the life of the asset, no¢xceed the length of the lease.

Amortization of assets acquired under capital ledaséncluded in depreciation expense. Repairsnaaidtenance costs are expensed as
incurred.

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under tret asd liability method. Accordingly, deferred @ssets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attaiilatto differences between the financial stateroarmying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax basis and apieg loss and tax credit carryforwards. Defer@dassets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablemieda the years in which those temporary differsrare expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities change in tax rates or a change in tax stattecognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date. The Company recoveBiation allowance to reduce its deferred incoaxeaissets to the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized. In evaluating itsli¢y to recover its deferred income tax assédts, Company considers all available positive and

F-14



DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —(Continued)

negative evidence, including its operating resultgjoing prudent and feasible tax-planning strategnd forecasts of future taxable income.
See Note 9 for discussion of changes in the valnailowance on deferred tax assets during thegmded December 31, 2010.

At the time of the Company’s separation from thetgthen known as DreamWorks L.L.C. @ld DreamWorks Studios”) in 2004,
affiliates controlled by a former stockholder eptinto a series of transactions that resultedgaréial increase in the tax basis of the
Company'’s tangible and intangible asset$d% Basis Increas€). This Tax Basis Increase was initially $1.61ibih with a potential to reduce
the amount of tax that the Company may pay in titeré, to the extent the Company generates sufififigure taxable income, by $595
million. The Company is obligated to remit to tH#éliate of the former stockholder 85% of any suwsh savings under thisStockholder’'s
Tax Agreement” in U.S. Federal income tax and California frarsehtax and certain other related tax benefits estiltp repayment if it is
determined that these savings should not have &estable to the Company. Additionally, the taxeets of transactions with shareholders that
result in changes in the tax basis of a compargseta and liabilities should be recognized in gqlfitransactions with shareholders result in
the recognition of deferred tax assets from changése company’s tax basis of assets and liagdjtthe valuation allowance initially required
upon recognition of these deferred assets shoutddmeded in equity. Realized tax benefits cresyeduch transactions with shareholders in
subsequent periods should be included in a compangbme statement.

The Company uses a single comprehensive modebi@ssluncertainty in tax positions that establishesninimum recognition
threshold and a measurement attribute for tax ipasitaken or expected to be taken in a tax r@tuander to be recognized in the financial
statements. The Company continues to follow thetfw® of recognizing interest and penalties relateidlcome tax matters as part of the
provision for income taxes.

I mpairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates for impairment losses onlimed assets used in operations on an annual basgiben indicators of impairment
are present. If the Company determines that indisaif impairment exist, the undiscounted cash $leatimated to be generated by those
assets are compared to the assets’ carrying anmbtimnt. undiscounted cash flows are less than ¢lseta’ carrying amount, then the assets are
deemed to not be recoverable from future cash flwgsan impairment calculation is performed by heieing the fair value of any impaired
assets. The amount that an asset’s carrying valeeds the fair value is recorded as an impairhosst The Company has not identified any
such impairment indicators or recorded any impaihesses on long-lived assets, except as discusded.

In connection with the assessment of impairmembmod-lived assets, the Company also assesses imgxatiof the online virtual world
software in accordance with the same accountinigypoAs of December 31, 2009, other assets incluied million related to thKung Fu
Pandaonline virtual world software. During the year edd@ecember 31, 2010, once the asset was ready
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for its intended use, the Company began recogniingrtization of the asset using the straight-firethod over the estimated useful life of
three years. During the year ended December 31,204 Company determined that there were indisdtmat the asset was impaired as a r
of continued operating losses. The Company usedlzapility-weighted average of three cash flow scEs based on user and subscriber
growth to test the asset for recoverability. Basedhis test, it was determined that the remaimimgunt capitalized on the balance sheet w
not be recoverable and that an impairment exigtedordingly, the Company determined the fair vadfi¢he online virtual world software
using an income approach by calculating the pressgoe of future estimated cash flows during therested remaining useful life of the asset.
The fair value measurement was based on unobserirghlts derived from the Company’s assumptionsiehow market participants would
price the asset. Due to the nature of the asseketdata for similar assets was not availableaAssult of the fair value measurement, the
Company recorded an impairment of $11.9 millioniclythe year ended December 31, 2010, which repredehe excess of the carrying ve
over the fair value. This amount was recorded a$sanf revenues in the consolidated statementscofie. As of December 31, 2010, there
were no amounts recorded in other assets relatién tonline virtual world software.

Goodwill and Other I ntangible Assets

In connection with the Company’s separation frord DfeamWorks Studios in 2004, Old DreamWorks Stsidiantributed to the
Company its interests in Pacific Data Images, (h&DI ”) and its subsidiary, Pacific Data Images LLCPOI LLC ”). The Company had
goodwill of approximately $34.2 million as of Decker 31, 2010 and 2009, related to PDI. The Compeniprmed an annual impairment test
for goodwill in October of 2010, 2009 and 2008 aetermined that there was no impairment.

Additionally, intangible assets with finite livegesamortized over their estimated useful life te @ompany and are reviewed for
impairment. Finite-lived intangible assets are aimed on a straight-line basis over a period oé¢hio five years. Amortization for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was notiataldhe Company expects to record $5.7 millioraofortization over the next five
years.

Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates basic per share amountsdimgl dilution and using the weighted average nursbeommon shares
outstanding for the period, which includes the &@Hef treasury share purchases. Diluted per siramints are calculated using the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding dtiégeriod and, if dilutive, potential common slsapeitstanding during the period.
Potential common shares include unvested restrgttark, common shares issuable upon exercise df sqations and stock appreciation rights
using the treasury stock method and certain coetitlg issuable shares.
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Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of two componentsnoeme and other comprehensive income. Other celngmsive income refers to
revenue, expenses, gains and losses that undeatgrecepted accounting principles are recordedraelement of stockholders’ equity but
are excluded from net income. For the years endambidber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectivelyrttaats that were classified as other
comprehensive income were not material.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the FASB issued guidance on rex@mangements with multiple deliverables which effsctive for the Company i
of January 1, 2010. An arrangement may containipteltieliverables if it requires a company to parfanultiple revenue-generating activities
(that is, deliver products, services or rights $e assets). Arrangements that may contain mullgligerables are to be evaluated to determine
whether deliverables qualify as separate unitcobanting and, therefore, require separate reveseagnition. The guidance revises the
criteria for separating, measuring and allocatiogsideration received for deliverables under midtgdement arrangements. The guidance
requires companies to allocate revenue using théve selling price of each deliverable, which inbe estimated if the company does not |
a history of selling the deliverable on a standhalbasis or third-party evidence of selling pritlkee implementation of the new accounting
guidance did not have an impact on the Companyisaalated financial statements.

3. Distribution and Servicing Arrangements

Distribution and Servicing Arrangements with Paramt.  Pursuant to the Paramount Agreements, the @oyngranted Paramount ¢
its affiliates (including Old DreamWorks Studiobgtright to distribute its feature films in thea#i, home entertainment and television markets
on a worldwide basis through the later of (i) thmpanys delivery to Paramount of 13 new animated fedilmes and (ii) December 31, 201
unless, in either case, terminated earlier in atarore with the terms of the Paramount Agreemeihits.Jompany generally retains all other
rights to exploit its films, including commerciattin and promotional rights with respect to eatrth,fas well as merchandising, interactive,
literary publishing, music publishing and soundkraghts. If the Company or Paramount terminatesRaRramount Agreements, the Company’
existing and future films will generally be subjéatthe terms of any sub-distribution, servicingl $inensing agreements entered into by
Paramount that the Company has pre-approved.

The Paramount Agreements provide that DreamWorksation is responsible for all of the costs of depeng and producing its films,
including participation and residual costs, andaRaunt is generally responsible for all out-of-petogosts, charges and expenses incurred in
the distribution (including prints and the manutaetof home video units), advertising, marketingplicizing and promotion of each film. The
Paramount Agreements also provide that Paramowmttited to (i) retain a fee of 8.0% of revenuaétifwut deduction of any distribution or
marketing costs, and third-party distribution antfifment services fees) and (ii) recoup all of germissible distribution and marketing costs
and home video fulfillment costs with respect te @ompany’s
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films on a title-by-title basis prior to the Compyamreceiving any proceeds. If a film does not geteeravenue in all media, net of the 8.0% fee,
sufficient for Paramount to recoup its expensesutite Paramount Agreements, Paramount will netriti#led to recoup those costs from
proceeds of the Company’s other films and the Campéll not be required to repay Paramount for sunhecouped amounts.

In addition, under the Paramount Agreements, Pauairie obligated to pay the Company an annual mastbursement (currently $7.0
million per year). The Company recognizes a portibthe aggregate of each years’ cost reimbursesrentevenue upon the release of each
film. These annual cost reimbursements are indegr@rfdom Paramount’s right to recoup its distribntand marketing costs for each film and,
as a result, are recorded as revenue by the Conwigimyut regard to Paramount’s recoupment position.

Paramount: Other Services and Information As of December 31, 2010, the Company provideiled office space and
telecommunications support to Paramount. For tlae geded December 31, 2008, Paramount also protii@e@Gompany with corporate
aircraft services pursuant to the terms of an aft¢ime-share agreement. The cost of corporateadirservices was reimbursed pursuant to the
maximum amount permitted under the Federal Aviaidministration time-sharing regulations. For treayended December 31, 2008, the
Company incurred costs from Paramount totaling $dilBon. For the year ended December 31, 2010928td 2008, Paramount was charged
costs by the Company totaling $0.1 million, $0.2ion and $0.3 million, respectively. In additiomder the terms of the Paramount
Agreements, Paramount provides the Company witlaioeproduction-related services, including but limatted to film music, creative and
licensing services, archiving of film materials addits assistance as well as participation asidual accounting services.

4. Film and Other Inventory Costs
Film, live performance, television and other inv@gtcosts consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2010 2009
In release, net of amortizatic
Animated feature film® $ 328,17 $ 204,59
Television specials/serit 56,68¢ 28,511
In production:
Animated feature film: 341,31¢ 428,34+
Television specials/serit 14,35¢ 13,14¢
In developmen 32,12] 21,36¢
Total film, live performance and other inventorystg) ne $ 772,66¢ $ 695,96

@ Includes $13.6 million and $13.3 million of capirad live performance costs at December 31, 20809, respectively
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The Company anticipates that approximately 50%8#% of “in release” film and other inventory coatsof December 31, 2010 will be

amortized over the next 12 months and three yeaspgectively.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company’s estimatemfining net cash flows (calculated on a net priegglue basis) to be generated

from theShrek The Musicaburing show would not be sufficient to recover tiramortized costs for that production. The unaineuit
inventory costs were written down to fair valueedetined using a net present value calculation. Atingly during the year ended
December 31, 2010, the Company recorded an impatriméhe amount of $7.9 million, which was clagsifas costs of revenues in the
consolidated statements of income and as amodizatd write-off of film and other inventory cogtsthe consolidated statements of cash

flows.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foilfma(in thousands’

December 31,

2010 2009
Land, buildings and improvemer $ 201,59 $ 178,13
Furniture and equipme! 18,51 16,77¢
Computer hardware and softw: 57,59¢ 48,51t
Total property, plant and equipme 277,70: 243,42t
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (102,899 (81,86¢)
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 174,80 $ 161,55

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 arf] #6®Company recorded depreciation and amoizakpense (other than film

amortization) of $22.9 million, $17.3 million and 4.2 million, respectively, of which $20.2 millio$i15.6 million and $11.2 million,
respectively, was capitalized as film productiostso

6. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (ingdhsands)

December 31,
2010 2009
Employee compensatic $ 63,93 $ 39,08
Participations and residue 46,74¢ 38,59:
Deferred ren 2,55( 4,027
Other accrued liabilitie 29,87: 29,57¢
Total accrued liabilitie: $ 143,09¢ $ 111,28:
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The Company estimates that, in 2011, it will pagragimately $27.7 million of its participation anelsidual costs accrued as of
December 31, 2010.
7. Deferred Revenue and Other Advances

The following is a summary of deferred revenue atieér advances included in the consolidated balaheets as of December 31, 2!
and 2009 and the related amounts earned and receitther as revenue in the consolidated statenoéimsome or recorded as an offset to
other costs (as described below) for the yearseeBdeember 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 (in thousands):

Amounts Earned

Balance at December 31, For the Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2010 2009 2008
Home Box Office Inc., Advan® $ — $ — $13,33: $26,66¢ $26,66¢
Licensing Advance® 12,967 44,04¢ 42,07¢ 29,50 6,63¢
Deferred Revenu® 3,79 5,54: 9,86( 3,42¢ 26,44¢
Strategic Alliance/Development Advan(3) 1,66 1,76% 20,70( 15,24( 15,597
Other Advance® 2,36¢ 9,51¢ 14,39: 7,76% 10,124
Total deferred revenue and other advan $20,79: $60,87(

@ The Company remains a participant of an exclusiuéti-picture domestic pay television license agreemegtrally entered intc

between Old DreamWorks Studios and Home Box Office, (“ HBO "), pursuant to which the Company receives advaagainst
license fees payable for future film product. Tiyeegment is currently expected to extend throudt#z

Amounts received from customers for the licensifithe Compan’s animated characters on a worldwide basis recgisiedto the
availability date of the produc

The Company has strategic alliances with variooBrtelogy companies pursuant to which the compaarepermitted to promote
themselves as DreamWorks Animatispreferred technology provider in exchange foraading the Company specified annual amot
In addition, under the agreements, the Company smplkechases of the technology companies’ equiprianing the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, of the total atscearned against the “Strategic Alliance/Develepmidvances,” $13.3 million,
$9.4 million and $10.3 million, respectively, werapitalized as an offset to property, plant andgqent. Additionally, during the year
ended December 31, 2010, of the total amounts dagainst the “Strategic Alliance/Development Adses)” $0.9 million was recorded
as a reduction to other asst

Primarily consists of the annual cost reimbursesesteived from Paramount (see Note 3), whichratially recorded as an advance i
then allocated to each of the films delivered tcaR@unt and recognized as revenue upon the retéaisat film.

@

®)

4

8. Financing Arrangements

Revolving Credit Facility. The Company has a $125.0 million revolving creddility with a number of banks which terminateslime
2013. Borrowings are secured by substantiallyhel t
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Company’s assets. There was no debt outstandinthdamespective periods. The revolving credit fgcilequires the Company to maintain a
specified leverage ratio and, subject to specKieptions, prohibits the Company from taking certaitions without the lenders’ consent, such
as granting liens or entering into any merger depsignificant transaction. The revolving creditifity also prohibits the Company from
paying dividends on its capital stock if, afterigiy pro forma effect to such dividend, an evendefault would occur or exist under the
revolving credit facility. The Company is requiredpay a commitment fee on undrawn amounts at anamate of 0.375%. Interest on
borrowed amounts is determined by reference tithigethe lending banks’ base rate plus 0.50% paum or ii) LIBOR plus 1.50% per
annum. The interest rate as of December 31, 20d2@89 was 0.375%. Interest costs incurred asudt i@sthe commitment fee was $0.5
million, $0.5 million, and $0.3 million for the yemended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, résplgct

Animation Campus Financing. In accordance with the terms of the financingagement, the entire amount of the obligatior8.&7
million, was repaid upon maturity in October 2008e financing bore interest primarily at 30-day coencial paper rates and was fully
collateralized by the underlying real property. swtingly, during the year ended December 31, 2€i®Company did not incur any interest
expense related to this financing. During the yeaded December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Companyrétc$il.1 million and $3.1 million of
interest expense, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was in comgdiavith all applicable financial debt covenants.

Additional Financing Information

Interest Capitalized to Film Costs. No interest was capitalized to film costs dgrihe year ended December 31, 2010. Interest
capitalized to film costs during the years endeddbaber 31, 2009 and 2008 totaled $1.1 million a8@ #illion, respectively.
9. Income Taxes

The following are the components of the provisionihcome taxes (in thousands) for the years euesmber 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008:

2010() 2009 2008

Current:

Federal $ 2,55¢ $(11,899) $(1,45%)

State and loce (564) 953 (2,244

Foreign 1,80z 1,211 1,42(
Total current provision (benefi 3,79: (9,730 (2,276
Deferred:

Federal (271,759 20,89( 21,61¢

State and loce (15,38)) (1,474 —

Foreign (788 (36) —
Total deferred (benefit) provisic (287,939 19,38( 21,61¢
Total (benefit) provision for income tax $(284,14) $ 9,65( $20,34(
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(@)

In 2010, as a result of a change in judgment attmutealizability of deferred tax assets in futyears, the Company released $3¢

million of a valuation allowance previously estahkd with respect to its deferred tax assets. 8egvdor a further discussion of the

release of the valuation allowan:

Set forth below is a reconciliation of the compdsedhat caused the Company’s provision for incoaxes (including the income
statement line item “Increase in income tax benEfitable to former stockholder”) to differ from anmés computed by applying the U.S.

Federal statutory rate of 35% for the years endecehber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

2010

Provision for income taxes (combined with incre@simcome tax benefit payable to former

stockholder®:
U.S. Federal statutory ra 35.(%
U.S. state taxes, net of Federal ber 0.3
Export sales exclusion/manufacturers deduc (2.0)
Revaluation of deferred tax assets, 2.7
Release of valuation allowan® (28.9)
Provision to retur 1.C
Other (0.9
Total provision for income taxes (combined withriggse in income tax benefit payable to

former stockholder® 2.8%
Less: increase in income tax benefit payable tmésrstockholde®:
U.S. state taxes, net of Federal ber 0.3
Revaluation of deferred tax assets, (21.9
Export sales exclusion/manufacturers deduc 1.7
Release of valuation allowan® (138.5)
Provision to returi (4.5
Other (1.9
Total increase in income tax benefit payable tonfer stockholde® (164.9%
Total (benefit) provision for income tax (161.9%

(@)

o California franchise tax and certain other relgtedbenefits (see Note -

2009 2008
35.0% 35.0%
1. 1.8
(0.7) (5.8)
(7.5) (5.2)
2.0 @.7)
(0.4) 0.4
25.0% 23.5%
1.9 1.2)
(21.9) (12.2)
0.7 1.0
0.8 0.8
0.5 (1.1)
(20.6% (12.6%

4.8% 10.5%

The Company is obligated to remit to the affiliafea former stockholder 85% of any such cash savingJ.S. Federal income tax and

In 2010, as a result of a change in judgment attreutealizability of deferred tax assets in futyears, the Company released $348.1

million of a valuation allowance previously estahid with respect to its deferred tax assets. #audsed in the footnote above, the
Company is obligated to remit 85% of the impacthis release to the former stockholder. See betmva further discussion of the rele:

of the valuation allowanct
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to a significant portion of the deferred tasets and deferred tax liabilities as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009 are presented beladiisands).

December 31

2010 2009
Deferred tax asset
Tax Basis Increase (pursuant to Stockholder’s Tax
Agreement’ $ 345,00: $ 384,44!
Stoclk-based compensatic 32,80z 26,73:
Other liabilities 8,08¢ 12,11¢
Fixed asset — 3,901
Film development bas 14,24 14,147
Research and development cre 13,31¢ 5,44:
Other 13,55 8,801
Deferred tax asse 427,00! 455,59:
Less: Valuation allowanc (2,05%) (350,109
Deferred tax assets (net of valuation allowai 424,95( 105,48:
Deferred tax liabilities
Film basis (net of amortizatiol (127,38) (95,819
Other (1,965 (2,000
Deferred tax liabilitie: (129,349 (97,819
Net deferred tax asse $ 295,60: $ 7,66¢

The Company reduces its deferred tax assets bylissiag a valuation allowance if, based on theghebf available positive and
negative evidence, it is more likely than not kelihood of greater than 50 percent) that somdqodr all of the deferred tax assets will not
realized. At December 31, 2009, a substantial poif the Companyg deferred tax assets had a full valuation allowaBeiring the year end
December 31, 2009, the valuation allowance baldeceeased $72.7 million. In the fourth quarter@f@, the Company concluded that it was
more likely than not that it will realize substaily all of its U.S. deferred tax assets becaus&pects to generate sufficient levels of future
taxable income. As a result, the Company relea848.% million of the valuation allowance relatedtsodeferred tax assets.
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The evaluation of the realizability of deferred &ssets is inherently subjective. In evaluatinglidity to recover its deferred income tax
assets, the Company considered all available es&ldioth positive and negative and including itsraping results and forecasts of future
taxable income, to determine whether, based ow#ight of that evidence, a valuation allowance waaded. Following are some of the key
items that provided positive evidence to suppaetriiease of the valuation allowance against thragamy’s deferred tax assets in the fourth
quarter of 2010:

» Taxable income for the year ended December 31, #t4tQif achieved at similar levels in future ygarould be sufficient to allow
the Company to realize its deferred tax as:

* The number of years remaining prior to the expratf the Company’s existing net operating lossyéarwards.

* Increased confidence in the Comp’s longe-term forecasted taxable income levels. The Compaysignificant revent-
generating activities that occurred during the floguarter which, once realized, allowed it to &etheasure the variability in its
future expected taxable earnings to determineikleéiHood of the future realization of the deferted asset:

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to eghéged transactions of $(2.1) million, $(0.5) mifliand $0.5 million were allocated to
stockholders’ equity for the years ended DecemiieRB10, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Federal and state net operating loss carryforwatdéed $8.1 million and $0.2 million, respectivefs of December 31, 2010 and will
begin to expire in 2019 and 2015, respectively.

The Company’s California Franchise tax returnstti@ryears ended December 31, 2004 through 200duarently under examination by
the Franchise Tax Board ETB ”). The Internal Revenue ServicelRS ") had previously concluded its audits of the Comyps federal
income tax return for the periods through Decen®ier2006. The Company’s federal income tax retéonghe tax years ended December 31,
2007 and 2008 are currently under examination BYRS. All tax years since the Compasigeparation from Old DreamWorks Studios rer
open to audit by all state and local taxing jugsons.
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The balances and activity in the unrecognized tmefits from December 31, 2007 to 2010 are preddrg®ow (in thousands):

Deferred Tax Former
Deferred Stockholder
Accrued Valuation Interest
Taxes Taxes Allowance and Penaltie: Payable Total
Balance at December 31, 2C $10,74¢ $ — $ = $ 2,17¢ $ — $ 12,92«
Prior year addition 1,64¢ — — 98 59¢ 2,34:
Prior year reduction (8,64%) — — (1,87)) — (10,516
Settlements of prior yea 21¢ — — — — 21¢
Current year addition 763 — — 273 85 1,121
Balance at December 31, 2C 4,731 — — 67€ 684 6,091
Prior year addition 404 — — 6 382 792
Current year addition 1,61¢ — — 281 417 2,312
Balance at December 31, 20 6,74¢ — — 963 1,48: 9,19¢
Prior year addition 77 — — — 634 711
Prior year reduction (140 — — 5) (2,67€) (2,82])
Current year addition 1,78¢ — — 352 22 2,15¢
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 8,47( $ — $ = $ 1,31C $ (539 $ 9,24¢

@ The unrecognized tax benefits as of December 310,20fully realized, would affect the Compé's future effective tax rat
Any changes that are reasonably possible to ocitbhimnithe next 12 months to unrecognized tax bésel of December 31, 2010 are not
expected to be material.

10. Related Party Transactions

Arrangement with Affiliate of a Former Stockhol. The Company has an arrangement with an aéfitha former stockholder to sh:
tax benefits generated by the stockholder (sees\btnd 9).

Aircraft Sub-lease Agreement with a Stockholdelm June 2008, the Company entered into an airstdftease (the Sublease’)
agreement with an entity controlled by Jeffrey Katizerg, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer arsigaificant stockholder, for use of an
aircraft that such entity leases from the aircoafher, a company jointly owned indirectly by Mr. t€anberg and Mr. Spielberg (who is also a
stockholder in the Company). Under the SubleageCthmpany pays all the aircraft operating expeoseddr. Katzenberg’s Company-related
flights. In addition, in the
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event that Mr. Katzenberg uses the aircraft for Gany-related travel more than 36 hours in any caegear, the Company pays the
subleasing entity a specified hourly rate for thbbsers. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 20092008, the Company incurred $0.5
million, $1.2 million and $0.9 million of costs egkd to the sublease.

From time to time, the Company uses a private aiplthat is owned by David Geffen, a former direattd one of the Company’s
controlling stockholders, for Company business. Toenpanys use of this aircraft is pursuant to a customagrter arrangement, under wh
the Company generally pays an hourly rate as watieatain additional flight-related charges, suglcr@w expenses, catering and landing fees.
During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Coyipanrred an aggregate of approximately $0.6 onillior use of this plane. The
Company did not incur any costs for use of thisplduring the years ended December 31, 2009 artl 200

Consulting Agreement with David GeffenDuring July 2010, the Company entered into r@satting agreement with David Geffen,
pursuant to which Mr. Geffen provides consultingvaees to the Company with respect to the Compaagkrations, overall direction, projects
and strategic matters. Mr. Geffen receives $2.0anilannually for these services and is entitlebéaeimbursed for reasonable travel and «
expenses in the performance of his duties. The tdittme agreement expires in July 2013, althougteeiparty may terminate the agreement
sooner upon natice to the other party. During tharyended December 31, 2010, the Company incurreggregate of $1.0 million related to
this agreement. As of December 31, 2010, the Cognpas also recorded a prepaid asset of $0.5 milétated to this agreement.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has entered into various noncancetgg@eating leases for office space for general amdiistrative and production
purposes with terms that expire in 2011 through62@ertain of these office leases contain annudlescalations and require the Company to
pay property taxes, insurance and normal maintendrar the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002@0®] the Company incurred lease
expense of approximately $5.9 million, $7.6 milliand $6.9 million, respectively.

Future minimum lease commitments are as followsh@usands):

Operating
Lease
Commitments
2011 $ 9,881
2012 11,00¢
2013 5,29t
2014 5,17¢
2015 and thereafte 13,96¢
Total $ 45,33(
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Additionally, as of December 31, 2010, the Comphlagl noneancelable talent commitments totaling approxinya$@5.3 million that ar
payable over the next five years.

Legal Proceedings

Other Matters. From time to time the Company is involvedegal proceedings arising in the ordinary coursigsdfusiness, typicall
intellectual property litigation and infringemené&ims related to the Company’s feature films, whiclild cause the Company to incur
significant expenses or prevent the Company frdeasing a film. The Company also has been the subfgatent and copyright claims
relating to technology and ideas that it may uskeature in connection with the production, mankgtor exploitation of the Company’s feature
films, which may affect the Company’s ability tontmue to do so. While the resolution of these erattannot be predicted with certainty, the
Company does not believe, based on current know|atigt any existing legal proceedings or clainesliiely to have a material adverse effect
on its financial position, results of operationdiquidity.

12. Stockholders’ Equity

The Company has authorized two classes of comnoak:s350.0 million shares of Class A common stao#t 450.0 million shares «
Class B common stock. The Class A common stockGlasls B common stock each have a par value of $#0&hare and are identical and
generally vote together on all matters, excepttiiraiClass A common stock carries one vote peeshdrereas the Class B common stock
carries 15 votes per share.

Class A and Class B Common Stock Transactions

Stock Repurchase Programs.In July 2008, the ComparsyBoard of Directors terminated the December 20@resrepurchase progra
which had approximately $62.0 million of unusedhauization, and approved a new stock repurchasgrano pursuant to which the Company
was authorized to repurchase up to an additiorgreagte of $150.0 million of its outstanding stoelrsuant to these programs, during the
ended December 31, 2008, the Company repurchagedxapately 6.8 million shares of its outstanding$s A common stock for
approximately $184.7 million. Additionally, for theeriod January 1, 2009 through April 21, 2009, @oenpany repurchased approximately
2.3 million shares of its outstanding Class A comratock for $45.7 million pursuant to the prograppr@ved in July 2008. On April 22, 20(
the Company’s Board of Directors terminated the 2008 stock repurchase program and authorizedvestoxk repurchase program pursuant
to which the Company may repurchase up to an agtgeg $150 million of its outstanding stock. InyJR010, the Company’s Board of
Directors terminated the April 2009 stock repurehpsogram and authorized a new stock repurchaggaropursuant to which the Company
may repurchase up to an aggregate of $150 milliots @utstanding stock. During the year ended Drdwer 31, 2010, the Company
repurchased 3.1 million shares of its outstanditas£A Common Stock for $110.8 million under theiAP0O09 authorization. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company had not made anyategses under the July 2010 authorization.
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Other Conversions of Class B Common Stoclouring 2008, Mr. Geffen converted 1,565,008rsk of the Company’s Class B common
stock into an equal amount of shares of the Compa®iass A common. These transactions had no ingrathe total amount of the
Company’s shares outstanding.

In March 2010, 580,730 shares of the Company’ssdBasommon stock were converted into an equal atmfshares of the Company’s
Class A common stock at the request of David Getlesignificant stockholder, who owned such shavies Geffen, in turn, donated these
shares to a charitable foundation that was estedaliby him. These transactions had no impact ototaéamount of the Company’s shares
outstanding.

13. Employee Benefits Plan
401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution regrgrplan (the* 401(k) Plan”) under provisions of Section 401(k) of the Inter
Revenue Code (RC "). Substantially all employees not covered by ective bargaining agreements are eligible to paste in the 401(k)
Plan. The maximum contribution for the Company’dchds currently equal to 50% of the employees’tdbntion, up to 4% of their eligible
compensation, as limited by Sec. 415 of the IR @dsts of the Company’s match, as well as altitparty costs of administering the 401(k)
Plan, are paid directly by the Company and tot&te@ million, $1.9 million and $1.5 million for elaof the years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Other Employee Benefit Plans

Effective July 2007, the Company adopted the Sp&aéerral Election Plan (thePlan "), a non-qualified deferred compensation plan.
The Plan is available for selected employees ofXtimpany and its subsidiaries. For the years ebdgegmber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, the
activity associated with the Plan was not material.

14. Stock-Based Compensation

In February 2008, the Company’s Board of Direcapproved, subject to approval by the Company’skétoiclers, the 2008 Omnibus
Incentive Compensation PlanZ008 Omnibus Plan’). The Company’s stockholders approved the 200&buos Plan in May 2008.
Concurrent with such approval, the 2008 Omnibus Blaomatically terminated, replaced and superstgde@ompany’s prior plan, the 2004
Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plare004 Omnibus Plan’ and, collectively, with the 2008 Omnibus Plan th®@mnibus Plans”), except
that any awards granted under the prior Omnibus Rtzuld remain in effect pursuant to their origiteims. Both Omnibus Plans provided for
the grant of incentive stock options, non-qualifidck options, stock appreciation rights, restdcthare awards, restricted stock units,
performance compensation awards, performance amitother stock equity awards to the Company’s eyagls, directors and
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consultants. Pursuant to the 2008 Omnibus Plaradbesgate number of shares of Class A common shatknay be issued pursuant to
awards granted under the 2008 Omnibus Plan is3ijrilion, plus (ii) any shares with respect toaads granted under the 2004 Omnibus Plan
that are forfeited following the adoption date toé 2008 Omnibus Plan. Pursuant to an amendmehé 08 Omnibus Plan approved by the
Company’s stockholders on June 10, 2009, for astyicted stock award (or similar award) granteeraduch date the number of shares
available for future awards will be reduced by tlnfes the number of shares subject to such awardfSecember 31, 2010, approximately
0.3 million shares were available for future grasftequity awards under the 2008 Omnibus Plan.

Compensation Cost RecognizedThe impact of stock options (including stogpeeciation rights) and restricted stock awardsen
income for the years ended December 31, 2010, 20622008, respectively, was as follows (in thousgnd

2010 2009 2008
Total equit-based compensatic $31,26: $30,19: $37,60(
Tax impaci® (875) (7,66¢) (8,836)
Reduction in net incom $30,38" $22,52: $28,76¢

@ Tax impact is determined at the Comp’'s blended effective tax rate, which includes tlmome statement line ite”Increase in incom

tax benefit payable to former stockhol” (see Note 9)

Stock-based compensation cost capitalized as ap#filr costs was $13.7 million, $10.7 million a®d.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company recognizes compensation costs foryegwiards granted to its employees based on thant-gtate fair value. Most of the
Company’s equity awards contain vesting conditidegendent upon the completion of specified semp@@ds or achievement of established
sets of performance criteria. Compensation cossdovice-based equity awards is recognized raay the vesting period. Compensation
cost for certain performance-based awards is atjustreflect the estimated probability of vestilmg2010, the Company granted performance-
based awards where the value of the award upomgesiil vary depending on the level of performandgémately achieved. The Company
recognizes compensation cost for these awards loestied level of performance expected to be aclieVke Company will recognize the
impact of any change in estimate in the periochef¢hange.

Generally, equity awards are forfeited by employehke terminate prior to vesting. However, certaimpéoyment contracts for certain
named executive officers provide for the acceleratif vesting in the event of a change in contrdpecified termination events. In addition,
the Company has granted equity awards of stockeafgtion rights and restricted shares subject tiketdased conditions. Compensation
costs related to awards with a market-based camditill be recognized regardless of whether theketacondition is satisfied, provided that
the requisite service has been
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provided. The Company currently satisfies exercifegtock options and stock appreciation rights,sasting of restricted stock and the
delivery of shares upon the vesting of restrictedlsunits with the issuance of new shares.

Management makes estimates of expected forfeiamedss recognizing compensation costs only foretexguity awards expected to vest.
As of December 31, 2010, the total compensatiohredasted to unvested equity awards granted to eyegls (excluding equity awards with
performance objectives not probable of achieventauithot yet recognized was approximately $98.6ianiland will be amortized on a
straight-line basis over a weighted average pesfdd8 years.

Restricted Stock Awards. The following table summarizes information abstricted stock activity under the Omnibus Plgns
thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Grant- Average Grant- Average Grant-
Restricted Restricted Restricted
Date Date Date

Stock Fair Value Stock Fair Value Stock Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of peri 3,23: $ 27.7: 3,41 $ 28.3: 2,687 $ 28.8¢
Granted 1,20¢ $ 35.0¢ 1,53¢ $ 27.0z 1,282 $ 28.1:2
Vested (712) $ 29.27 (1,529 $ 28.2¢ (489) $ 29.0¢
Forfeited (67) $  30.3¢ (194) $  28.4c (67) $ 29.2¢
Balance at end of ye: 3,66% $ 29.8¢ 3,23: $ 27.72 3,41 $ 28.3¢
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Compensation cost related to restricted stock asviédat vest solely upon service is based upon timehprice of the Company’s stock
on the date of grant, and is recognized on a s$irdiige basis over a requisite service period of fmuseven years. In addition, the Company
granted restricted stock awards that vest eithentipe achievement of certain cumulative perforreaggmals over a multi-year period as set by
the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Boalirectors (“Compensation Committe€’) or certain market-based criteria (such as
stock price appreciation). In addition to the amtaént of either the performance or market-basedrij the vesting of the individual awards is
further subject to the completion of required seeyeriods ranging from one to five years. Theofeihg table summarizes by year of grant the
number of restricted stock awards for which vestingubject to the achievement of either performeamcmarket-based criteria (in thousands):

Performance- Market -
Year of Grant () Based Based Total
2010® 27¢€ — 27€
2009 — 90C 90C
2008 — 51€ 51€
20060 41 41 82
Total 317 1,457 1,774

@ The Company made no grants of restricted stockfoch vesting was subject to performance or mablested criteria during the year

ended December 31, 20(

The performanc-based awards have been included herein based omatkimum number of shares that may v

In February 2010, the Compensation Committee @stthat the related four-year cumulative perforogagoals and the required market
conditions had been achieved with respect to athefperformanc-based and mark-based restricted stock granted in 2C

@
®)

The total intrinsic value of restricted stock awstiat vested totaled $25.4 million during 2010).84million during 2009 and $12.8
million during 2008. The total fair value at graftrestricted stock awards that vested during 2@009 and 2008 was $20.8 million, $43.1
million and $14.2 million, respectively.

Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Right§.he fair value of stock option grants or stockisdtstock appreciation rights with a
service or performance-based vesting conditiostisn@ted on the date of grant using the Black-Szhoption-pricing model. Primary input
assumptions of the Black-Scholes model used tmasti the fair value of stock options include thengiprice of the award, the Company’s
dividend yield, volatility of the Company’s stodke risk-free interest rate and expected optiom t&iven the Company’s lack of sufficient
historical exercise data for stock option graritases the “simplified” method of calculating theighted average expected term for “plain
vanilla” awards. The simplified method defines tireighted average expected term as being the avefabe weighted average of the vesting
period and contractual term of each stock option
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granted. “Plain vanilla” options are defined assthgranted at-the-money, having service time vgstina condition to exercise, providing that
non-vested options are forfeited upon terminatiod #hat there is a limited time to exercise thee@®ptions after termination of service,
usually 90 days, and providing the options are mansferable and non-hedgeable. Once sufficientimétion regarding exercise behavior,
such as historical exercise data or exercise irdtion from relevant comparable external sourcespines available, the Company will utilize
another method to determine the weighted averageotad term. For awards that are not “plain vahittee Company determines the expected
term after considering all available facts spedifithe group of participants, which include (bre aot limited) the following: available
exercise history, likelihood of exercise based xisting outstanding and exercisable awards anda&gdength of employment with the
Company. In addition, the Company’s estimate o#titiy incorporates both historical volatility arkde implied volatility of publicly traded
options. Equity awards of stock options and stqmbreciation rights are generally granted with aereise price based on the market price of
the Company’s stock on the date of grant, genevalbt over a term of four to seven years and exjiirgears after the date of grant.
Compensation cost for stock options is recogniagéahly over the requisite service period. Estimaftdbe fair value of stock options are not
intended to predict actual future events or theealltimately realized by employees who receivelstiption awards, and subsequent events
are not indicative of the reasonableness of tigirai estimates of fair value made by the Company.

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes modet aefollows:

2010 2009 2008
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 36-38% 37-42% 31-35%
Risk-free interest rat 1.75-2.94% 2.55-3.06% 2.75-3.52%
Weighted average expected term (ye 6.25-8.0 6.25 6.25

For equity awards subject to market-based condit{sach as stock-price appreciation), the Compaeg a Monte-Carlo simulation
option-pricing model to determine the grant-daievalue. The Monte-Carlo simulation option-pricingpdel takes into account the same input
assumptions as the Black-Scholes model as outibete, however, it also further incorporates ihtfair value determination the possibility
that the market condition may not be satisfied iamghct of the possible differing stock price paths.
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The following table summarizes information abowic&toption/stock appreciation rights activity untlee Omnibus Plans (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Exercisi Average Exercist Average Exercist
Options Options Options
Qutstanding Price per Share Outstanding Price per Share Outstanding Price per Share
Outstanding at
beginning of periot 7,831 $ 28.3( 5,69¢ $ 28.7¢ 4,68( $ 28.6:
Options grante 1,017 $ 35.3¢ 2,632 $ 27.1¢ 1,21¢ $ 28.0¢
Options exercise (77€) $ 27.9¢ (290) $ 26.27 (110 $ 15.0¢
Options
expired/cancele (259) $ 29.8¢ (210 $ 28.4¢ (85) $ 29.1¢
Balance at end of ye: 7,818 $ 29.21 7,831 $ 28.3( 5,69¢ $ 28.7¢

Of stock option/stock appreciation rights awardanged by the Company, the following table setshfost grant year the number for
which vesting is further subject to the achievenadrtertain performance or market-based critengh{pusands):

Performance- Market-
Year of Grant () Based Based Total
2009 — 1,60( 1,60(
2006 28 28 56
Total 28 1,62¢ 1,65¢€

@ The Company made no grants of stock options oksippreciation rights for which vesting was subjegberformance or market-based

criteria during the years ended December 31, 22008 or 2007
In February 2010, the Compensation Committee @gditthat the related four-year cumulative perforogagoals and required market
conditions had been achieved with respect to alpgrformanc-based and mark-based stock options granted in 20

(@)

The weighted average grant-date fair value of oygtigranted during the years 2010, 2009 and 2008460, $9.71 and $10.98,
respectively. The total intrinsic value (marketusabn date of exercise less exercise price) oboptexercised totaled $9.7 million during 2C
$2.3 million during 2009 and $1.5 million during@ The aggregate intrinsic value of stock optioutstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2010 was $13.1 million and $3.7 nmilliespectively. The number of stock options esatdie at December 31, 2010 was
3.7 million with a weighted-average exercise pot&29.24.
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The following table summarizes information concaghoutstanding and exercisable options as of DeeeBih 2010:

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining
Contractual Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Number Life Price Number Price
Range of Exercise Prices per Shar Outstanding (in years) per Share Exercisable per Share
$19.2¢-$26.92 1,862,87! 7.9¢€ $ 24.3¢ 189,49¢ $ 25.1¢
$27.0¢-28.00 1,207,39: 3.87 $ 27.9¢ 1,162,29: $ 27.9¢
$28.1(-$32.31 3,620,89: 7.3C $ 30.15% 2,188,56: $ 29.91
$32.8¢-$37.51 1,080,471 9.1¢ $ 35.2% 121,31 $ 35.71
$37.56$39.71 27,154 9.1¢ $ 39.6¢ 69¢€ $ 37.6¢
$43.4¢-$43.46 13,731 9.1ft $ 43.4¢ — $ —
Total 7,812,52. 7.1¢€ $ 29.21 3,662,36: $ 29.2¢

The weighted-average remaining contractual lifetfons that were outstanding and exercisable &eoémber 31, 2010 was 5.7 years.

15. Concentrations of Risk
Concentrations of Credit Risk A substantial portion of the Company’s reveisuéerived directly from Paramount. Paramount
represented 73.4%, 83.6% and 77.8% of total revéarube years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 a®8, 28spectively.

Collective Bargaining Agreements. As of December 31, 2010, approximately 40%hef€ompany’s employees were represented unde
three industry-wide collective bargaining agreeradatwhich the Company is a party. None of theseeagents will expire in the next 12
months.

16. Segment and Geographic Information

The Compan’s production and distribution of animated films aelévision specials/series reportable segmenesents 98% of th
Company’s consolidated revenues. The Company’smd@tation that the animated films segment and éfevision specials/series segment
should be aggregated was based on the similairitide production processes, nature of the prodaraismanagement of these segments.

Revenues attributable to foreign countries wereg@pmately $375.7 million, $347.0 million and $238nillion for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectivelygilimed assets located in foreign countries wertenmaterial.
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17. Revenue by Film and Other
The Company'’s revenues by film and other are devisl (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Shrek Forever Afte $244,46: $ — $ —
How to Train Your Dragol 174,23: — —
Megaminc® 26,58¢ — —
Monsters vs. Alien 58,781 83,33 —
Kung Fu Pand: 41,41 106,13: 211,512
Madagascar: Escape 2 Afric 30,35¢ 232,37 23,96¢
Shrek the Thir 37,38¢ 54,32( 119,98!
Bee Movie 38,54 36,65 111,38t
Film Library / Other® 133,02 212,36¢ 183,20:

$784,79: $725,17¢ $650,05:

@ Megamincwas released during the quarter ended Decemb@030, Pursuant to the terms of the Paramount Ageetsnbecause the

distribution and marketing expenses incurred byaRaunt in the year of the film’s release exceedad film’s gross revenues for such
year, no revenue was reported to the Company girrotn Paramount with respect to that film in y&sar of release. Revenue recogni
during the year ended December 31, 2010 was ptiyretiibutable to the Compa’s licensing arrangemen

@ “Film Library / Othe” primarily includes film library revenue froiShrek, Shrek 2, Shark Tale, Wallace & Gromit: Tles€ of the We-
Rabbit, Madagascar, Flushed Aw, andOver the Hedge In addition, it includes revenue from live perfances and television
specials/serie:
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18. Earnings Per Share Data
The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted net income per share (in thousanaept per-share amounts):

2010 2009 2008
Numerator:
Net income $170,63¢ $151,03! $142,49¢
Denominator
Weighted average common shares and denominatbegic calculatiol
Weighted average common shares outstan 85,38: 86,81¢ 91,59¢
Less: Unvested restricted stc (155) (433 (1,719
Denominator for basic calculatic 85,221 86,38t 89,88(
Weighted average effects of dilutive eg-based compensation awa
Employee stock options/stock appreciation ri¢ 96¢ 74 10C
Restricted stock awart 987 84z 99¢
Denominator for diluted calculatic 87,18 87,30 90,97¢
Net income per she—basic $ 2.0c $ 1.7¢ $ 1.5¢
Net income per she—diluted $ 1.9¢ $ 1.7¢ $ 157

The following table sets forth (in thousands) theighted average number of options to purchase sloi@mmon stock, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock awards andtg@wards subject to performance or market camastwhich were not included in the
calculation of diluted per share amounts becauseffects would be anti-dilutive:

2010 2009 2008
Options to purchase shares of common stock andctest stock award 25C 1,642 1,87¢
Stock appreciation righ 1,49¢ 3,48 2,68(
Total 1,74¢ 5,12/  4,55¢

In addition, 1.5 million shares of equity awardsieh is comprised of 0.7 million restricted stoakeads and 0.8 million stock
appreciation rights) that are contingently issuatdee not included in the calculation of dilutedsds for the year ended December 31, 201
the required market and/or performance conditiads ot been met as of December 31, 2010. For thes ynded December 31, 2009 and
2008, 3.1 million and 0.6 million shares, respeadtiy of equity awards that were contingently isseatere not included in the calculation of
diluted shares as the required market and/or pegfoce conditions had not been met as of the erddalf respective year.
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19. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The unaudited quarterly financial statements haenlprepared on substantially the same basis asthited financial statements, and, in
the opinion of management include all adjustmerdssisting of only normal and recurring adjustmenéxessary for a fair presentation of the
results of operations for such periods (in thousasscept per share data):

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3( December 3
(unaudited)

2010

Revenue! $162,14: $158,09! $ 188,88. $ 275,67:
Gross profil 55,96( 59,36! 81,21¢ 81,83(
Income (loss) before provision for income ta 26,22¢ 24,69¢ 37,78 (202,20)
Net income 21,66¢ 23,97t 39,76! 85,2341
Basic net income per she $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.47 $ 1.01
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.24 $ 0.27 $ 0.47 $ 0.9¢
2009

Revenue! $263,52- $131,99( $ 135,44¢ $ 194,21
Gross profil 107,11¢ 57,96¢ 46,38: 80,34«
Income before provision for income tay 70,04( 24,61¢ 21,83¢ 44,19:
Net income 62,31( 25,55¢ 19,60¢ 43,56
Basic net income per she $ 071 $ 0.3 $ 0.2% $ 0.5C

Diluted net income per sha $ 071 $ 0.3 $ 0.2 $ 0.5C
@ During the quarter ended December 31, 2010, thepaasnreversed its valuation allowance that hadipusly been established against
its deferred tax assets (See Note

20. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

The following is a summary of the valuation andlyiag accounts included in the consolidated bakasheets as of December 31, 2(
2009 and 2008 (in thousands):

Balance a Deductions
(Credited)
Beginning Charged tc and
Bad Debt Balance at
of Year Operations Write- offs End of Year
Trade accounts receivable and Receivable fromiloligtr
Allowance for doubtful accoun

2010 $ 2,811 $ 59t $ (409 $ 3,00¢
2009 $ 4,381 $ 1,35(C $ (2,920 $ 2,811
2008 $ 4,50/ $ 2,04¢ $ (2,172) $ 4,381
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Exhibit 10.44
DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED
2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

SECTION 1. Purposé&.he purpose of this DreamWorks Animation SKG, lamended and Restated 2008 Omnibus Incentive
Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) is to promote theriests of DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc. and ftekholders by (a) attracting and
retaining exceptional directors, officers, employaad consultants (including prospective directofficers, employees and consultants) of the
Company (as defined below) and its Affiliates (afired below) and (b) enabling such individualpaaticipate in the long-term growth and
financial success of the Company. This Plan isideel to replace the prior Amended and RestatednbAéarks Animation SKG, Inc. 2008
Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (the “PrionBlavhich Prior Plan shall be automatically teratiead and replaced and superseded by
this Plan on the date on which this Plan is appitdsethe Companyg’ stockholders. The Prior Plan previously repleaed superseded the 2(
Plan (as defined below), which 2008 Plan previousplaced and superseded the 2004 Plan (as ddfeled). Notwithstanding the foregoing,
any awards granted under the Prior Plan, the 20084t the 2004 Plan shall remain in effect purstamheir respective terms.

SECTION 2._DefinitionsAs used herein, the following terms shall havertteganings set forth below:
“2004 Plan” means the DreamWorks Animation SKG, B@04 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan, as deten
“2008 Plan” means the DreamWorks Animation SKG, BR@08 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan.

“Affiliate” means (a) any entity that, directly ordirectly, is controlled by, controls or is undemmmon control with, the Company
and/or (b) any entity in which the Company hasyaificant equity interest, in either case as deieech by the Committee.

“Award” means any award that is permitted underti®a® and granted under the Plan, the Prior Rlen2008 Plan or the 2004
Plan.

“Award Agreement” means any written agreement, @mtor other instrument or document evidencing Aaward, which may (but
need not) require execution or acknowledgment Bgauicipant.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company

“Cash Incentive Awa” means an Award granted pursuant to Section



“Change of Control” shall (a) have the meaningfgeh in an Award Agreement; providedhowever, that except in the case of a

transaction described in subparagraph (b)(iii) Wwelany definition of Change of Control set forthan Award Agreement shall provide that a
Change of Control shall not occur until consumnrato effectiveness of a change in control of thenfany, rather than upon the
announcement, commencement, stockholder approwdher potential occurrence of any event or tratisadhat, if completed, would result
a change in control of the Company, or (b) if thiereo definition set forth in an Award Agreememgan the occurrence of any of the follow

events:

(i) during any period of 14 consecutive calendanths, individuals who were directors of the Companythe first day of
such period (the “Incumbent Directors”) cease foy eeason to constitute a majority of the Boardyvped, however, that any
individual becoming a director subsequent to th& flay of such period whose election, or nomimetay election, by the
Company’s stockholders was approved by a vote lefast a majority of the Incumbent Directors shallconsidered as though such
individual were an Incumbent Director, but excluglifor purposes of this proviso, any such individuaose initial assumption of
office occurs as a result of an actual or threatgarexy contest with respect to election or remafalirectors or other actual or
threatened solicitation of proxies or consents bgrobehalf of a “person” (as such term is usefiéntion 13(d) of the Exchange
Act) (each, a “Person”), in each case other thamthnagement of the Company, the Board or the rotifehe Companyg' Class E
common stock, $0.01 par value;

(i) the consummation of (A) a merger, consolidatistatutory share exchange or similar form of ocaife transaction
involving (x) the Company or (y) any of its Subsides, but in the case of this clause (y) onlyofifpany Voting Securities (as
defined below) are issued or issuable (each oétlemts referred to in this clause (A) being herféémaeferred to as a
“Reorganization”) or (B) the sale or other dispiositof all or substantially all the assets of then@any to an entity that is not an
Affiliate (a “Sale”), in each case, if such Reorgation or Sale requires the approval of the Comgsastockholders under the law
of the Company’s jurisdiction of organization (whet such approval is required for such Reorgaminair Sale or for the issuance
of securities of the Company in such Reorganizatio8ale), unless, immediately following such Remigation or Sale, (1) all or
substantially all the individuals and entities where the “beneficial owners” (as such term is d&diim Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act (or a successor rule thereto)) os#wirities eligible to vote for the election of Beard (“Company Voting
Securities”) outstanding immediately prior to tlimsummation of such Reorganization or Sale berdifiadwn, directly or
indirectly, more than 50% of the combined votingveo of the then outstanding voting securities ef¢brporation resulting from
such Reorganization or Sale (including, withoutifétion, a corporation that, as a result of suaehdaction, owns the Company or
all or substantially all the Company’s assets eitlieectly or through one or more subsidiariesg (t@ontinuing Corporation”) in
substantially the same proportions as their



ownership, immediately prior to the consummatioswéh Reorganization or Sale, of the outstandingn@my Voting Securities
(excluding any outstanding voting securities of @antinuing Corporation that such beneficial owrteskl immediately following
the consummation of the Reorganization or Salerasut of their ownership prior to such consumpratf voting securities of any
company or other entity involved in or forming paftsuch Reorganization or Sale other than the Gy (2) no Person
(excluding (x) any employee benefit plan (or redatteist) sponsored or maintained by the Contin@ogporation or any
corporation controlled by the Continuing Corporatify) Jeffrey Katzenberg and (z) David Geffen)dfenally owns, directly or
indirectly, 40% or more of the combined voting powéthe then outstanding voting securities of @wntinuing Corporation and
(3) at least 50% of the members of the board @fotirs of the Continuing Corporation were Incumi@ingctors at the time of the
execution of the definitive agreement providing $ach Reorganization or Sale or, in the absensedi an agreement, at the time
at which approval of the Board was obtained fothsReorganization or Sale;

(iii) the stockholders of the Company approve am&complete liquidation or dissolution of the Queny; or

(iv) any Person, corporation or other entity ordigp” (as used in Section 14(d)(2) of the Exchangg fother than (A) the
Company, (B) any trustee or other fiduciary holdsegurities under an employee benefit plan of tbe@any or an Affiliate or
(C) any company owned, directly or indirectly, e tstockholders of the Company in substantiallystrae proportions as their
ownership of the voting power of the Company VotBerurities) becomes the beneficial owner, diremtlindirectly, of securities
of the Company representing 40% or more of the d¢oetbvoting power of the Company Voting Securites only if the
percentage so owned exceeds the aggregate pereerftdg combined voting power of the Company Mpt8ecurities then owne
directly or indirectly, by Jeffrey Katzenberg and\id Geffen; provided however, that for purposes of this subparagraph (iv), the
following acquisitions shall not constitute a Chargg Control: (x) any acquisition directly from tR®mpany or (y) any acquisition
by any employee benefit plan (or related trusthspoed or maintained by the Company or an Affiliate

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 198@n@nded from time to time, or any successor stéteteto, and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Committee” means the compensation committee oBib&rd, or such other committee of the Board as beagiesignated by the
Board to administer the Plan.

“Company” means DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc.pgporation organized under the laws of Delawarggtioer with any
successor thereto.



“Deferred Share Unit” means a deferred share uwia that represents an unfunded and unsecuredggaondeliver Shares in
accordance with the terms of the applicable Awagdeg&ment.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Adi9¥4, as amended from time to time, or any suocestatute thereto, and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Exercise Price” means (a) in the case of Optitims price specified in the applicable Award Agreatras the price-per-Share at
which Shares may be purchased pursuant to sucbrOgti(b) in the case of SARSs, the price specifietthe applicable Award Agreement as
the reference price-per-Share used to calculatarttaint payable to the Participant.

“Fair Market Value” means, except as otherwise jated in the applicable Award Agreement, (a) witbpect to any property other
than Shares, the fair market value of such propmletgrmined by such methods or procedures askshaktablished from time to time by the
Committee and (b) with respect to the Shares, asipate, (i) the closing per-share sales pridgae@Shares (A) as reported by the NASDAQ
for such date or (B) if the Shares are listed on@her national stock exchange, as reported ostthek exchange composite tape for securities
traded on such stock exchange for such date dr,redfpect to each of clauses (A) and (B), if tlveeee no sales on such date, on the closest
preceding date on which there were sales of Stwarg in the event there shall be no public matfioe the Shares on such date, the fair ms
value of the Shares as determined in good faittheyCommittee.

“Incentive Stock Option” means an option to pureéh8kares from the Company that (a) is granted uBeetion 6(b) of the Plan,
the Prior Plan, the 2008 Plan or the 2004 Plan(bBhis intended to qualify for special Federal imeotax treatment pursuant to Sections 421
and 422 of the Code, as now constituted or subsgiguemended, or pursuant to a successor providitine Code, and which is so designated
in the applicable Award Agreement.

“Independent Director” means a member of the Bdaydvho is neither an employee of the Company naraployee of any
Affiliate, and (b) who, at the time of acting, i$Mon-Employee Director” under Rule 16b-3.

“IRS” means the Internal Revenue Service or angessor thereto and includes the staff thereof.
“NASDAQ” means the National Association of Sec@dtiDealers Automated Quotations.

“Nonqualified Stock Option” means an option to fhase Shares from the Company that (a) is grantédriBection 6(b) of the
Plan, the Prior Plan, the 2008 Plan or the 2004 Rial (b) is not an Incentive Stock Option.
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“Option” means an Incentive Stock Option or a Naaldied Stock Option or both, as the context reesiir

“Participant” means any director, officer, employ®econsultant (including any prospective directificer, employee or
consultant) of the Company or its Affiliates wheel@ible for an Award under Section 5 and whoekested by the Committee to receive an
Award under the Plan or who receives a Substitutardl pursuant to Section 4(c).

“Performance Compensation Award” means any Awasigiated by the Committee as a Performance Compi@mgeward
pursuant to Section 6(e) of the Plan, the Prion Rlae 2008 Plan or the 2004 Plan.

“Performance Criteria” means the criterion or eidg¢hat the Committee shall select for purposesstéblishing the Performance
Goal(s) for a Performance Period with respect foRerformance Compensation Award or Performancé &nif applicable, any Cash
Incentive Award.

“Performance Formulafheans, for a Performance Period, the one or moneulas applied against the relevant Performancé 6
determine, with regard to the Performance Compemséward or Performance Unit or, if applicablegt@ash Incentive Award of a particular
Participant, whether all, some portion but lessithly or none of such Award has been earned P#rformance Period.

“Performance Goal” means, for a Performance Peti@pne or more goals established by the Comnfittethe Performance
Period based upon the Performance Criteria.

“Performance Period” means the one or more pebtisne as the Committee may select over whichatiteinment of one or more
Performance Goals will be measured for the purpbsietermining a Participant’s right to and the payt of a Performance Compensation
Award or Performance Unit or, if applicable, a Castentive Award.

“Performance Unit” means an Award under Sectioh @é{the Plan, the Prior Plan, the 2008 Plan or20@4 Plan that has a value
set by the Committee (or that is determined byregfee to a valuation formula specified by the Cottemior the Fair Market Value of Shares),
which value may be paid to the Participant by aaipof such property as the Committee shall detegrrincluding without limitation, cash or
Shares, or any combination thereof, upon achievenfesuch Performance Goals during the relevanfoeance Period as the Committee
shall establish at the time of such Award or thiteea

“Plan” shall have the meaning specified in Secfion

“Prior Plan” shall have the meaning specified it 1.



“Restricted Share” means a Share that is grantddru®ection 6(d) of the Plan, the Prior Plan, t@8Plan or the 2004 Plan that is
subject to certain transfer restrictions, forfegtprovisions and/or other terms and conditionsifipdcherein and in the applicable Award
Agreement.

“RSU” means a restricted stock unit Award thatrisnged under Section 6(d) of the Plan, the PrianPthe 2008 Plan or the 2004
Plan and is designated as such in the applicablerdigreement and that represents an unfundedrasetured promise to deliver Shares,
cash, other securities, other Awards or other pigpe accordance with the terms of the applicabheard Agreement.

“Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 as promulgated atetpneted by the SEC under the Exchange Act orsangessor rule or
regulation thereto as in effect from time to time.

“SAR” means a stock appreciation right Award tlsagjianted under Section 6(c) of the Plan, the Pian, the 2008 Plan or the
2004 Plan and that represents an unfunded anduneskegromise to deliver Shares, cash, other sésyristher Awards or other property equal
in value to the excess, if any, of the Fair MaNalue per Share over the Exercise Price per SHaleeGAR, subject to the terms of the
applicable Award Agreement.

“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commissi@amy successor thereto and shall include thétheafeof.

“Shares” means shares of Class A Common Stockeo€tmpany, $0.01 par value, or such other secsigfithe Company (a) into
which such shares shall be changed by reasonedfapitalization, merger, consolidation, split-upmbination, exchange of shares or other
similar transaction or (b) as may be determinetheyCommittee pursuant to Section 4(b).

“Subsidiary” means any entity in which the Compadtiyectly or indirectly, possesses fifty percer@¥® or more of the total
combined voting power of all classes of its stock.

“Substitute Awards” shall have the meaning spedifieSection 4(c).
“Substituted Options” shall have the meaning spetiin Section 6(c)(v).
“Substitution SARs” shall have the meaning spedifie Section 6(c)(v).

“Treasury Regulationstheans all proposed, temporary and final regulatomulgated under the Code, as such regulatioysbe
amended from time to time (including correspondingvisions of succeeding regulations).

SECTION 3. Administration(a) Composition of Committe@he Plan shall be administered by the Committeéchvbhall be
composed of one or more directors, as determindtidBoard; providethat, to the extent necessary to comply
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with the rules of the NASDAQ and Rule 16b-3 angatisfy any applicable requirements of Section af§2{f the Code and any other
applicable laws or rules, the Committee shall bmposed of two or more directors, all of whom shallindependent Directors and all of wh
shall (i) qualify as “outside directors” under Sent162(m) of the Code and (ii) meet the indeperdarquirements of the NASDAQ.

(b) Authority of CommitteeSubject to the terms of the Plan and applicable & in addition to other express powers and
authorizations conferred on the Committee by tleaPthe Committee shall have sole and plenary aitgtto administer the Plan, including,
but not limited to, the authority to (i) design&articipants, (ii) determine the type or types @fakds to be granted to a Participant,
(iii) determine the number of Shares to be covéngr with respect to which payments, rights dreotmatters are to be calculated in
connection with, Awards, (iv) determine the termd aonditions of any Awards, (v) determine the wgsschedules of Awards and, if certain
performance criteria must be attained in ordeafoAward to vest or be settled or paid, establigth performance criteria and certify whether,
and to what extent, such performance criteria leen attained, (vi) determine whether, to whatredx@aad under what circumstances Awards
may be settled or exercised in cash, Shares, s#uerities, other Awards or other property, or edext, forfeited or suspended and the method
or methods by which Awards may be settled, exedcisanceled, forfeited or suspended, (vii) deteemihether, to what extent and under v
circumstances cash, Shares, other securities, Athards, other property and other amounts payalite spect to an Award shall be deferred
either automatically or at the election of the leolthereof or of the Committee, (viii) interpretinainister, reconcile any inconsistency in,
correct any default in and/or supply any omissiartlie Plan and any instrument or agreement rglatinor Award made under, the Plan, the
Prior Plan, the 2008 Plan or the 2004 Plan, (ifdsh, amend, suspend or waive such rules andatgns and appoint such agents as it shall
deem appropriate for the proper administratiorhefRlan, (x) accelerate the vesting or exercigglifi payment for or lapse of restrictions on,
Awards, (xi) amend an outstanding Award or grargacement Award for an Award previously grantader the Plan, the Prior Plan, the
2008 Plan or the 2004 Plan if, in its sole disoretthe Committee determines that (A) the tax cguseces of such Award to the Company or
the Participant differ from those consequenceswiegie expected to occur on the date the Award weasted or (B) clarifications or
interpretations of, or changes to, tax law or rajohs permit Awards to be granted that have maveraible tax consequences than initially
anticipated and (xii) make any other determinatiad take any other action that the Committee deeosssary or desirable for the
administration of the Plan.

(c) Committee DecisiongJnless otherwise expressly provided in the Pldrdedignations, determinations, interpretations ather
decisions under or with respect to the Plan orfamgrd shall be within the sole and plenary disomeif the Committee, may be made at any
time and shall be final, conclusive and bindingmupd Persons, including the Company, any Affilisaay Participant, any holder or benefici
of any Award and any stockholder.




(d) IndemnificationNo member of the Board, the Committee or any eng#ayf the Company (each such person, a “Covered
Person”) shall be liable for any action taken oiitted to be taken or any determination made in gagt with respect to the Plan or any
Award. Each Covered Person shall be indemnifiedhetd harmless by the Company from and againsinff)loss, cost, liability or expense
(including attorneysfees) that may be imposed upon or incurred by €mrered Person in connection with or resulting fraamy action, suit ¢
proceeding to which such Covered Person may betya @ain which such Covered Person may be involgdeason of any action taken or
omitted to be taken under the Plan or any Awardeagrent and (ii) any and all amounts paid by sucre@a Person, with the Company’s
approval, in settlement thereof, or paid by suckeCed Person in satisfaction of any judgment insugh action, suit or proceeding against
such Covered Person; providibdit the Company shall have the right, at its owpease, to assume and defend any such actiorgrsuit
proceeding, and, once the Company gives noticts afitent to assume the defense, the Companyistnad! sole control over such defense with
counsel of the Company’s choice. The foregoingtragftindemnification shall not be available to av€red Person to the extent that a court of
competent jurisdiction in a final judgment or otfieal adjudication, in either case not subjectuither appeal, determines that the acts or
omissions of such Covered Person giving rise tartlemnification claim resulted from such Coveredd®n’s bad faith, fraud or willful
criminal act or omission or that such right of intgfication is otherwise prohibited by law or byet€ompany’s Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or Restated Bylaws. The foregoin@triof indemnification shall not be exclusive of asther rights of indemnification to which
Covered Persons may be entitled under the Comp&®estated Certificate of Incorporation or Rest&ghws, as a matter of law, or
otherwise, or any other power that the Company hzae to indemnify such persons or hold them hargnles

(e) Delegation of Authority to Senior OfficefBhe Committee may delegate, on such terms and tiomslias it determines in its si
and plenary discretion, to one or more senior effiof the Company the authority to make gran#&vedirds to officers (other than any officer
subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act), empdayend consultants of the Company and its Affitigtecluding any prospective officer
(other than any such officer who is expected tedigect to Section 16 of the Exchange Act), empayeconsultant) and all necessary and
appropriate decisions and determinations with retsihereto.

(f) Awards to Independent Directofdotwithstanding anything to the contrary contaihedein, the Board may, in its sole and
plenary discretion, at any time and from time todj grant Awards to Independent Directors or adsteénithe Plan with respect to such Awa
In any such case, the Board shall have all theoaityhend responsibility granted to the Committeedin.

SECTION 4. _Shares Available for Awards; Cash Pay&hirsuant to Awardéa) Shares and Cash AvailabBubject to adjustment
as provided in Section 4(b), the maximum aggregateber of Shares that may be delivered pursuahivirds granted under the Plan (which,
for purposes of clarity, shall include any Sharebvered pursuant to Awards granted under the Fian, the 2008 Plan or the 2004
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Plan prior to the approval of the Plan by the Conyfmstockholders on April 21, 2011) shall be egoahe sum of (i) 12,000,000, (ii) any
Shares remaining available for future grants of Alsaunder the Prior Plan as of the date the Plappsoved by the Company’s stockholders
on April 21, 2011, plus (iii) any Shares with resp® Awards granted under the Prior Plan, the 20i@8 or the 2004 Plan that are forfeited
following the date that the Plan is approved byGoenpany’s stockholders on April 21, 2011, of which000,000 Shares may be delivered
pursuant to Incentive Stock Options granted undePian. Upon exercise of a stock-settled SARtagimum aggregate number of Shares
that may be delivered pursuant to Awards grantetbuthe Plan as provided above shall be reducedebgictual number of Shares delivered
upon settlement of such stock-settled SAR. Awahnds @re settled in cash will not reduce the nunolh&hares available for delivery under the
Plan. If, after the effective date of the Plan, &wyard is (A) forfeited, or otherwise expires, ténates or is canceled without the delivery of all
Shares subject thereto, or (B) is settled other thathe delivery of Shares (including, without iiation, cash settlement), then, in the case of
clauses (A) and (B), the number of Shares subjestith Award that were not issued with respectith Award will not be treated as issued
hereunder for purposes of reducing the maximumeagge number of Shares that may be delivered pursm@wards granted under the Plan.
If Shares issued upon exercise, vesting or settieofean Award are, or Shares owned by a Partitipeey surrendered or tendered to the
Company in payment of the Exercise Price of an Awmarany taxes required to be withheld in respéancAward, in each case, in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Plan and gplieable Award Agreement, such surrendered orderdiShares shall again become
available to be delivered pursuant to Awards utllerPlan; provided however, that in no event shall such Shares increaseuhwar of
Shares that may be delivered pursuant to Inceftigek Options granted under the Plan. Subject jiustrdent as provided in Section 4(b),

(1) in the case of Awards that are settled in Shahe maximum aggregate number of Shares witleot$p which Awards may be granted to
any Participant in any fiscal year of the Companger the Plan shall be 3,000,000, and (2) in tise oh Awards that are settled in cash based
on the Fair Market Value of a Share, the maximugragate amount of cash that may be paid pursuawérds granted to any Participant in
any fiscal year of the Company under the Plan dle#qual to the per-Share Fair Market Value deefelevant vesting, payment or
settlement date multiplied by the number of Shde=cribed in the preceding clause (1). In the ohsdl Awards other than those described in
the preceding sentence, the maximum aggregate araboash and other property (valued at its FairkdaValue) other than Shares that may
be paid or delivered pursuant to Awards under tha B any Participant in any fiscal year of thex@@any shall be equal to $10,000,000.

(b) Adjustments for Changes in Capitalization aimdifar Events (i) In the event of any extraordinary dividend oner
extraordinary distribution (whether in the formaafsh, Shares, other securities or other propeggapitalization, rights offering, stock split,
reverse stock split, split-up or spin-off, the Coittee shall, in the manner determined by the Comemito be appropriate or desirable, adjust
any or all of (A) the number of Shares or othewusigies of the Company (or number and kind of otdeeurities or property) with respect to
which Awards may be granted, including (1) the nraxin aggregate number of Shares that may be deliyenesuant to Awards granted
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under the Plan (including pursuant to IncentivecktOptions) and (2) the maximum number of Sharestluer securities of the Company (or
number and kind of other securities or propertyhwespect to which Awards may be granted to amidizant in any fiscal year of the
Company, in each case, as provided in Section dfa))(B) the terms of any outstanding Award, incigd1) the number of Shares or other
securities of the Company (or number and kind b&psecurities or property) subject to outstandimgirds or to which outstanding Awards
relate and (2) the Exercise Price, if applicablghwespect to any Award.

(i) In the event that the Committee determine$ #rey reorganization, merger, consolidation, coratiam, repurchase or
exchange of Shares or other securities of the Coypssuance of warrants or other rights to purel&tsares or other securities of the
Company, or other similar corporate transactioevant affects the Shares such that an adjustmedetésmined by the Committee in its
discretion to be appropriate or desirable, therGbmmittee may (A) in such manner as it may deepn@piate or desirable, adjust any or all
of (1) the number of Shares or other securitigh®fCompany (or number and kind of other securdrgsroperty) with respect to which
Awards may be granted, including (X) the maximurgragate number of Shares that may be deliveredipot$o Awards granted under the
Plan (including pursuant to Incentive Stock Optjcarzd (Y) the maximum number of Shares or otheurstes of the Company (or number &
kind of other securities or property) with resptectvhich Awards may be granted to any Participarany fiscal year of the Company, in each
case, as provided in Section 4(a), and (2) thegafany outstanding Award, including (X) the numbgShares or other securities of the
Company (or number and kind of other securitiegroperty) subject to outstanding Awards or to whiciistanding Awards relate and (Y) the
Exercise Price, if applicable, with respect to &wyard, (B) if deemed appropriate or desirable by @ommittee, make provision for a cash
payment to the holder of an outstanding Award insideration for the cancelation of such Award, udahg, in the case of an outstanding
Option or SAR, a cash payment to the holder of $Dption or SAR in consideration for the cancelatdrsuch Option or SAR in an amount
equal to the excess, if any, of the Fair Market¢alas of a date specified by the Committee) ofSthares subject to such Option or SAR over
the aggregate Exercise Price of such Option or 8AR(C) if deemed appropriate or desirable by the@ittee, cancel and terminate any
Option or SAR having a per-Share Exercise Priceakimy or in excess of, the Fair Market Value &heare subject to such Option or SAR
without any payment or consideration therefor.

(c) Substitute AwardsSubject to the restrictions on “repricing” of Opt®and SARs as set forth in Section 7(b), Awards
may, in the discretion of the Committee, be granteder the Plan in assumption of, or in substitufi@r, outstanding awards previously
granted by the Company or any of its Affiliatesaactompany acquired by the Company or any of itfiafés or with which the Company or
any of its Affiliates combines (“Substitute AwardlsThe number of Shares underlying any Substititeiis shall be counted against the
maximum aggregate number of Shares available faards/under the Plan; providedowever, that Substitute Awards issued in connection
with the assumption of, or in substitution for, stahding awards previously granted by an entityithacquired by the Company or any of its
Affiliates or with
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which the Company or any of its Affiliates combirg®ll not be counted against the maximum aggregatder of Shares available for
Awards under the Plan; providédather, however, that Substitute Awards issued in connection Withassumption of, or in substitution for,
outstanding stock options intended to qualify feecal tax treatment under Sections 421 and 428e0€ode that were previously granted by
an entity that is acquired by the Company or anygsoAffiliates or with which the Company or any it Affiliates combines shall be counted
against the maximum aggregate number of Sharekbleafor Incentive Stock Options under the Plan.

(d) Sources of Shares Deliverable Under Awakds, Shares delivered pursuant to an Award may strisi whole or in part, of
authorized and unissued Shares or of treasury Share

SECTION 5._Eligibility. Any director, officer, employee or consultant (iding any prospective director, officer, employee o
consultant) of the Company or any of its Affiliatgsall be eligible to be designated a Participant.

SECTION 6. Awards(a) Types of AwardsAwards may be made under the Plan in the form)d@ftions, (i) SARs,
(i) Restricted Shares, (iv) RSUs, (v) Performa@mnpensation Awards, (vi) Performance Units, (@i#sh Incentive Awards, (viii) Deferred
Share Units and (ix) other equity based or eq@tsted Awards that the Committee determines arsistemt with the purpose of the Plan and
the interests of the Company. Awards may be grantéghdem with other Awards. No Incentive StockiiGmp (other than an Incentive Stock
Option that may be assumed or issued by the Comipacgnnection with a transaction to which Sect@d(a) of the Code applies) may be
granted to a person who is ineligible to receivérmmentive Stock Option under the Code.

(b) Options(i) Grant.Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Commitieall have sole and plenary authority to detezmin
(A) the Participants to whom Options shall be gedn{B) subject to Section 4(a), the number of &haubject to Options to be granted to each
Participant, (C) whether each Option will be arelmive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock Optard (D) the conditions and limitations
applicable to the vesting and exercise of eachd@ptn the case of Incentive Stock Options, thegeand conditions of such grants shall be
subject to and comply with such rules as may beqoiteed by Section 422 of the Code and any reguiatielated thereto, as may be amended
from time to time. All Options granted under thaiPkhall be Nonqualified Stock Options unless fhgieable Award Agreement expressly
states that the Option is intended to be an Ineer8tock Option. If an Option is intended to bdr@sentive Stock Option, and if, for any
reason, such Option (or any portion thereof) shatlqualify as an Incentive Stock Option, thenthi® extent of such nonqualification, such
Option (or portion thereof) shall be regarded &baqualified Stock Option appropriately granted emthe Plan;_providethat such Option (or
portion thereof) otherwise complies with the Plar@quirements relating to Nonqualified Stock Opsion
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(i) Exercise PriceThe Exercise Price of each Share covered by aro®phiall be not less than 100% of the Fair Market
Value of such Share (determined as of the dat®tit®n is granted); providedhowever, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option gramted
an employee who, at the time of the grant of suptid, owns stock representing more than 10% of/thieng power of all classes of stock of
the Company or any Affiliate, the per-Share Exexétsice shall be no less than 110% of the Fair Btavlalue per Share on the date of the
grant. Options are intended to qualify as “quatiffeerformance-based compensation” under Sectiomi)a# the Code.

(iii) Vesting and ExerciseEach Option shall be vested and exercisable attimes, in such manner and subject to such
terms and conditions as the Committee may, inois and plenary discretion, specify in the applieakbward Agreement or thereafter. Except
as otherwise specified by the Committee in theiapple Award Agreement, an Option may only be eisectto the extent that it has already
vested at the time of exercise. Except as othersygseified by the Committee in the Award Agreem@ntions shall become vested and
exercisable with respect to ofmirth of the Shares subject to such Options oh e&the first four anniversaries of the date afrgr An Optior
shall be deemed to be exercised when written atreleic notice of such exercise has been givehédtompany in accordance with the terms
of the Award by the person entitled to exerciseAwerd and full payment pursuant to Section 6(B){or the Shares with respect to which the
Award is exercised has been received by the Compargrcise of an Option in any manner shall reisudt decrease in the number of Shares
that thereafter may be available for sale undetpton and, except as expressly set forth in 8estit(a) and 4(c), in the number of Shares
that may be available for purposes of the Plarthbynumber of Shares as to which the Option isoésed. The Committee may impose such
conditions with respect to the exercise of Optiansluding, without limitation, any conditions rélag to the application of Federal or state
securities laws, as it may deem necessary or dulgisa

(iv) Payment(A) No Shares shall be delivered pursuant to amyase of an Option until payment in full of thegaggate
Exercise Price therefor is received by the Compangy,the Participant has paid to the Company @Cibmpany has withheld in accordance
with Section 9(d)) an amount equal to any Fedstatge, local and foreign income and employmentsagquired to be withheld. Such
payments may be made in cash (or its equivalenthahe Committee’s sole and plenary discretidy bfy exchanging Shares owned by the
Participant (which are not the subject of any pkedgother security interest), (2) if there shallsdbpublic market for the Shares at such time,
subject to such rules as may be established bgdnemittee, through delivery of irrevocable instiaos to a broker to sell the Shares other
deliverable upon the exercise of the Option andielover promptly to the Company an amount equahéoaggregate Exercise Price, or
(3) through any other method (or combination ofmoes) as approved by the Committee; provitied the combined value of all cash and ¢
equivalents and the Fair Market Value of any suchr&s so tendered to the Company, together wittSaayes withheld by the Company in
accordance with Section 9(d), as of the date df seicder, is at least equal to such aggregate ErePeice and the amount of any Federal,
state, local or foreign income or employment taveggiired to be withheld, if applicable.
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(B) Wherever in the Plan or any Award AgreemengteiBipant is permitted to pay the Exercise PritaroOption or taxes
relating to the exercise of an Option by deliver8ftares, the Participant may, subject to procedsagsfactory to the Committee, satisfy such
delivery requirement by presenting proof of beriafiownership of such Shares, in which case the g2mmy shall treat the Option as exercised
without further payment and shall withhold such tw@mof Shares from the Shares acquired by the isxeof the Option.

(v) Expiration.Except as otherwise set forth in the applicable dwsgreement, each Option shall expire immediately,
without any payment, upon the earlier of (A) thetleanniversary of the date the Option is granteti(®) 90 days after the date the Participant
who is holding the Option ceases to be a diredfficer, employee or consultant of the Company e of its Affiliates. In no event may an
Option be exercisable after the tenth anniversathi@date the Option is granted.

(c) SARs.(i) Grant.Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committieall have sole and plenary authority to detezniy) the
Participants to whom SARs shall be granted, (Bjexitlio Section 4(a), the number of SARs to be tg@io each Participant, (C) the Exercise
Price thereof and (D) the conditions and limitasi@pplicable to the exercise thereof.

(i) Exercise PriceThe Exercise Price of each Share covered by a $aR Iz not less than 100% of the Fair Market Value
of such Share (determined as of the date the SARaisted). SARs are intended to qualify as “quedifperformance-based compensation”
under Section 162(m) of the Code.

(iii) Exercise.A SAR shall entitle the Participant to receive amant upon exercise equal to the excess, if antheofFair
Market Value of a Share on the date of exercigd@SAR over the Exercise Price thereof. The Cotemihall determine, in its sole and
plenary discretion, whether a SAR shall be seftlethsh, Shares, other securities, other Award&rgiroperty or a combination of any of the
foregoing.

(iv) Other Terms and ConditionSubject to the terms of the Plan and any applicAlblard Agreement, the Committee shall
determine, at or after the grant of a SAR, theingdtriteria, term, methods of exercise, methodsfamm of settlement and any other terms
conditions of any SAR; providechowever, that in no event may any SAR be exercisable #fietenth anniversary of the date the SAR is
granted. Any determination by the Committee thah&le pursuant to this Section 6(c)(iv) may be gbedrby the Committee from time to time
and may govern the exercise of SARs granted orcesast thereafter.

(v) Substitution SARsThe Committee shall have the ability to substitutigthout the consent of the affected Participant or
any holder or beneficiary of SARs, SARs settle@ivares (or SARs settled in Shares or cash in tihen@itee’s discretion) (* Substitution
SARs") for outstanding Nonqualified Stock Options (“IS&tituted Options); providedthat (A) the substitution shall not otherwise resula
modification of the terms of any Substituted Opti(®) the number of Shares underlying
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the Substitution SARs shall be the same as the aupnftShares underlying the Substituted Options(&@)dhe Exercise Price of the
Substitution SARs shall be equal to the ExerciseeRsf the Substituted Options. If, in the opinimfithe Company’s auditors, this provision
creates adverse accounting consequences for thpabgrrit shall be considered null and void.

(d) Restricted Shares and RS(k.Grant.Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committieall have sole and plenary authority
to determine (A) the Participants to whom Restd®hares and RSUs shall be granted, (B) subje®tétion 4(a), the number of Restricted
Shares and RSUs to be granted to each ParticifgZnhe duration of the period during which, and tonditions, if any, under which, the
Restricted Shares and RSUs may vest or may betémtfo the Company and (D) the other terms andlitioms of such Awards.

(ii) Transfer RestrictionsRestricted Shares and RSUs may not be sold, assittaesferred, pledged or otherwise
encumbered except as provided in the Plan or asbmgyovided in the applicable Award Agreementyjted, however, that the Committee
may, in its discretion, determine that Restrictbdr®s and RSUs may be transferred by the Participano consideration. Restricted Shares
may be evidenced in such manner as the Commitiedgiermine. If certificates representing ResddcShares are registered in the name of
the applicable Participant, such certificates niiestr an appropriate legend referring to the tecmsditions and restrictions applicable to such
Restricted Shares, and the Company may, at itsatiiso, retain physical possession of such cetiéis until such time as all applicable
restrictions lapse.

(iii) Payment/Lapse of RestrictionSach RSU shall be granted with respect to one Siraskall have a value equal to the
Fair Market Value of one Share. RSUs shall be paahsh, Shares, other securities, other Awardgtar property, as determined in the sole
and plenary discretion of the Committee, upon #psé of restrictions applicable thereto, or othsevin accordance with the applicable Award
Agreement. If a Restricted Share or an RSU is oedrto qualify as “qualified performance-based cengation” under Section 162(m) of the
Code, unless the grant of such Restricted ShaRStf is contingent on satisfaction of the requiretséor the payment of “qualified
performance-based compensatiomter Section 162(m) of the Code (whether pursta8ection 6(e) of this Plan, the DreamWorks Aniorz
SKG, Inc. 2008 Annual Incentive Plan or any othlanjp all requirements set forth in Section 6(e)strie satisfied in order for the restrictions
applicable thereto to lapse.

(e) Performance Compensation Awar(ils.General.The Committee shall have the authority, at the tihgrant of any Award, to
designate such Award (other than an Option or S#3 Performance Compensation Award in order fon #ward to qualify as “qualified
performance-based compensation” under Section 1)6&{(the Code. Options and SARs granted under ke $hall not be included among
Awards that are designated as Performance Compemgatards under this Section 6(e).
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(ii) Eligibility. The Committee shall, in its sole discretion, deatgrwithin the first 90 days of a Performance Re(a, if
shorter, within the maximum period allowed undectf&m 162(m) of the Code) which Participants w#l &ligible to receive Performance
Compensation Awards in respect of such Perform&ec®d. However, designation of a Participant aglaé to receive an Award hereunder
for a Performance Period shall not in any mannétlesuch Participant to receive payment in respéany Performance Compensation
Award for such Performance Period. The determinagi®to whether or not such Participant becométeshto payment in respect of any
Performance Compensation Award shall be decideslysinl accordance with the provisions of this Sat(e). Moreover, designation of a
Participant as eligible to receive an Award hereuridr a particular Performance Period shall nqtinee designation of such Participant as
eligible to receive an Award hereunder in any sgheat Performance Period and designation of oreopas a Participant eligible to receive
an Award hereunder shall not require designaticengfother person as a Participant eligible toivecan Award hereunder in such period o
any other period.

(iii) Discretion of Committee with Respect to Perfmnce Compensation Award#ith regard to a particular Performance
Period, the Committee shall have full discretiorsétect (A) the length of such Performance PeiiBilthe type(s) of Performance
Compensation Awards to be issued, (C) the Perfocm@riteria that will be used to establish the Banbince Goal(s), (D) the kind(s) and/or
level(s) of the Performance Goals(s) that is (Bvgpply to the Company or any of its Subsidiarid§liates, divisions or operational units, or
any combination of the foregoing, and (E) the Penimce Formula; providetiat any such Performance Formula shall be objeetnd non-
discretionary. Within the first 90 days of a Penfiance Period (or, if shorter, within the maximumiq@e allowed under Section 162(m) of the
Code), the Committee shall, with regard to the &tarthnce Compensation Awards to be issued for sadiofhance Period, exercise its
discretion with respect to each of the matters esrated in the immediately preceding sentence asatadehe same in writing.

(iv) Performance CriteridNotwithstanding the foregoing, the PerformanceeCtiatthat will be used to establish the
Performance Goal(s) with respect to Performance fggmsation Awards shall be based on the attainnfesgezific levels of performance of
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, Affiliatdsjsions or operational units, or any combinatidithe foregoing, and shall be limited to the
following: (A) net income or earnings before oreaftaxes (including earnings before interest, tadepreciation and amortization),
(B) operating income, (C) earnings per share, @)rn on shareholders’ equity, (E) return on inwesit or capital, (F) return on assets,
(G) level or amount of acquisitions, (H) share eyi@) profitability/profit margins, (J) market stea(in the aggregate or by segment),
(K) revenues or sales (including specified typesategories thereof) (based on units and/or d§llér¥ costs (including specified types or
categories thereof), (M) cash flow, (N) working talp (O) completion of production or stages ofguotion within specified time and/or
budget parameters, (P) budgeted expenses (opesatihgapital) and (Q) box office results (domestiternational or worldwide) of any of the
Company’s films. Such Performance Criteria may fiygliad on an absolute basis, be relative to ormaare peer companies of the Company or
indices or any combination thereof or, if applicgtie
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computed on an accrual or cash accounting basithél'extent required under Section 162(m) of thdeCthe Committee shall, within the first
90 days of the applicable Performance Period {asharter, within the maximum period allowed un&ection 162(m) of the Code), define in
an objective manner the method of calculating tdPmance Criteria it selects to use for suchd?erénce Period.

(v) Modification of Performance Goal§he Committee is authorized at any time duringfitst 90 days of a Performance
Period (or, if shorter, within the maximum peridibaved under Section 162(m) of the Code), or ametthereafter (but only to the extent the
exercise of such authority after such 90-day pefiwcuch shorter period, if applicable) would natise the Performance Compensation
Awards granted to any Participant for the PerforoeaReriod to fail to qualify as “qualified performae-based compensation” under
Section 162(m) of the Code), in its sole and plgmscretion, to adjust or modify the calculatidradPerformance Goal for such Performance
Period to the extent permitted under Section 162(ntfle Code (A) in the event of, or in anticipatiof, any unusual or extraordinary corporate
item, transaction, event or development affectmg@ompany, or any of its Affiliates, Subsidiaridsjsions or operating units (to the extent
applicable to such Performance Goal) or (B) in gedtion of, or in anticipation of, any other unusaenonrecurring events affecting the
Company or any of its Affiliates, Subsidiaries, idions or operating units (to the extent applicablsuch Performance Goal), or the financial
statements of the Company or any of its Affiliateapsidiaries, divisions or operating units (to étlxeent applicable to such Performance Goal),
or of changes in applicable rules, rulings, redotet or other requirements of any governmental kardgecurities exchange, accounting
principles, law or business conditions.

(vi) Payment of Performance Compensation Awaféls. Condition to Receipt of Paymemt.Participant must be employed
by the Company or one of its Subsidiaries on tseday of a Performance Period to be eligible foyment in respect of a Performance
Compensation Award for such Performance Periodwilastanding the foregoing and to the extent paediby Section 162(m) of the Code
the discretion of the Committee, Performance Corsgon Awards may be paid to Participants who hatieed or whose employment has
terminated prior to the last day of the PerformaRegod for which a Performance Compensation Avigrdade, or to the designee or estate of
a Participant who died prior to the last day ofeaf@mance Period.

(B) Limitation. Except as otherwise permitted by Section 162(nthefCode, a Participant shall be eligible to reeeiv
payments in respect of a Performance Compensatiaardionly to the extent that (1) the Performancel() for the relevant Performance
Period are achieved and certified by the Commitiescordance with Section 6(e)(vi)(C) and (2) Begformance Formula as applied against
such Performance Goal(s) determines that all orespontion of such Participant’'s Performance Comagois Award has been earned for such
Performance Period.

(C) Certification.Following the completion of a Performance Perib&, €Committee shall meet to review and certify in
writing whether, and to what extent, the Perforrea@oals for the Performance Period have been asthiand, if so, to
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calculate and certify in writing that amount of tRerformance Compensation Awards earned for thegbased upon the objective
Performance Formula. The Committee shall then deter the actual size of each Participant’s PerfoweaCompensation Award for the
Performance Period and, in so doing, may apply thegeiscretion as authorized by Section 6(e)(v))(D

(D) Negative Discretionin determining the actual size of an individualfBenance Compensation Award for a Performe
Period, the Committee may, in its sole and plewiggretion, reduce or eliminate the amount of thea’d earned in the Performance Period,
even if applicable Performance Goals have beemattaand without regard to any employment agreerbetween the Company and a
Participant.

(E) Discretion Except as otherwise permitted by Section 162(nhefCode, in no event shall any discretionary aitiho
granted to the Committee by the Plan be used tgréit or provide payment in respect of Performaampensation Awards for a
Performance Period if the Performance Goals foh fterformance Period have not been attained, (2@@se a Performance Compensation
Award for any Participant at any time after thetf@0 days of the Performance Period (or, if shotiie maximum period allowed under
Section 162(m) of the Code) or (3) increase a Pexdace Compensation Award above the maximum anmayéble under Section 4(a) of the
Plan.

(F) Form of Paymentn the case of any Performance Compensation Awtlrel than a Restricted Share, RSU or other
equity-based Award that is subject to performangseld vesting conditions, such Performance Comgensatvard shall be payable, in the
discretion of the Committee, in cash or in RestdcEhares, RSUs or fully vested Shares of equitabdne and shall be paid on such terms as
determined by the Committee in its discretion. Asstricted Shares and RSUs shall be subject tiethes of this Plan (or any successor
equity-compensation plan) and any applicable Award Agrednmiegne number of Restricted Shares, RSUs or Shiaaé$s equivalent in value
a dollar amount shall be determined in accordaritteavmethodology specified by the Committee witthia first 90 days of the relevant
Performance Period (or, if shorter, within the nmaxin period allowed under Section 162(m) of the Gode

() Performance Unitgi) Grant.Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committlkall have sole and plenary authority to
determine the Participants to whom Performancesstitll be granted.

(i) Value of Performance Unit&ach Performance Unit shall have an initial vahgt is established by the Committee at the
time of grant. The Committee shall set Performaaoals in its discretion which, depending on theeekto which they are met during a
Performance Period, will determine in accordandd Bection 4(a) the number and/or value of PerfacadJnits that will be paid out to the
Participant.
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(iii) Earning of Performance UnitSubject to the provisions of the Plan, after theliapble Performance Period has ended,
the holder of Performance Units shall be entitledetceive a payout of the number and value of Padace Units earned by the Participant
over the Performance Period, to be determined &y¥thmmittee, in its sole and plenary discretiora &ction of the extent to which the
corresponding Performance Goals have been achieved.

(iv) Form and Timing of Payment of Performance Wrfubject to the provisions of the Plan, the Commijtie its sole and
plenary discretion, may pay earned PerformancesUmithe form of cash or in Shares (or in a comtimnathereof) that have an aggregate Fair
Market Value equal to the value of the earned Perdmce Units at the close of the applicable Perémce Period. Such Shares may be granted
subject to any restrictions in the applicable AwAgieement deemed appropriate by the Committee d€termination of the Committee with
respect to the form and timing of payout of suchafds shall be set forth in the applicable Awarde&gment. If a Performance Unit is intended
to qualify as “qualified performance-based compgaraunder Section 162(m) of the Code, all requients set forth in Section 6(e) must be
satisfied in order for a Participant to be entitleghayment.

(9) Cash Incentive AwardSubiject to the provisions of the Plan, the Commijtie its sole and plenary discretion, shall hdnee t
authority to grant Cash Incentive Awards, which friaythe Committee’s sole and plenary discretiansbbject to the attainment of
Performance Goals. If payment of the Cash Inceriward is intended to be subject to the attainnoéierformance Goals, subject to
Section 4(a), the Committee shall establish Caséritive Award levels to determine the amount ofalCincentive Award payable upon the
attainment of Performance Goals. If a Cash Incemdiward is intended to qualify as “qualified perfance-based compensation” under
Section 162(m) of the Code, all requirements sehfim Section 6(e) must be satisfied in orderdd?articipant to be entitled to payment.

(h) Other StockBased AwardsSubject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committieall have the sole and plenary authority tot
to Participants other equity-based or equélated Awards (including, but not limited to, Defad Share Units and fully vested Shares) (whu
payable in cash, equity or otherwise) in such antsand subject to such terms and conditions a€tmemittee shall determine; providduht
any such Awards must comply, to the extent deenesdable by the Committee, with Rule 16b-3 andiapple law.

(i) Dividends and Dividend Equivalents the sole and plenary discretion of the CommjtéeeAward, other than an Option
or SAR or a Cash Incentive Award, may provide theiBipant with dividends or dividend equivalemayable in cash, Shares, other secur
other Awards or other property, on a current oedefd basis, on such terms and conditions as madgteemined by the Committee in its sole
and plenary discretion, including, without limitati, (i) payment directly to the Participant, (iijthholding of such amounts by the Company
subject to vesting of the Award or (iii) reinvesimé additional Shares, Restricted Shares or cilwaards.
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SECTION 7. Amendment and Terminatiga) Amendments to the PlaBubject to any applicable law or government regumato
any requirement that must be satisfied if the Fda@ntended to be a shareholder-approved plandgrgses of Section 162(m) of the Code and
to the rules of the NASDAQ or any successor exchangjuotation system on which the Shares maystedlior quoted, the Plan may be
amended, modified or terminated by the Board witlibe approval of the stockholders of the Compamgept that stockholder approval shall
be required for any amendment that would (i) insesthe maximum number of Shares for which Awardg beagranted under the Plan or
increase the maximum number of Shares that mayglbeeded pursuant to Incentive Stock Options grdmteder the Plan; providechowever,
that any adjustment under Section 4(b) shall nostitute an increase for purposes of this Sect{ap or (ii) change the class of employees or
other individuals eligible to participate in theaRl No amendment, modification or termination & EHan may, without the consent of the
Participant to whom any Award shall theretofor hheen granted, materially and adversely affectittes of such Participant (or his or her
transferee) under such Award, unless otherwiseigeovby the Committee in the applicable Award Agneat.

(b) Amendments to Award3he Committee may waive any conditions or rightdamamend any terms of, or alter, suspend,
discontinue, cancel or terminate any Award theoetgfanted, prospectively or retroactively; prodddowever, that, except as set forth in the
Plan, unless otherwise provided by the Committeeénapplicable Award Agreement, any such waivererdment, alteration, suspension,
discontinuance, cancelation or termination that lvanaterially and adversely impair the rights of &uarticipant or any holder or beneficiary
of any Award theretofor granted shall not to theteat be effective without the consent of the agadlie Participant, holder or beneficiary.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, in no ewe&yt any Option or SAR (i) be amended to decrdasé&xkercise Price thereof, (i)
cancelled at a time when its Exercise Price exctedFair Market Value of the underlying Sharesxnhange for another Option or SAR or
any Restricted Share, RSU, other equity-based Aveavdrd under any other equity-compensation plaangrcash payment or (iii) be subject
to any action that would be treated, for accoungingposes, as a “repricing” of such Option or SARess such amendment, cancellation, or
action is approved by the Company’s stockholdeos tire avoidance of doubt, an adjustment to thedtse Price of an Option or SAR that is
made in accordance with Section 4(b) or Sectiona siot be considered a reduction in ExerciseePoic repricing” of such Option or SAR.

(c) Adjustment of Awards Upon the Occurrence oft8iarUnusual or Nonrecurring Evenfubject to Section 6(e)(v) and the final
sentence of Section 7(b), the Committee is hereliyogized to make adjustments in the terms anditiond of, and the criteria included in,
Awards in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring® (including, without limitation, the events delsed in Section 4(b) or the occurrence of
a Change of Control) affecting the Company, anyliafgé, or the financial statements of the Compangny Affiliate, or of changes in
applicable rules, rulings, regulations or othewisgments of any governmental body or securitieharge, accounting principles or law
(i) whenever the Committee, in its sole and plertisgretion, determines that such adjustments@weogriate or desirable, including, without
limitation, providing for a substitution or assuriopt of Awards, accelerating the exercisabilitylafjse of restrictions on, or termination of,
Awards or providing for a
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period of time for exercise prior to the occurrenésuch event, (ii) if deemed appropriate or dadg by the Committee, in its sole and plenary
discretion, by providing for a cash payment tolib&ler of an Award in consideration for the cantiefaof such Award, including, in the case
of an outstanding Option or SAR, a cash paymetthiediolder of such Option or SAR in considerationthe cancelation of such Option or
SAR in an amount equal to the excess, if any, ®Rair Market Value (as of a date specified byGlenmittee) of the Shares subject to such
Option or SAR over the aggregate Exercise Pricgioh Option or SAR and (iii) if deemed appropriatelesirable by the Committee, in its
sole and plenary discretion, by canceling and teating any Option or SAR having a pghare Exercise Price equal to, or in excess off-#ik
Market Value of a Share subject to such OptionAIR Svithout any payment or consideration therefor.

SECTION 8. Change of Contrdlinless otherwise provided in the applicable Awagieement, in the event of a Change of Control
after the date of the adoption of the Plan, unpessgision is made in connection with the Chang€ofitrol for (a) assumption of Awards
previously granted or (b) substitution for such Agsaof new awards covering stock of a successqoeation or its “parent corporation” (as
defined in Section 424(e) of the Code) or “subsid@rporation” (as defined in Section 424(f) o t@ode) with appropriate adjustments as to
the number and kinds of shares and the Exercise®if applicable, (i) any outstanding Option$S#&Rs then held by Participants that are
unexercisable or otherwise unvested shall autoalbtibe deemed exercisable or otherwise vestetheasase may be, as of immediately prior
to such Change of Control, (ii) all PerformancetgnCash Incentive Awards and Awards designatd®ea®rmance Compensation Awards
shall be paid out as if the date of the Changeaft@| were the last day of the applicable PerforceaPeriod and “target” performance levels
had been attained and (iii) all other outstandingaAds (i.e, other than Options, SARs, Performance Units, Qaséntive Awards and
Awards designated as Performance Compensation A)vtren held by Participants that are unexercisainieested or still subject to
restrictions or forfeiture, shall automatically deemed exercisable and vested and all restricinddorfeiture provisions related thereto shall
lapse as of immediately prior to such Change oftfobn

SECTION 9. General Provision®) NontransferabilityExcept as otherwise specified in the applicable vdwsgreement, during
the Participant’s lifetime each Award (and any tigand obligations thereunder) shall be exercisablg by the Participant, or, if permissible
under applicable law, by the Participant’s legadmglian or representative, and no Award (or anytsigind obligations thereunder) may be
assigned, alienated, pledged, attached, sold erwibe transferred or encumbered by a Participtmaravise than by will or by the laws of
descent and distribution, and any such purportejasent, alienation, pledge, attachment, salastes or encumbrance shall be void and
unenforceable against the Company or any Affiligtevidedthat (i) the designation of a beneficiary shall cotstitute an assignment,
alienation, pledge, attachment, sale, transfenoumbrance and (ii) the Board or the Committee peynit further transferability, on a general
or specific basis, and may impose conditions amddtions on any permitted transferability; prowddehowever, that Incentive Stock Options
shall not be transferable in any way that wouldat® Section 1.422-2(a)(2) of the Treasury
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Regulations and in no event may any Award (or agiyts and obligations thereunder) be transferreghinway in exchange for value. All
terms and conditions of the Plan and all Award Agrents shall be binding upon any permitted successal assigns.

(b) No Rights to AwarddNo Participant or other Person shall have any ctailve granted any Award, and there is no obligafio
uniformity of treatment of Participants or holdersbeneficiaries of Awards. The terms and cond#iohAwards and the Committee’s
determinations and interpretations with respeatetioeneed not be the same with respect to eacltipartt and may be made selectively am
Participants, whether or not such Participantsandarly situated.

(c) Share Certificatedll certificates for Shares or other securitieshed Company or any Affiliate delivered under tharPbursuar
to any Award or the exercise thereof shall be sthfesuch stop transfer orders and other regiristas the Committee may deem advisable
under the Plan, the applicable Award Agreemenhertiles, regulations and other requirements oSt€, the NASDAQ or any other stock
exchange or quotation system upon which such Sloarether securities are then listed or reportaetiary applicable Federal or state laws,
the Committee may cause a legend or legends tat@npany such certificates to make appropriateregfce to such restrictions.

(d) withholding.(i) Authority to Withhold.A Participant may be required to pay to the Compamgny Affiliate, and the Company
or any Affiliate shall have the right and is herelthorized to withhold from any Award, from anyypeent due or transfer made under any
Award or under the Plan or from any compensatiootbber amount owing to a Participant, the amountésh, Shares, other securities, other
Awards or other property) of any applicable withdiog taxes in respect of an Award, its exercisargr payment or transfer under an Awart
under the Plan and to take such other action astagcessary in the opinion of the Committee eiGbmpany to satisfy all obligations for
the payment of such taxes.

(i) Alternative Ways to Satisfy Withholding Lialiy. Without limiting the generality of clause (i) abgweParticipant may
satisfy, in whole or in part, the foregoing withdlivlg liability by delivery of Shares owned by tharfcipant (which are not subject to any
pledge or other security interest) having a FairkdaValue equal to such withholding liability @t, the discretion of the Participant, by having
the Company withhold from the number of Sharesmitse issuable pursuant to the exercise of theddpir SAR, or the lapse of the
restrictions on any other Award (in the case of SARd other Awards, if such SARs and other Awardssattled in Shares), a number of
Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to suchhweiding liability.

(e) Section 409A (i) It is intended that the provisions of thefP@mply with Section 409A of the Code, and allyisons of the
Plan shall be construed and interpreted in a magomesistent with the requirements for avoiding tagepenalties under Section 409A of the
Code.
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(i) No Participant or the creditors or beneficeriof a Participant shall have the right to subgegt deferred compensation
(within the meaning of Section 409A of the Codeyglae under the Plan to any anticipation, aliematsale, transfer, assignment, pledge,
encumbrance, attachment or garnishment. Excepgrasitped under Section 409A of the Code, any detecompensation (within the meaning
of Section 409A of the Code) payable to any Paudict or for the benefit of any Participant under flan may not be reduced by, or offset
against, any amount owing by any such Participatité Company or any of its Affiliates.

(iii) If, at the time of a Participant’s separatifsom service (within the meaning of Section 409Ahe Code), (A) such
Participant shall be a specified employee (withia tneaning of Section 409A of the Code and usiagdéntification methodology selected by
the Company from time to time) and (B) the Compsihgll make a good faith determination that an arhpapable pursuant to an Award
constitutes deferred compensation (within the nmeaof Section 409A of the Code) the payment of Whécrequired to be delayed pursuant to
the six-month delay rule set forth in Section 4@%Ahe Code in order to avoid taxes or penaltiedenrsection 409A of the Code, then the
Company shall not pay such amount on the othersdkeduled payment date but shall instead pay thefirst business day after such six-
month period. Such amount shall be paid withowdrdt, unless otherwise determined by the Commitigts sole discretion, or as otherwise
provided in any applicable employment agreementéetn the Company and the relevant Participant.

(iv) Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan ktcontrary, in light of the uncertainty with respt the proper applicatit
of Section 409A of the Code, the Company reseivesight to make amendments to any Award as thepaosndeems necessary or desirable
to avoid the imposition of taxes or penalties urection 409A of the Code. In any case, a Partitiphall be solely responsible and liable for
the satisfaction of all taxes and penalties that bimposed on such Participant or for such Rpéit’s account in connection with an Award
(including any taxes and penalties under Secti®@®4df the Code), and neither the Company nor anysdffiliates shall have any obligation
to indemnify or otherwise hold such Participantrhi@ss from any or all of such taxes or penalties.

(H Award AgreementsEach Award hereunder shall be evidenced by an Awgrdement, which shall be delivered to the
Participant and shall specify the terms and comadtitiof the Award and any rules applicable theietuding, but not limited to, the effect on
such Award of the death, disability or terminatafremployment or service of a Participant and fifiecg if any, of such other events as ma
determined by the Committee.

(9) No Limit on Other Compensation Arrangemehtsthing contained in the Plan shall prevent the Gany or any Affiliate from
adopting or continuing in effect other compensatiarangements, which may, but need not, providéhigrant of options, restricted stock,
shares, other types of equity-based awards (sutgjestbckholder approval if such approval is reedjrand cash incentive awards, and such
arrangements may be either generally applicab&pplicable only in specific cases.
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(h) No Right to EmploymeniThe grant of an Award shall not be construed amgia Participant the right to be retained as a
director, officer, employee or consultant of othe Company or any Affiliate, nor shall it be caned as giving a Participant any rights to
continued service on the Board. Further, the Comparan Affiliate may at any time dismiss a Papant from employment or discontinue any
directorship or consulting relationship, free framy liability or any claim under the Plan, unlefiseswise expressly provided in the Plan or in
any Award Agreement.

() No Rights as StockholdeKlo Participant or holder or beneficiary of any Adiahall have any rights as a stockholder with ret
to any Shares to be distributed under the Plan atbr she has become the holder of such Sharesnhection with each grant of Restricted
Shares, except as provided in the applicable Awaréement, the Participant shall be entitled tortgbkts of a stockholder (including the right
to vote) in respect of such Restricted Shares. fiba® otherwise provided in Section 4(b), Secti@m) @r the applicable Award Agreement, no
adjustments shall be made for dividends or distidims on (whether ordinary or extraordinary, ancethler in cash, Shares, other securities or
other property), or other events relating to, Seareject to an Award for which the record datgrisr to the date such Shares are delivered.

() Governing Law.The validity, construction and effect of the Pland any rules and regulations relating to the Ptahany Award
Agreement shall be determined in accordance weHdtvs of the State of Delaware, without givingeeffto the conflict of laws provisions
thereof.

(k) Severability If any provision of the Plan or any Award is or betes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal or unecgable in any
jurisdiction or as to any Person or Award, or wodisljualify the Plan or any Award under any lawrded applicable by the Committee, sl
provision shall be construed or deemed amendedrfioin to the applicable laws, or if it cannot lmmstrued or deemed amended without, in
the determination of the Committee, materially rafig the intent of the Plan or the Award, such [Bimn shall be construed or deemed stricken
as to such jurisdiction, Person or Award and tmeaiader of the Plan and any such Award shall rermafall force and effect.

() Other Laws; Restrictions on Transfer of Shafide Committee may refuse to issue or transfer drares or other consideration
under an Award if, acting in its sole and plenaiscrktion, it determines that the issuance or fearaf such Shares or such other consideration
might violate any applicable law or regulation atite the Company to recover the same under Sedfigb) of the Exchange Act, and any
payment tendered to the Company by a Participaimér dnolder or beneficiary in connection with thereise of such Award shall be promptly
refunded to the relevant Participant, holder ordfierary. Without limiting the generality of therfegoing, no Award granted hereunder shall be
construed as an offer to sell securities of the @amy, and no such offer shall be outstanding, srdesl until the Committee in its sole and
plenary discretion has determined that any suadraffmade, would be in compliance with all apabte requirements of the U.S. Federal and
any other applicable securities laws.
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(m) No Trust or Fund CreateNeither the Plan nor any Award shall create ordoestrued to create a trust or separate fund of any
kind or a fiduciary relationship between the Companany Affiliate, on one hand, and a Participanany other Person, on the other. To the
extent that any Person acquires a right to reqeyenents from the Company or any Affiliate pursuaran Award, such right shall be no
greater than the right of any unsecured generditoreof the Company or such Affiliate.

(n) No Fractional Shareblo fractional Shares shall be issued or deliverggymant to the Plan or any Award, and the Committee
shall determine whether cash, other securitiest@rgroperty shall be paid or transferred in iéany fractional Shares or whether such
fractional Shares or any rights thereto shall beeked, terminated or otherwise eliminated.

(o) Requirement of Consent and Notification of Eler Under Section 83(b) of the Code or Similar#simn. No election under
Section 83(b) of the Code (to include in gross imean the year of transfer the amounts specifieddotion 83(b) of the Code) or under a
similar provision of law may be made unless exgygssrmitted by the terms of the applicable Awargkréement or by action of the Commit
in writing prior to the making of such election.af Award recipient, in connection with the acdiosi of Shares under the Plan or otherwis
expressly permitted under the terms of the applécAlvard Agreement or by such Committee action ekensuch an election and the
Participant makes the election, the Participantl simify the Committee of such election within tdays of filing notice of the election with the
IRS or other governmental authority, in additioratty filing and notification required pursuant égulations issued under Section 83(b) of the
Code or any other applicable provision.

(p) Requirement of Notification Upon Disqualifyi@jsposition Under Section 421(b) of the Colleany Participant shall make a
disposition of Shares delivered pursuant to theatse of an Incentive Stock Option under the cirstances described in Section 421(b) of the
Code (relating to certain disqualifying disposigdmr any successor provision of the Code, sucticigent shall notify the Company of such
disposition within ten days of such disposition.

(9) HeadingsHeadings are given to the Sections and subseatiothe Plan solely as a convenience to facilitaterence. Such
headings shall not be deemed in any way materiadlevant to the construction or interpretationthef Plan or any provision thereof.

SECTION 10. Term of the Plata) Effective DateThe Plan shall be effective as of the date ofdispéion by the Board and
approval by the Company’s stockholders.

(b) Expiration DateNo Award shall be granted under the Plan aftetehéh anniversary of the date the Plan is apprdyeithe
Companys stockholders under Section 10(a). Unless otherasxpressly provided in the Plan or in an appliealard Agreement, any Awa
granted hereunder, and the authority of the Boatd@Committee to amend, alter, adjust, suspesdpdtinue or terminate any such Award or
to waive any conditions or rights under any suchafdy shall nevertheless continue thereafter.
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Exhibit 14

DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc.
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Introduction

This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics of Dreamké/Animation SKG, Inc. (the “Company”) summarizbe values, principles and
business practices that guide our business contlist.Code sets out a set of basic principles tdegamployees regarding the minimum
requirements expected of them; however, this Cags diot provide a detailed description of all emeopolicies. It is the responsibility of all
the people at the Company to maintain a work enwirent that fosters fairness, respect and integaity; it is our Company policy to be lawful,
highly-principled and socially responsible in alirdusiness practices. All employees are expectéetome familiar with this Code and to
apply these guiding principles in the daily perfamue of their job responsibilities. All employedshe Company are responsible for
complying with this Code. This Code should alspb®vided to and adhered to by every agent, condultarepresentative of the Company.
employees are expected to seek the advice of Sepermanager or other appropriate persons witieénGompany when questions arise about
issues discussed in this Code and any other isBaemay implicate the ethical standards or intggri the Company or any of its employees.
Compliance procedures are set forth in Sectionf1Bi® Code. The Company has established an Odfiéethics and Compliance to oversee
ethics and compliance effort and serve as a resdaremployees by providing information and guidaregarding legal compliance and eth
conduct issues. If you have any questions or coisaegarding the specifics of any policy or yowalkeor ethical obligations, please contact
your supervisor or someone in the Comf’'s Legal Department at 818-695-5000. Taking actitmngrevent problems is part of our Company’s
culture. If you observe possible unethical or ilegonduct you are encouraged to report your caiscéf you report, in good faith, what you
suspect to be illegal or unethical activities, whould not be concerned about retaliation fromrsth&ny employees involved in retaliation v
be subject to serious disciplinary action by thenpany. Failure to abide by the guidelines addresséus Code will lead to disciplinary
actions, including dismissal where appropri#itgou are in a situation which you believe maylatie or lead to a violation of this Code, you
urged to follow the guidelines described in SecfiBrof this Code For purposes of this Code, references to “employéeesiclude

employees, officers and directors of the Company.

1. Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

We have a long-standing commitment to conduct ogirtess in compliance with applicable laws and lagns and in accordance with the
highest ethical principles. This commitment helpswee our reputation for honesty, quality and iritgg

2. Conflicts of Interest

A “conflict of interest” exists when a person’syate interest interferes in any way with the ins¢seof the Company. A conflict situation can
arise when an employee takes actions or has itddies may make it difficult to perform his or KBompany work objectively and effectively.
Conflicts of interest also arise when an employea member of his or her family, receives impropersonal benefits (including personal
loans, services or payment for services that thegomeis performing in the course of Company busipas a result of his or her position in the
Company or gains personal enrichment through adoassnfidential information. Conflicts of interestn arise in many common situations,
despite one’s best efforts to avoid them. Employgesncouraged to seek clarification of, and disguestions about, potential conflicts of
interest with someone in the Company'’s Legal Depant. Any employee who becomes aware of a cordtigotential conflict should bring it
to the attention of a supervisor, manager or adippropriate persons within the Company.

3. Outside Directorships and Other Outside Activites

Although activities outside the Company are notesearily a conflict of interest, a conflict couldsa depending upon your position within the
Company and the Company'’s relationship with yowr eenployer or other activity. Outside activitiesyraso be a conflict of interest if they
cause you, or are perceived to cause you, to cHmiseeen that interest and the interests of theaom The Company recognizes that the
guidelines in this Section 3 are not applicablditectors that do not also serve in managementiposiwithin the Company (“Outside
Directors”). Outside DirectorshipEmployees of the Company m




not serve as directors of any outside businessargiion unless such service is specifically apptblly senior management. There are a
number of factors and criteria that the Company wgé in determining whether to approve an emplsyesuest for an outside business
directorship. For example, directorships in outsidepanies are subject to certain legal limitati@isectorships in outside companies should
also satisfy a number of business consideratimcjding (1) furthering the interests of the Compand (2) not detracting in any material v
from the employee’s ability to fulfill his or heommitments to the Company. The Company will alée tato consideration the time
commitment and potential personal liabilities aegponsibilities associated with the outside dinesttip in evaluating reques®ther Outside
EngagementWe recognize that employees often engage in contgnseivice in their local communities and engage wariety of charitable
activities and we commend employees’ efforts is tleigard. However, it is every employee’s dutyrisuge that all outside activities, even
charitable or pro bono activities, do not constitatconflict of interest or are otherwise incorgiswith employment by the Company.

4. Gifts and Entertainment

Business gifts and entertainment are designeditd gaodwill and sound working relationships amdngsiness partners. A problem would
arise if (1) the receipt by one of our employeea gfft or entertainment would compromise, or cduddreasonably viewed as compromising,
that individual’s ability to make objective andrféusiness decisions on behalf of the Company Jath@ offering by one of our employees of a
gift or entertainment appears to be an attempbtain business through improper means or use ingonmgans to gain any special advantay
our business relationships, or could reasonabljéeed as such an attempt. The onus is on theithdiV employee to use good judgment and
ensure there is no violation of these principlégoli have any question or uncertainty about wheging gifts or proposed gifts are appropriate,
please contact your supervisor, manager or oth@ogpate persons within the Company or someorbdrCompany’s Legal Department.

5. Insider Trading

There are instances where our employees have iafmmabout the Company, its subsidiaries or atf or about a company with which we
do business that is not known to the investingipuBBluch inside information may relate to, amorfieothings: plans; new products or
processes; mergers, acquisitions or dispositiotmisinesses or securities; problems facing the @ompr a company with which we do
business; sales; profitability; negotiations relgtto significant contracts or business relatiopshsignificant litigation; or financial
information. If the information is such that a reaable investor would consider the information imanot in reaching an investment decision,
then the Company employee who holds the informatiost not buy or sell Company securities, nor gewsuch information to others, until
such information becomes public. Further, employeast not buy or sell securities in any other conypabout which they have such material
non-public information, nor provide such informatito others, until such information becomes pultlisage of material non-public
information in the above manner is not only illedalt also unethical. Employees who involve theresin illegal insider trading (either by
personally engaging in the trading or by disclosimaterial non-public information to others) will bebject to immediate termination. The
Company'’s policy is to report such violations te tippropriate authorities and to cooperate fullgrig investigation of insider trading. The
Company has additional, specific rules that govexdes in Company securities by directors, cext#finers and certain employees. Employees
may need assistance in determining how the rulesrging inside information apply to specific sitigats and should consult the Company’s
Legal Department in these cases.

6. Corporate Opportunities

Subiject to the provisions of our Restated Certificz Incorporation, employees owe a duty to then@any to advance its legitimate interests
when the opportunity to do so arises. Employeeparibited (without the consent of the Board ofdators or an appropriate committee
thereof) from (1) taking for themselves personalbportunities that are discovered through the fiseporate property, information or their
position, (2) using corporate property, informatartheir position for personal gain and (3) conmmetvith the Company directly or indirectly.

7. Antitrust and Fair Dealing

The Company believes that the welfare of consuiisdrsst served by economic competition. Our pdbdp compete vigorously, aggressively
and successfully in today’s increasingly competitusiness climate and to do so at all times inptiamce with all applicable antitrust,
competition and fair dealing laws in all the maskigt which we operate. We seek to excel while dpegdnonestly and ethically, never through
taking



unfair advantage of others. Each employee shouddasror to deal fairly with the Company’s custometgpliers, competitors and other
employees. No one should take unfair advantageigffronanipulation, concealment, abuse of privileigéatmation, misrepresentation of
material facts or any other unfair dealing practicehe antitrust laws of many jurisdictions areigiesd to preserve a competitive economy and
promote fair and vigorous competition. We are edjuired to comply with these laws and regulati@mployees involved in marketing, sales
and purchasing, contracts or in discussions withpetitors have a particular responsibility to eeshiat they understand our standards and are
familiar with applicable competition laws. Becaukese laws are complex and can vary from one jgtisd to another, employees should <

the advice of someone in the Company’s Legal Depamt when questions arise.

8. Discrimination and Harassment

The Company is committed to providing a work enwirent that values diversity among its employeekshiédnan resources policies and
activities of the Company intend to create a re§plworkplace in which every individual has theantive and opportunity to reach his or her
highest potential. We are firmly committed to pdiag equal employment opportunities to all indivatkiand will not tolerate any illegal
discrimination or harassment of any kind. Examjpietude derogatory comments based on age, racdegen ethnic characteristics and
unwelcome sexual advances or comments. This papigjies to both applicants and employees and iphases of employment, including
recruiting, hiring, placement, training and devet@mt, transfer, promotion, demotion, performanegeres, compensation and benefits, and
separation from employment. All levels of supemisare responsible for monitoring and complyingwtite Company’s policies and
procedures for handling employee complaints coregrharassment or other forms of unlawful discriation. Because employment-related
laws are complex and vary from state to state antcy to country, supervisors should obtain theé@eof someone in the Company’s Legal
Department in advance whenever there is any dautat the lawfulness of any proposed action or inact

9. Health and Safety

The Company strives to provide each employee withfa and healthy work environment. Each emplogeseatresponsibility to ensure that
operations and our products meet applicable goventior Company standards, whichever is more stningdl employees are required to be
alert to environmental and safety issues and tiaubdiar with environmental, health and safety laavel Company policies applicable to their
area of business. Since these laws are complesidiject to frequent changes, you should obtairativice of someone in the Company’s
Legal Department whenever there is any doubt #settawfulness of any action or inaction. Threataas of violence and physical
intimidation are not permitted. The use of illedaligs in the workplace will not be tolerated.

10. Record-Keeping and Retention

Many persons within the Company record or prepameestype of information during their workday, swhtime cards, financial reports,
accounting records, business plans, environmespalrts, injury and accident reports, expense rgpartd so on. Many people, both within and
outside the Company, depend upon these repores aodurate and truthful for a variety of reasoresE people include our employees,
governmental agencies, auditors and the commuriitiedich we operate. Also, the Company requirasgsband accurate recording and
reporting of information in order to make respofesiusiness decisions. We maintain the highest domment to recording information
accurately and truthfully. All financial statemeiatsd books, records and accounts of the Companyanaarately reflect transactions and
events and conform both to required legal requirgmand accounting principles and also to the Cayigasystem of internal accounting. A
Company employee, you have the responsibility suemnthat false or intentionally misleading entaes not made by you, or anyone who
reports to you, in the Company’s accounting recoRigyardless of whether reporting is required by @ishonest reporting within the
Company, or to organizations or people outsidegXbmpany, is strictly prohibited. All officers anthployees of the Company that are
responsible for financial or accounting mattersaise required to ensure the full, fair, accurtieely and understandable disclosure in all
periodic reports required to by filed by the Comyparith the Securities and Exchange Commission. Taimmitment and responsibility
extends to the highest levels of our organizatiociuding our chairman, chief executive officerjeftfinancial officer and chief accounting
officer. Properly maintaining corporate recordsfishe utmost importance. To address this congenugrds are maintained for required periods
as defined in our records and retention policy.sEheontrols should be reviewed regularly by all leyges and following consistently. In
accordance with these policies, in the event ifdtton or governmental investigation, please ctithke Company’s Legal Department. The
Company recognizes that the guidelines in thisi®edtO are not applicable to the Comp’s Outside Directors



11. Confidentiality

Information is one of our most valuable corporatsets, and open and effective dissemination ofrimdition is critical to our success. Howe'
much of our Company’s business information is aderfitial or proprietary. Confidential informatiorclades all non-public information that
might be of use to competitors, or harmful to therPany or our customers, if disclosed. Employeestrmaintain the confidentiality of
confidential information entrusted to them by thenpany, except when disclosure is authorized byCibrapany’s Legal Department or
required by laws or regulations. It is also our @amy’s policy that all employees must treat whaytlearn about our customers, joint venture
partners and suppliers and each of their businesseanfidential information. The protection of Buformation is of the highest importance
and must be discharged with the greatest cardvéo€bmpany to merit the continued confidence ohgqersons. Confidential information to
such person is information it would consider prévathich is not common knowledge outside of thamhgany and which an employee of the
Company has learned as a result of his or her gmynt by the Company. For example, we never sellidential or personal information
about our customers and do not share such infoomatith any third party except with the customedsisent or as required by law. No
employee may disclose confidential information odbg someone other than the Company to non-empsoyébout the authorization of the
Company’s Legal Department, nor shall any suchquedisclose the information to others unless a fieddhow basis has been established.
Employees of the Company should guard against emiainal disclosure of confidential information ala#e special care not to store
confidential information where unauthorized persgroan see it, whether at work, at home, in pytices or elsewhere. Situations that could
result in inadvertent disclosure of such informatioclude: discussing confidential information kic (for example, in restaurants, elevators
or airplanes); talking about confidential infornzation mobile phones; working with sensitive infotioa in public using laptop computers; ¢
transmitting confidential information via fax. Withthe workplace, do not assume that all Companpgleyees, contractors or subsidiary
personnel should see confidential information. ®hkgation not to disclose confidential informatiohthe Company and our customers
continues with an employee even after you leaveCthmpany. As such, the Company respects the oldigabf confidence Company
employees may have from prior employment, and tsltsemployees not reveal confidential informatidmained in the course of their prior
employment. Company employees must not be assignedrk in a job that would require the use of mpemployer’s confidential
information.

12. Proprietary Information

Our Company depends on intellectual property, sisctrade secrets, patents, trademarks, and coggjrighwell as business, marketing and
service plans, engineering and manufacturing iddesigns, databases, records, salary informatidraap unpublished financial data and
reports, for its continued vitality. If our intetiual property is not protected, it becomes avéglab other companies that have not made the
significant investment that our Company has madadduce this property and thus gives away sonmiptompetitive advantage. All of the
rules stated above with respect to confidentiarimiation apply equally to proprietary informati@ertain employees are required to sign a
proprietary information agreement that restricechtisure of proprietary, trade secret and certdiardnformation about the Company, its joint
venture partners, suppliers and customers. Theypsét forth in this Code applies to all employeethout regard to whether such agreements
have been signed. It is the responsibility of ev@oympany employee to help protect our intellecpraperty. Management at all levels of the
Company is encouraged to foster and maintain awaeeof the importance of protecting the Compamtallectual property.

13. Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets

Collectively, employees have a responsibility fafeguarding and making proper and efficient ustn@fCompany’s property. Each of us also
has an obligation to prevent the Company’s propfeotyr loss, damage, misuse, theft, embezzlemedéestruction. Theft, loss, misuse,
carelessness and waste of assets have a direattionpthe Company'’s profitability and may jeopaediie future of the Company. Any
situations or incidents that could lead to thettHegs, misuse or waste of Company property shbalceported immediately to the security
department or to your supervisor or manager as asdhey come to your attentic



14. Relationships with Government Personnel

Employees of the Company should be aware thatipescthat may be acceptable in the commercial kgsienvironment (such as providing
certain transportation, meals, entertainment ahdrdhings of nominal value), may be entirely urgutable and even illegal when they relat
government employees or others who act on the gavemt's behalf. Therefore, you must be aware ofaitere to the relevant laws and
regulations governing relations between governreemiloyees and customers and suppliers in everytigowhere you conduct business. It is
strictly against Company policy for employees teeginoney or gifts to any official or any employdea@overnmental entity if doing so could
reasonably be construed as having any connectitintihé Company’s business relationship. Such astiwa generally prohibited by law. We
expect our employees to refuse to make questiomeylments. Any proposed payment or gift to a gavemt official must be reviewed in
advance by the ComparsyLegal Department, even if such payment is commaime country of payment. Employees should be awrat the
do not actually have to make the payment to vidlaeCompany'’s policy and the law — merely offeripgomising or authorizing it is
sufficient. In addition, many jurisdictions havevieand regulations regarding business gratuitigshwimay be accepted by government
personnel. For example, business courtesies ortaint@ent such as paying for meals or drinks areglyappropriate when working with
government officials. Gifts or courtesies that wbuobt be appropriate even for private parties mualicases inappropriate for government
officials. Please consult the Company’s Legal Depant for more guidance on these issues. Contabstio political parties or candidates in
connection with elections are discussed in Sedtlan

15. Political Contributions

Election laws in many jurisdictions generally ptgihipolitical contributions by corporations to césates. Many local laws also prohibit
corporate contributions to local political campaghn accordance with these laws, the Company doesake direct contributions to any
candidates for federal, state or local offices wtegsplicable laws make such contributions illeGalntributions to political campaignhs must |
be, or appear to be, made with or reimbursed by g2y funds or resources. Company funds and respirckide (but are not limited to)
Company facilities, office supplies, letterheadepdones and fax machines. Company employees widaohgeek to hold political office must
do so on their own time, whether through vacatiowpaid leave, after work hours or on weekends. #atthlly, all persons must obtain
advance approval from someone within the Compahggal Department prior to running for politicflice to ensure that there are no confl
of interest with Company business. Employees maenpgrsonal political contributions as they seanfiiccordance with all applicable laws.
The Company recognizes that the guidelines inSbigtion 15 are not applicable to the Company’s iQetBirectors.

16. Waivers of the Code of Business Conduct and Ets

Any change in or waiver of this Code for executificers (including our chief executive officer,iehfinancial officer, controller or principal
accounting officer) or directors may be made onjyhe Board or a Board committee and will be prdgngisclosed as required by law or st
exchange regulation.

17. Failure to Comply

No Code can address all specific situations. lhistefore, each employ's responsibility to apply the principles set foiththis Code in a
responsible fashion and with the exercise of goddinent and common sense. If something seems oaktiiimproper, it likely isAlways
remember: If you are unsure of what to do in any suation, seek guidance before you actA failure by any employee to comply with the
laws or regulations governing the Company’s busingss Code or any other Company policy or regqméet may result in disciplinary action
up to and including termination, and, if warrantiedjal proceedings. All employees are expecteséperate in internal investigations of
misconduct.

18. Reporting lllegal or Unethical Behavior; Complance Procedures

As an employee of the Company, you are expectedrduct yourself in a manner appropriate for yoarkrenvironment, and are also
expected to be sensitive to and respectful of teerns, values and preferences of others. Whgtheare an employee, contractor, supplie
otherwise a member of our Company family, you areoeraged to promptly report any practices or astithat you believe to be inappropri
We have described in each section above the proegdenerally available for discussing and addngssthical issues that arise. Speaking to
the right people is one of your first steps to ustinding and resolving what are often difficulegtions. As a general matter, if you have any
guestions or concerns about compliance with thideGwr you are just unsure of what the “right thimgto do, you are encouraged to speak
your supervisor, manager or other appropriate psrgothin the Company. If you do not feel comfotéatalking to any of these perscfor any
reason, you should cal



someone in the Company’s Legal Department. Eathese offices has been instructed to registematipfaints, brought anonymously or
otherwise, and direct those complaints to the gmpjate channels within the Company. Accounting/Aindi Complaints The law also require
that we have in place procedures for addressingtants concerning auditing issues and proceduresrhployees to anonymously submit
their concerns regarding accounting or auditingess Complaints concerning accounting or auditisgeés will be directed to the attention of
the Company’s Audit Committee, or the appropriatanmhers of that committee. For direct access t€Cttrapany’s Audit Committee, please
address your auditing and accounting related issuesmplaints to: Judson Green, Chairman of thdit\Dommittee c/o DreamWorks
Animation SKG, Inc. 1000 Flower Street Glendale, €01 Email: auditcommitteechair@dreamworksaniomatiomin addition, you may
report such matters (and other matters of cond®ricplling the toll-free DreamWorks Animation SKI&¢. Ethics Hotline at (800) 273094 o
by filing a report at the DreamWorks Animation SKIG;. Ethics and Compliance Webpage at www.compgan
helpline.com/dreamworksanimation.jsp. The Compahigdtine and Website are staffed 24 hours a dayerselays a week by trained
personnel. The toll-free phone line, webpage anidingeaddress above may be used to report yourermscanonymously and confidentially.
Also, as discussed in the Introduction to this Cyae should know that if you report in good faithat you suspect to be illegal or unethical
activities, you should not be concerned aboutiegtah from others. Any employees involved in ritbn will be subject to serious
disciplinary action by the Company. Furthermore, @ompany could be subject to criminal or civili@es for acts of retaliation against
employees who “blow the whistle” on U.S. securileas violations and other federal offenses.




List of Subsidiaries

Name of Entity

State or Other Jurisdiction
of Incorporation or Organization

Exhibit 21.1

DreamWorks Animation L.L.C

DreamWorks Animation Home Entertainment, |
DreamWorks Animation Home Entertainment, L.L
DreamWorks Animation International Services, |
DreamWorks Animation Live Stage Performances Lith
DreamWorks Animation Live Theatrical Productiond., C.
DreamWorks Animation Online, In

DreamWorks Animation Television, In
DreamWorks Animation UK Limitet

DreamWorks, Inc

DreamWorks Po-Production L.L.C

DW Animation Ireland Limitec

DW Animation Studios India Private Limite

DWA Finance | L.L.C.

DWA Glendale Properties, LL:

DWA Live Stage Development, LL

DWA International Television Properties, It

DWT Shrek Tour One, In¢

Pacific Data Images, In

Pacific Data Images L.L.(

Pacific Productions LL(

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
UK
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
UK
Delaware
Delaware
Ireland
India
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1199@4gmning to the 2004 Omnibus
Incentive Compensation Plan, in the Registrati@iedtent (Form S-8 No. 333-143679) pertaining taSpecial Deferral Election Plan, in the
Registration Statements (Form S-8 No. 333-150989%Famm S-8 No. 333-160015) pertaining to the 2008us Incentive Compensation
Plan and in the Registration Statements (Form $-3383-138712 and Form S-3 No. 333-145158) andeelBrospectus of DreamWorks
Animation SKG, Inc. of our reports dated Februady 2011 with respect to the consolidated finanstiatements of DreamWorks Animation

SKG, Inc., and the effectiveness of internal cdraker financial reporting of DreamWorks Animati®KG, Inc. included in this Annual Rep
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2010.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 24, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(A) OR 15D-14(A),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey Katzenberg, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgittde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi:
respects the financial condition, results of opgerstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)), for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresmused such disclosure controls and procedortes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa
b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentadsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfe, or is reasonably likely to materially affette registrans internal control ove
financial reporting; an
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant
b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin
Date: February 24, 201 /s|  JEFFREYK ATZENBERG

Jeffrey Katzenberg, Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14(A) OR 15D-14(A),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Lewis W. Coleman, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of DreamWorks Animation SKG, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgittde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi:
respects the financial condition, results of opgerstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtf@ periods presented in this rep
4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&-15(f) and 15-15(f)), for the registrant and hav
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresmused such disclosure controls and procedortes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrihe period in which this report is being prepa
b) Designed such internal control over financiploming, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentadsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegit’s internal control over financial reportifgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfe, or is reasonably likely to materially affette registrans internal control ove
financial reporting; an
5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimoernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant
b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the registra’s
internal control over financial reportin
Date: February 24, 201 /sl LewisW. C OLEMAN

Lewis W. Coleman, President and Chief Financial Ofter
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&3xley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fDoeamWorks Animation SKG, Inc., a Delaware cogimm (the “Company”), for
the period ending December 31, 2010, as filed Wi¢hSecurities and Exchange Commission on thetsasof (the “Report”), each of the
undersigned officers of the Company certifies pamtuo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursae®ection 906 of the Sarban@siey Act
of 2002 that:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; anc
2. the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the

Company.
Dated: February 24, 20: /sl JEFFREYK ATZENBERG
Jeffrey Katzenberg
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: February 24, 2011 /sl LewisW. C OLEMAN

Lewis W. Coleman
President and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@d2ther document authenticating,
acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signatthiesappear in typed form within the electronicsien of this written statement required by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 e provided to the Company and will be retainethe Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staffippguest



